
 

Agenda 
Sacramento Suburban Water District 

Regular Board Meeting 
 
 
3701 Marconi Avenue Monday, May 20, 2024 
Sacramento, California 95821 6:00 p.m. 
 
 
This meeting will be conducted both in-person in the District’s Boardroom at the address 
above, and by videoconference and teleconference using the information provided below. 
The public is invited to listen, observe, and provide comments during the meeting by any 
method provided. The President will call for public comment on each agenda item at the 
appropriate time. 
 
For members of the public interested in viewing and having the ability to comment at the 
public meeting via Zoom, an internet-enabled computer equipped with a microphone and 
speaker or a mobile device with a data plan is required. Use of a webcam is optional. You 
also may call in to the meeting using teleconference without video. Please use the following 
login information for videoconferencing or teleconferencing: 
 

Join the meeting from a computer, tablet or smartphone: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84045272736?pwd=TnJZbS9hTHJEcXFVZWRtc1lZSTNqQT09 

 
Meeting ID: 840 4527 2736 

Password: 073711 
 

You can also dial in using your phone:  1 (669) 900-6833  
 

New to Zoom? Get the app now and be ready when your first meeting starts: https://zoom.us/ 
Zoom uses encryption of data during Zoom meetings.  The District uses a secure password to 
restrict access to scheduled meetings.  The meeting host has control of content sharing, 
recording, and chat. 

Please mute your line.   
 
Where appropriate or deemed necessary, the Board may take action on any item listed on the 
agenda, including items listed as information items.  Public documents relating to any open 
session item listed on this agenda that are distributed to all or a majority of the members of the 
Board of Directors less than 72 hours before the meeting are available for public inspection in 
the customer service area of the District’s Administrative Office at the address listed above. 
 
The public may address the Board concerning an agenda item after the staff presentation but 
before Board’s consideration of that agenda item.  Persons who wish to comment on either 
agenda or non-agenda items should fill out a Comment Card and give it to the General Manager.  
The President will call for comments at the appropriate time.  Comments will be subject to 
reasonable time limits (3 minutes).  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84045272736?pwd=TnJZbS9hTHJEcXFVZWRtc1lZSTNqQT09
https://zoom.us/
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In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you have a disability, and you need a 
disability-related modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, then please 
contact Sacramento Suburban Water District Human Resources at 916.679.3972.  Requests must 
be made as early as possible and at least one full business day before the start of the meeting. 
 
Call to Order 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Roll Call 
 
Announcements 
 
Public Comment 
This is the opportunity for the public to comment on non-agenda items within the Board’s 
jurisdiction.  Comments are limited to 3 minutes. 
 
Consent Items 
The Board will be asked to approve all Consent Items at one time without discussion.  Consent 
Items are expected to be routine and non-controversial.  If any Board member requests that an 
item be removed from the Consent Items, it will be considered with the Items for Discussion 
and/or Action. 

 
1. Draft Minutes of the April 22, 2024, Special Board Meeting  

Recommendation: Approve the Draft Minutes of the April 22, 2024, Special Board 
Meeting. 
 

2. Draft Minutes of the April 29, 2024, Special Board Workshop  
Recommendation: Approve the Draft Minutes of the April 29, 2024, Special Board 
Workshop. 
 

3. Treasurer’s Report  
Recommendation: Approve the items in the report as recommended. 

 
4. Policy Review – Water Service Rates, Fees and Charges Setting Policy (PL – Fin 009) 

Recommendation: Ratify the Water Service Rates, Fees and Charges Setting Policy 
(PL – Fin 009) without changes and change the review period from one year to five 
years to coincide with rate or fee and charges studies. 
 

5. Policy Review – Technology Use Policy (PL – IT 005) 
Recommendation: Approve the Technology Use Policy (PL – IT 005) with changes. 
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Items for Discussion and/or Action 

 
6. Resolution No. 24-04 Honoring Todd Artrip on his Retirement 

Recommendation: Adopt Resolution No. 24-04 Honoring Todd Artrip, Operations 
Manager, on his Retirement. 
 

7. 2023 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report and Audit Results 
Recommendation: Accept the 2023 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report and 
audit results, as recommended by the Audit Committee at the April 24, 2024, Audit 
Committee meeting. 
 

8. Transmission Main Asset Management Plan – Status Update 
Recommendation: Receive presentation and direct staff as appropriate. 
 

9. Sacramento Local Agency Formation Commission – Public Hearing on Del Paso 
Manor Water District  
Recommendation: Receive update on the result of the Public Hearing held on May 1, 
2024, by the Sacramento Local Agency Formation Commission on the intent to 
initiate dissolution of Del Paso Manor Water District. 

 
General Manager’s Report 
 

10. General Manager’s Report 
 

a. Grant of Easement and Right of Way 
 

b. Groundwater Well Asset Management Plan Update  
 

Department/Staff Reports 
 
11. Groundwater Well Status Report  

 
12. Engineering Report 

 
a. Major Capital Improvement Program Projects 

 
b. Planning Documents 

 
c. Other Projects 

 
13. Financial Report  

 
a. Financial Highlights 
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b. Financial Statements  
 

c. Budgets 
 

14. District Activity Report  
 

Information Items 
 

15. Upcoming Water Industry Meetings/Conferences 
 

16. Upcoming Policy Review  
 

a. Director Sexual Harassment and Abusive Conduct Prevention Training Policy (PL 
– BOD 005) 
 

b. Disposing of Surplus District Real Property, Vehicles, and Large Equipment and 
Other Personal Property Policy (PL – Adm 003)  

 
Director’s Reports (Per AB 1234, Directors will report on their meeting activities) 
 

17. a.   Regional Water Authority (Director Wichert) 
None.  
 

b. Sacramento Groundwater Authority (Director Boatwright)  
None.   
 

c. Director Reports – AB 1234 
 

Committee Reports 
 

18. a.   Audit Committee Meeting (Director Locke) 
Draft Minutes from the April 24, 2024, meeting. 
 

Director’s Comments/Staff Statements and Requests 
The Board and District staff may ask questions for clarification and make brief announcements 
and comments, and Board members may request staff to report back on a matter or direct staff to 
place a matter on a subsequent agenda. 
 
Adjournment 
 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 
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Upcoming Meetings 
 
Wednesday, May 22, 2024, at 6:00 p.m., Sacramento Suburban Water District/Del Paso Manor 
Water District Joint Board Meeting 
Monday, June 17, 2024, at 6:00 p.m., Regular Board Meeting 
 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 
 
I certify that the foregoing agenda for the May 20, 2024, meeting of the Sacramento Suburban 
Water District Board of Directors was posted by May 9, 2024, in a publicly accessible location at 
the Sacramento Suburban Water District office, 3701 Marconi Avenue, Sacramento, California, 
and was freely available to the public. 
 
 
             
      Dan York 
      General Manager/Secretary 
      Sacramento Suburban Water District 



 

 

 
Agenda Item: 1 

 
 
Date: May 20, 2024 
  
Subject: Draft Minutes of the April 22, 2024, Special Board Meeting 
  
Staff Contact: Dan York, General Manager 

 
 
Recommended Board Action: 
Approve the Draft Minutes of the April 22, 2024, Special Board Meeting. 
 
 
Attachment: 
1 – Draft Minutes of the April 22, 2024, Special Board Meeting. 
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Minutes 

Sacramento Suburban Water District 
Special Board Meeting 

April 22, 2024 

Location: 
3701 Marconi Avenue, Sacramento, CA 95821, Audio Conference at 1-669-900-6833, and 

Video Conference using Zoom at Meeting ID #874 7921 8660 

Call to Order 
President Thomas called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

Pledge of Allegiance 
President Thomas led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Roll Call 
Directors Present:  Jay Boatwright, Craig Locke, Kevin Thomas, and Robert Wichert.  

Directors Absent: Dave Jones.  

Staff Present: General Manager Dan York, Assistant General Manager Matt Underwood, 
Heather Hernandez-Fort, Susan Schinnerer, Dana Dean, Julie Nemitz, Jeff 
Ott, Todd Artrip, Greg Bundesen, Dane Westvik, and David Armand. 

Public Present: William Eubanks, Susan Eubanks, Adam Coyan, Paul Helliker, Ted Costa, 
Robert Matteoli, Pam Tobin, Sabrina Gulch, Steve Morris, Chris Peterson, 
Gwynne Pratt, Jose Henriquez, Jennifer Harris, Paul Helliker, Tom Gray, 
and SSWD Legal Counsel Josh Horowitz. 

Announcements 
None.

Public Comment 
None. 

Consent Items 

1. Draft Minutes of the March 18, 2024, Regular Board Meeting  

2. Treasurer’s Report  

3. Resolution No. 24-02 Calling for the November 5, 2024, Sacramento Suburban 
Water District Election 

4. April 2024 Legislation Update 

Attachment 1 
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5. 2024 Water Conservation Stage Declaration 

6. Resolution No. 24-03 Amending Regulation No. 3 – Water Service Charges and 
Rates, of the Regulation Governing Water Service 

7. Sacramento Regional Water Bank 

Director Wichert moved to approve all Consent Items; Director Boatwright seconded. 
The motion passed by unanimous vote.  

AYES: Boatwright, Locke, Thomas, and Wichert. ABSTAINED:

NOES: RECUSED:

ABSENT: Jones. 

Items for Discussion and/or Action 

8. Appreciation to William Eubanks for Attending Sacramento Suburban Water 
District Board and Committee Meetings for 20 Years 
General Manager Dan York (GM York) presented the staff report and presented 
William Eubanks (Mr. Eubanks) with an appreciation award.  He pointed out that Mr. 
Eubanks has been attending Board meetings as well as Committee meetings for the past 
20 years, that he always came very well prepared, and staff really appreciated his input 
and attendance. He commented that Mr. Eubanks has been a huge benefit to the District 
as well as staff. 

President Thomas acknowledged his appreciation for all of the time and dedication that 
Mr. Eubanks has contributed to the District and the community.  

Director Wichert expressed that Mr. Eubanks’ middle name should be “attention to 
detail,” as Mr. Eubanks is always very thorough.  

Director Boatright commented that he appreciated Mr. Eubanks’ input at the Board 
meetings.  

Director Locke expressed that he has learned a lot from Mr. Eubanks and that he 
appreciated his insight in the region and willingness to share it.  

Assistant General Manager Matt Underwood (AGM Underwood) stated that the top 
three convictions that he understood Mr. Eubanks has are his love for the District, his 
dedication, and his dislike for acronyms. AGM Underwood expressed his appreciation 
for him. 

Jeff Ott (Mr. Ott) expressed that over the years, he has had great conversations with Mr. 
Eubanks and that his contributions to the history of the District has been invaluable.  

Todd Artrip (Mr. Artrip) reminisced on a memory he had of meeting Mr. Eubanks 
around 16 years ago with a leak in his backyard, where he had to use Mr. Eubanks’ 
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jackhammer. He expressed that he felt Mr. Eubanks was a man of his word and truly 
believed in what he said, and that he really appreciated all he has done for the District.  

Julie Nemitz expressed that she has always appreciated that Mr. Eubanks was on the 
side of what he felt was right, and would stand by that, and she felt that spoke to his 
integrity. She expressed that what she admired most was his love for his family.  

Dana Dean (Mr. Dean) expressed that he appreciated Mr. Eubanks’ integrity and noted 
that he was a great example of dedication to civic duty and that he appreciated him.  

Greg Bundesen expressed his appreciation for Mr. Eubanks’ candor and how he 
challenged staff. He also noted how much he appreciated Mr. Eubanks support for 
water conservation over the years.  

Mr. Eubanks expressed how thankful he was for all of the kind words, and that he 
appreciated being appreciated. He expressed that he enjoyed his time at the District and 
that he was glad to know that he made an impact.  

8.5    Del Paso Manor Water District Reorganization Discussion 
GM York presented the staff report.  

Jose Henriquez (Mr. Henriquez), Executive Officer for Sacramento Local Agency 
Formation Commission (LAFCo) provided an explanation of why LAFCo was 
pursuing initiating a dissolution of the Del Paso Manor Water District (DPMWD). He 
expressed that LAFCo was hoping this could be a collaborative process and that they 
will give DPMWD 12 months to address the deficiencies, or consider alternative 
solutions. He additionally pointed out that should DPMWD consider reorganization as 
a solution, there could potentially be grants they would be eligible for to assist with the 
infrastructure restorations, noting that the earlier the applications for those grants are 
submitted, the earlier the funds could be allocated, as it is a first come first serve basis.  

Mr. Henriquez answered clarifying questions.  

Director Wichert moved to direct staff to schedule a Joint Board Meeting with 
DPMWD to initiate potential reorganization discussions between the District and 
DPMWD, intended to be a Board action, and to establish a separate financial category 
for expenditures in pursuit of this effort going forward so we know what the District is 
putting out in support of the organization. Director Boatwright seconded the motion.  

DPMWD Director Gwynne Pratt commented that she was attending the meeting as a 
ratepayer of DPMWD, and supported Director Wichert’s motion, and added that she 
was not interested in seeing a dissolution of the DPMWD, and that she supported 
working with the District to reorganize collaboratively.  
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Adam Coyan, General Manager of DPMWD, thanked the District for the support they 
have provided to DPMWD over the years, and expressed he was in support of seeing a 
voluntary combination of the districts.  

Director Locke was in support of the motion, and further recommended amending the 
motion to include to expedite scheduling a Joint Board Meeting by the first of June if 
possible.  

Directors Wichert and Boatwright both agreed to the amendment.  

Clarifying questions were answered.  

The motion passed by unanimous vote.  

AYES: Boatwright, Locke, Thomas, and Wichert. ABSTAINED:

NOES: RECUSED:

ABSENT: Jones. 

9. Sacramento Suburban Water District and Carmichael Water District 
Collaborative Partnership 
GM York presented the staff report.  

Director Locke provided a summary of the Carmichael Water District’s (CWD) Special 
Board Meeting, noting that it appeared that members of the public were misinformed, 
and that he felt the CWD Board did not articulate a valid reason for a combination of 
the two districts well enough to the public.  

Director Wichert noted that CWD appeared to be interested in preventing the District 
from utilizing their water rights, which he felt was a fatal flaw. He added that he felt 
that a consolidation of the two districts would have resulted in lower rates, which he 
felt was a compelling reason to consolidate.  

Discussion ensued over the Mutual Aid Agreement.  

Director Locke was unclear if CWD’s vote to not collaborate with the District included 
the preexisting Mutual Aid Agreement.  

Director Wichert recommended the Board Presidents of each agency get together to 
discuss the option of another Joint Board Meeting to recertify the Mutual Aid 
Agreement.  

GM York reminded the Board that the Mutual Aid Agreement was already approved 
and in place.  

The majority of the Board was not interested in conducting another Joint Board 
Meeting.  
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President Thomas expressed he would reach out to CWD’s Board President to discuss 
mutual aid.  

10. San Juan Water District and Sacramento Suburban Water District Potential to 
Re-Initiate Combination Discussion 
GM York presented the staff report.  

Paul Helliker expressed that San Juan Water District (SJWD) looked forward to any 
communication from the District.   

The Board expressed they were in support of staff drafting a letter to SJWD in support 
of combination discussions.   

Director Wichert expressed there was not a budget for this discussion, therefore he was 
not in support of it. He additionally pointed out that SJWD had litigation currently 
pending with Citrus Heights Water District and Fair Oaks Water District.  

Tom Gray, General Manager of the Fair Oaks Water District, commented that he was 
curious about clarification over where the discussions left off, as he felt discussions 
were suspended due to the need for further discussion with the SJWD wholesale 
agencies. 

General Manager’s Report 

11. General Manager’s Report 
GM York presented the staff report. 

a. CIP/Sacramento County Environmental Management Department Partnership 
GM York presented the staff report. 

b. Kirby’s Pump and Mechanical Update  
GM York presented the staff report. 

c. Del Paso Manor Water District 
GM York presented the staff report. 

Department/Staff Reports 

12. Groundwater Well Status Report  
Mr. Dean presented the staff report and answered clarifying questions. 

Director Wichert requested further information about the Coyle Well.  

Mr. Dean expressed staff would provide further information about the Coyle Well at a 
future Board meeting.  



2024 - 33 

13. Engineering Report 
Mr. Dean presented the staff report and answered clarifying questions. 

Director Wichert inquired about a stretching program, and requested an update on the 
Groundwater Well Asset Management Plan report and how it is progressing on its 
schedule.  

Staff expressed that they would report back on those two items at a future Board 
meeting.  

a. Major Capital Improvement Program Projects 
A written report was provided. 

b. Planning Documents 
A written report was provided. 

c. Other Projects 
A written report was provided. 

14. Financial Report  
Mr. Ott presented the staff report and answered clarifying questions.  

a. Financial Highlights 
A written report was provided. 

b. Financial Statements  
A written report was provided. 

c. Budgets 
A written report was provided. 

15. District Activity Report  
Mr. Artrip presented the staff report. 

Information Items 

16. ACWA/JPIA Liability, Property, and Workers’ Compensation Risk Review 
Mr. Artrip presented the staff report.  

17. American Water Works Association Competitions 
Mr. Artrip presented the staff report.  

18. Climate Pollution Reduction Grant Program – North Watt Avenue Green Means 
Go 
Mr. Dean presented the staff report.  
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19. Upcoming Water Industry Meetings/Conferences 
A written report was provided. 

20. Upcoming Policy Review  
A written report was provided. 

a. Water Service Charges and Rate Setting Policy (PL – Fin 009) 

b. Technology Use Policy (PL – IT 005) 

Director’s Reports (Per AB 1234, Directors will report on their meeting activities) 

21. a.   Regional Water Authority (Director Wichert) 
The agenda from the March 14, 2024, meeting was provided. 

b. Sacramento Groundwater Authority (Director Boatwright)  
The agenda from the April 11, 2024, meeting was provided. 

c. Director Reports – AB 1234 

Director Thomas provided an oral report of the meeting he had with Director Locke 
on March 1, 2024; the ACWA Regulatory Committee Meeting he attended on 
March 4, 2024; the Meeting he had with the General Manager on March 11, 2024; 
the RWA Board Meeting he attended on March 14, 2024; and the EPA Webinar he 
attended on March 19, 2024.  

Committee Reports 

22. a.   Carmichael Water District/SSWD 2x2 Committee Meeting (Director Locke) 
The Draft Minutes from the March 4, 2024, meeting were provided. 

b. Facilities and Operations Committee Meeting (Director Jones) 
The Draft Minutes from the March 7, 2024, meeting were provided. 

c. Water Banking Committee Meeting 
The Draft Minutes from the March 27, 2024, meeting were provided. 

Director’s Comments/Staff Statements and Requests 
None. 

Adjournment 
President Thomas adjourned the meeting at 7:27 p.m. 

Dan York 
General Manager/Secretary 
Sacramento Suburban Water District 



Agenda Item: 2 

Date: May 20, 2024

Subject: Draft Minutes of the April 29, 2024, Special Board Workshop

Staff Contact: Dan York, General Manager

Recommended Board Action: 
Approve the Draft Minutes of the April 29, 2024, Special Board Workshop. 

Attachment: 
1 – Draft Minutes of the April 29, 2024, Special Board Workshop. 
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Minutes 

Sacramento Suburban Water District 
Special Board Workshop 

April 29, 2024 

Location: 
3701 Marconi Avenue, Sacramento, CA 95821, Audio Conference at 1-669-900-6833, and 

Video Conference using Zoom at Meeting ID #868 0684 5006 

Call to Order 
President Thomas called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. 

Roll Call 
Directors Present:  Jay Boatwright, Dave Jones, Kevin Thomas, Robert Wichert, and Craig 

Locke.  

Directors Absent: None.  

Staff Present: General Manager Dan York, Assistant General Manager Matt Underwood, 
Heather Hernandez-Fort, Dana Dean, Tommy Moulton, Mitchell 
McCarthy, and Mitch Jackson.  

Public Present: None.   

Announcements 
General Manager Dan York announced:  

- A reminder that the Del Paso Manor Water District/Sacramento Suburban Water District 
Joint Board meeting has been scheduled for May 22, 2024.  

Public Comment 
None. 

Items for Discussion and/or Action 

1. Production Capacity Roadmap
Assistant General Manager Matt Underwood (AGM Underwood) introduced the item, 
presented the PowerPoint Presentation and interactive presentation, and answered 
several clarifying questions.  

Director Locke joined the meeting at 4:19 p.m. 

Director Wichert inquired if staff had a recommendation for the Tool’s User Inputs. 

Attachment 1 



2024 - 36 

AGM Underwood expressed that staff have not developed a position yet that they were 
recommending, and that staff would bring additional information to a future Board 
meeting.   

AGM Underwood further expressed that contractor ability to perform maintenance and 
repairs provides significant benefit to higher levels of Well Reliability.   

Director Thomas inquired about property acquisition for new well facilities.   

AGM Underwood expressed that the situation in the South Service Area is acute:  
existence of undeveloped property for purchase by SSWD for replacement capacity 
new wells was in extremely short supply and that consideration of purchase of 
developed sites may be necessary in the near future.    

Adjournment 
President Thomas adjourned the meeting at 5:20 p.m. 

Dan York 
General Manager/Secretary 
Sacramento Suburban Water District 



Agenda Item:  3 

Date: May 20, 2024

Subject: Treasurer’s Report

Staff Contact: Jeffery S. Ott, Director of Finance and Administration

Recommended Board Actions: 
Staff requests the Board of Directors to take the following actions on the items included in the 
Treasurer’s Report. 

1. Ratify the Sacramento Suburban Water District Warrant Register as submitted for the 
period April 1, 2024, through April 30, 2024. 

2. Accept the credit card expenditures listing for the period April 1, 2024, through April 30, 
2024.  

3. Ratify the Investment Activity register for the period April 1, 2024, through April 30, 2024.  

4. Ratify the Quarterly Directors Compensation and Expense Register for 1st Quarter of 2024. 

Background: 
The Treasurer’s Report contains several items required by various Government Code sections and 
Sacramento Suburban Water District (District) policy that need to be presented to the Board of 
Directors (Board) periodically for various actions including ratification, acceptance, or approval. 

Per District Policy PL – Fin 014, Payment of Demands, the Board will ratify all demands for 
payment at the first regular Board Meeting following the month of payment. The Board has also 
requested to receive and file a register of credit card transactions. District policy PL – Fin 003, 
Investment Policy, section 800.00, requires the District Treasurer to report to the Board monthly 
on the investment transactions conducted and regularly on the status of the investment portfolio. 
Government Code Section 53065.5 requires, at a minimum, the annual reporting of 
reimbursements to any employee or member of the governing body. This Treasurer’s Report 
satisfies the requirements of the above listed policies and government code sections for the 
reporting to and ratification of the Board the various financial transactions of the District.   

Discussion: 
Four (4) registers are included for Board review and acceptance or ratification:  

 Cash Expenditures (AP Warrants) Register – April 2024 
 Credit Card Expenditures Register – April 2024 
 Investment Activity Register – April 2024 
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 Directors Compensation and Expense Register – 1st Quarter 2024 

Cash Expenditures (AP Warrants) Register– APRIL 2024 
During the month of April 2024, the District made cash payments totaling $3.8 million. The 
primary expenditures were $1.0 million for debt services, $0.9 million for capital improvement 
projects, $0.7 million for payroll, $0.3 million for pension and health benefits, $0.2 million for 
engineering, construction, contract & financial services, $0.5 for water costs, $0.1 million for 
supplies and inventory, and $0.1 million for all other O&M expenses. Per District Policy PL – Fin 
014, the District Treasurer confirms that the cash expenditures contained in this register conform 
to the approved 2024 Annual Budget. The Cash Expenditures (AP Warrants) Register is included 
as Attachment 1.  

Credit Card Expenditures Register – APRIL 2024 

Per the District’s Purchasing Card Policy (PL – FIN 006), a monthly report detailing each 
purchasing card transaction by cardholder is provided.  

During the month, the District spent $9,207 for various purchases on the six District purchasing 
cards.  Details by vendor and purpose are included in this report as Attachment 2. 

Investment Activity Register – APRIL 2024 
During the month of April 2024, the District purchased two Corporate Notes for $0.3 million (par) 
and one Asset-Backed Security Obligation for $0.3 million (par).  The District sold one U.S. 
Treasury Note for $0.3 million (par). Two Corporate Notes were matured for $0.7 million (par).  
The District also received principal pay downs on thirteen Asset-Backed Security Obligations for 
$0.1 million (par) and four Federal Agency Commercial Mortgages for $1,453 (par).  Details of 
the investment transactions are included as Attachment 3. 

All investments are invested and accounted for in accordance with the District Investment Policy 
(PL - FIN 003) and Government Code. As required by California Government Code 53646, the 
District affirms its ability to meet its pool’s expenditure requirements for the next six months. 

Directors Compensation and Expense Register – 1st Quarter 2024 and YTD 

Director meetings attended for the 1st quarter of 2024 (that Directors have reported to staff and 
have been compensated for attending) and expense reimbursements are attached in accordance 
with the District’s Directors’ Compensation and Expense Reimbursement Policy (PL – BOD 003) 
and Government Code Section 53065.5. Directors who have not reported their meeting attendance 
to District staff are not included in this report and are expected to make an oral report at the Board 
meeting. Director’s Compensation and Expense Register is included with this report as  
Attachment 4. 

Attachments: 
1. Cash Expenditures (AP Warrants) Register – April 2024 
2. Credit Card Expenditures Register – April 2024 
3. Investment Activity Register – April 2024 
4. Directors Compensation and Expense Register – 1st Quarter 2024  



Cash Expenditures 
APRIL 2024 

1



VENDOR PAYMENT NO. DATE AMOUNT

$7,515.33

$220.00

TOTAL $7,735.33

4/25/2024 $1,350.00

TOTAL $1,350.00

4/11/2024 $149.00

TOTAL $149.00

4/11/2024 $675.00

TOTAL $675.00

$4,670.00

$420.00

TOTAL $5,090.00

4/25/2024 $24,456.94

TOTAL $24,456.94

4/3/2024 $181.04

TOTAL $181.04

4/4/2024 $641,410.34

TOTAL $641,410.34

4/19/2024 $2,367.68

TOTAL $2,367.68

4/19/2024 $385.95

TOTAL $385.95

4/17/2024 $798.30

TOTAL $798.30

4/25/2024 $601.27

TOTAL $601.27

4/18/2024 $735.00

TOTAL $735.00

4/3/2024 $42.80

TOTAL $42.80

4/17/2024 $57.95

TOTAL $57.95

4/11/2024 $150.00

TOTAL $150.00

4/11/2024 $44.42

TOTAL $44.42

4/25/2024 $922.79

TOTAL $922.79

4/3/2024 $92.73

TOTAL $92.73

$69.71

$165.65

$139.73

$464.66

TOTAL $839.75

4/17/2024 $140.79

TOTAL $140.79

$15.95

$163.52

TOTAL $179.47

4/11/2024 $2,249.40

TOTAL $2,249.40

4/25/2024 $320.54

TOTAL $320.54

4/11/2024 $711.00

TOTAL $711.00

4/25/2024 $9,326.15

TOTAL $9,326.15

4/11/2024 $356.86

TOTAL $356.86

4/17/2024 $301.00

ARMORCAST PRODUCTS 

COMPANY

85791                ACCRUED PURCHASES - (RECEIVED NOT VOUCHERED)       

AT&T 85682                COMMUNICATION                                      

85756                COMMUNICATION                                      

ANACONDA NETWORKS INC 85819                COMMUNICATION                                      

ANSWERNET 000008620            COMMUNICATION                                      

OFFICE SUPPLIES                                    

OPERATING SUPPLIES                                 

AMERITAS (VISION) 85662                OPEB - RETIREE BENEFITS PREMIUM                    

AMAZON BUSINESS 000008614            OPERATING SUPPLIES                                 

000008627            4/11/2024 BUILDING SERVICE EXPENSE - OFFICE & YARD           

PROJECT:  2023 SCADA NETWORK IMPROVEMENT

OFFICE SUPPLIES                                    

OPERATING SUPPLIES                                 

000008643            OPERATING SUPPLIES                                 

000008660            4/25/2024

ALBA SCOTT 85691                CONSERVATION REBATES                               

ALLIED UNIVERSAL 85685                BUILDING SERVICE EXPENSE - OFFICE & YARD           

85821                BUILDING SERVICE EXPENSE - OFFICE & YARD           

AIR RESOURCES BOARD 85762                ENVIRON COMP -  LICENSES, PERMITS & FEES                           

AIRGAS USA LLC 000008612            OPERATING SUPPLIES                                 

000008641            OPERATING SUPPLIES                                 

ADT 85757                BUILDING SERVICE EXPENSE - OFFICE & YARD           

AFLAC 85797                ACCRUED SUPPLEMENT INSURANCE - AFLAC               

ADP, INC Check & ACHs           PAYROLL

ACH0085640           FINANCIAL SERVICES                                 

ACH0085641           FINANCIAL SERVICES                                 

ACWA JPIA INSURANCE AUTHORITY 85798                ACCRUED WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE            

ACWA JPIA INSURANCE EAP 85615                MISCELLANEOUS EMPLOYEE BENEFITS                    

ACS CONSTRUCTION 000008630            BUILDING MAINTENANCE - OFFICE & YARD               

000008664            4/25/2024 BUILDING MAINTENANCE - OFFICE & YARD               

OPERATING SUPPLIES                                 

A1 FABRICATION & WELDING 85805                FIELD SERV - CONSTRUCTION SERVICES                              

AARON CAUDILLO 85687                TRAVEL CONFERENCES                                 

AP Warrant List  From: 4/1/2024 To: 4/30/2024

DESCRIPTION

A.I. ELECTRIC 85683                4/11/2024 PROJECT:  WELL 55A-ELECTRIC REPAIRS(OPS)

PRODUCTION - CONTRACT SERVICES                                  

Attachment 1
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VENDOR PAYMENT NO. DATE AMOUNT

AP Warrant List  From: 4/1/2024 To: 4/30/2024

DESCRIPTION

TOTAL $301.00

4/25/2024 $1,238.71

TOTAL $1,238.71

4/11/2024 $386.72

TOTAL $386.72

4/3/2024 $1,150.00

TOTAL $1,150.00

4/11/2024 $750.00

TOTAL $750.00

4/25/2024 $9,475.00

TOTAL $9,475.00

4/25/2024 $15,135.62

TOTAL $15,135.62

4/25/2024 $6,780.98

TOTAL $6,780.98

4/11/2024 $3,224.96

TOTAL $3,224.96

4/25/2024 $363.77

TOTAL $363.77

4/3/2024 $411.61

TOTAL $411.61

4/11/2024 $377.13

TOTAL $377.13

$296.74

$18,479.91

TOTAL $18,776.65

4/25/2024 $32,874.53

TOTAL $32,874.53

4/17/2024 $15,331.75

TOTAL $15,331.75

4/25/2024 $187.86

TOTAL $187.86

4/8/2024 $14,724.80

TOTAL $14,724.80

4/10/2024 $2,048.74

TOTAL $2,048.74

4/11/2024 $23.98

TOTAL $23.98

4/10/2024 $144.46

TOTAL $144.46

4/15/2024 $0.57

TOTAL $0.57

$8,883.92

$417.31

$3,881.66

TOTAL $13,182.89

4/17/2024 $602.80

TOTAL $602.80

$220.00

$383.90

TOTAL $603.90

4/25/2024 $6,862.04

TOTAL $6,862.04

4/11/2024 $8,190.00

TOTAL $8,190.00

4/25/2024 $4,050.00

TOTAL $4,050.00

4/25/2024 $2,300.00

TOTAL $2,300.00

4/3/2024 $580.00

TOTAL $580.00

C&D CONTRACTORS INC 85801                FIRE HYDRANT PERMIT DEPOSITS                       

CALCPA 85626                FIN - MEMBERSHIP & DUES                                  

BROWN & CALDWELL 85802                PROJECT:  LEAD COPPER RULE REVI SERV LIN

BURTON ROBB /BURT'S LAWN & 

GARDEN SERVICE

000008617            PRODUCTION - CONTRACT SERVICES                                  

000008646            PRODUCTION - CONTRACT SERVICES                                  

BROWER MECHANICAL 000008637            BUILDING SERVICE EXPENSE - OFFICE & YARD           

000008655            4/25/2024 BUILDING MAINTENANCE - OFFICE & YARD               

BUILDING SERVICE EXPENSE - OFFICE & YARD           

85749                4/17/2024 CONTRACT SERVICES                                  

POSTAGE/SHIPPING/UPS/FED EX                        

COMM OUTREACH - PRINTING                                           

BROADRIDGE MAIL LLC ACH0085470           POSTAGE/SHIPPING/UPS/FED EX                        

ACH0085547           POSTAGE/SHIPPING/UPS/FED EX                        

ACH0085548           POSTAGE/SHIPPING/UPS/FED EX                        

ACH0085549           POSTAGE/SHIPPING/UPS/FED EX                        

ACH0085554           POSTAGE/SHIPPING/UPS/FED EX                        

BARTKIEWICZ KRONICK & 

SHANAHAN

000008632            LEGAL SERVICES                                     

BENDER ROSENTHAL INC 85813                ENGINEERING - CONSULTING SERVICES                                

BADGER METER INC 000008606            INVENTORY

000008616            OPERATING SUPPLIES                                 

000008631            4/17/2024 INVENTORY

INVENTORY

000008645            INVENTORY

AUTOMATION DIRECT 85677                PROJECT:  2023 SCADA NETWORK IMPROVEMENT

BACKFLOW DISTRIBUTORS INC 85804                OPERATING SUPPLIES                                 

AUBURN CONSTRUCTORS 85763                PROJECT:  WELL 84 ANTELOPE/DON JULIO

85764                PROJECT:  WLS 81/82/83 ANTELOPE N./POKER

ATLAS DISPOSAL 85641                BUILDING SERVICE EXPENSE - OFFICE & YARD           

ATLAS FENCE 85627                BUILDING MAINTENANCE - OFFICE & YARD               

85668                PRODUCTION - CONSTRUCTION SERVICES                              

85811                PROJECT:  WELL SITE FENCE/GATE REPAIR

85820                COMMUNICATION                                      
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VENDOR PAYMENT NO. DATE AMOUNT

AP Warrant List  From: 4/1/2024 To: 4/30/2024

DESCRIPTION

4/11/2024 $1,222.00

TOTAL $1,222.00

4/11/2024 $262.00

TOTAL $262.00

4/25/2024 $500.00

TOTAL $500.00

4/11/2024 $184.00

TOTAL $184.00

4/25/2024 $150.00

TOTAL $150.00

4/17/2024 $2,125.00

TOTAL $2,125.00

4/3/2024 $15,287.09

TOTAL $15,287.09

4/11/2024 $186.00

TOTAL $186.00

4/25/2024 $16,029.97

TOTAL $16,029.97

$117.31

$1,231.61

$2,329.18

TOTAL $3,678.10

4/17/2024 $198.96

TOTAL $198.96

$449.64

$708.28

TOTAL $1,157.92

4/11/2024 $24.68

TOTAL $24.68

4/17/2024 $15.03

TOTAL $15.03

4/11/2024 $500.68

TOTAL $500.68

4/25/2024 $500.68

TOTAL $500.68

4/11/2024 $225.00

TOTAL $225.00

4/3/2024 $105.58

TOTAL $105.58

4/17/2024 $105.58

TOTAL $105.58

4/17/2024 $643.52

TOTAL $643.52

4/11/2024 $100.00

TOTAL $100.00

4/25/2024 $784.63

TOTAL $784.63

4/11/2024 $365.75

TOTAL $365.75

4/17/2024 $423.00

TOTAL $423.00

4/25/2024 $4,371.32

TOTAL $4,371.32

4/11/2024 $525.00

TOTAL $525.00

4/11/2024 $44.75

TOTAL $44.75

4/3/2024 $16,769.17

TOTAL $16,769.17

4/17/2024 $13.00DIRECT TV 85746                COMMUNICATION                                      

CULLIGAN 85666                OPERATING SUPPLIES                                 

CUSTOMER REFUNDS Multiple 

Payments

Customer Refunds: 69

CRAIG LOCKE 85810                TRAVEL CONFERENCES                                 

CS WEEK 85678                CUST SERV - TRAVEL CONFERENCES                                 

COTTON SHOPPE 85796                UNIFORMS                                           

COUNTY OF SAC PUBLIC WORKS 85644                PROJECT:  WATT AVE COMPLETE STREETS  PRJ

85737                PROJECT:  WELL 80 WALNUT/AUBURN

CONSOLIDATED 

COMMUNICATIONS

85742                COMMUNICATION                                      

CORDULA MITTERHOFER 85693                CONSERVATION REBATES                               

CLEAR VISION WINDOW CLEANING 85652                BUILDING SERVICE EXPENSE - OFFICE & YARD           

COMCAST 85616                COMMUNICATION                                      

85736                COMMUNICATION                                      

CITY OF SACRAMENTO WATER 85658                PURCHASED WATER-CITY OF SACRAMENTO                 

85803                PURCHASED WATER-CITY OF SACRAMENTO                 

BUILDING MAINTENANCE - OFFICE & YARD               

UNIFORMS                                           

CITY OF SACRAMENTO DEPT OF 

UTILITIES

85655                UTILITIES                                          

85745                UTILITIES                                          

CIGNA-DENTAL INS 85807                EMPLOYEE BENEFIT - DENTAL INSURANCE

CINTAS 85642                4/11/2024 BUILDING MAINTENANCE - OFFICE & YARD               

BUILDING SERVICE EXPENSE - OFFICE & YARD           

UNIFORMS                                           

85735                UNIFORMS                                           

85793                4/25/2024

CHASE PAYMENTECH ACH0085550           CUST SERV - FINANCIAL SERVICES                                 

CHRISTINE BENNETT 85690                CONSERVATION REBATES                               

CARRIE RAMAGE 85825                CONSERVATION REBATES                               

CENTRAL VALLEY ENG & ASPHALT 000008640            BUILDING MAINTENANCE - OFFICE & YARD               

CALIFORNIA UTLITIES EMERG 

ASSOCIATION

85792                FIELD OPS - MEMBERSHIP & DUES                                  

CAPITAL SWEEPER SERVICE 85681                BUILDING SERVICE EXPENSE - OFFICE & YARD           

CALIFORNIA DEPT OF TAX AND FEE 

ADMINISTRATION

85653                FIN - PROPERTY TAXES                                     

CALIFORNIA LABORATORY 

SERVICES

85660                INSPECTION & TESTING                               
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VENDOR PAYMENT NO. DATE AMOUNT

AP Warrant List  From: 4/1/2024 To: 4/30/2024

DESCRIPTION

TOTAL $13.00

4/17/2024 $13,527.50

TOTAL $13,527.50

4/3/2024 $131,420.05

TOTAL $131,420.05

4/3/2024 $510.00

TOTAL $510.00

4/11/2024 $1,515.00

TOTAL $1,515.00

4/11/2024 $25.84

TOTAL $25.84

4/25/2024 $109.79

TOTAL $109.79

4/3/2024 $936.93

TOTAL $936.93

4/17/2024 $10,100.00

TOTAL $10,100.00

4/25/2024 $91.56

TOTAL $91.56

$1,569.00

$28.00

TOTAL $1,597.00

4/3/2024 $2,182.99

TOTAL $2,182.99

4/25/2024 $7.00

TOTAL $7.00

4/11/2024 $17.74

TOTAL $17.74

4/11/2024 $2,766.05

TOTAL $2,766.05

4/3/2024 $523.73

TOTAL $523.73

4/25/2024 $511.26

TOTAL $511.26

4/3/2024 $7,727.22

TOTAL $7,727.22

4/11/2024 $5,747.50

TOTAL $5,747.50

4/3/2024 $500.00

TOTAL $500.00

4/11/2024 $149.00

TOTAL $149.00

4/25/2024 $161.10

TOTAL $161.10

4/3/2024 $354.71

TOTAL $354.71

4/11/2024 $5,553.52

TOTAL $5,553.52

4/11/2024 $40.87

TOTAL $40.87

4/17/2024 $16,500.00

TOTAL $16,500.00

$3,015.12

$103.45

TOTAL $3,118.57

4/25/2024 $426.70

TOTAL $426.70

4/17/2024 $24,316.00

TOTAL $24,316.00

4/25/2024 $120.68

TOTAL $120.68

INVOICE CLOUD INC 85750                CUST SERV - FINANCIAL SERVICES                                 

J&J LOCKSMITH 000008648            BUILDING MAINTENANCE - OFFICE & YARD               

ICONIX WATERWORKS (US) INC 000008629            4/11/2024 PROJECT:  2023 VALVE/HYDRANT/SERV REPL

OPERATING SUPPLIES                                 

000008662            PURCHASE PRICE VARIANCE                            

HECTOR SEGOVIANO 85648                MISCELLANEOUS                                      

HILDEBRAND CONSULTING LLC 85753                FIN - CONSULTING SERVICES - RATE STUDY                                

GREG BUNDESEN 000008658            FIELD OPS - TRAVEL CONFERENCES                                 

HARRINGTON PLASTICS 85618                OPERATING SUPPLIES                                 

85647                INVENTORY

GARY KANE 85635                CONSERVATION REBATES                               

GEREMY MOODY 85656                FIELD OPS - TRAVEL CONFERENCES                                 

FUTURE FORD 85617                VEHICLE MAINTENANCE SERVICES                       

85646                VEHICLE MAINTENANCE SERVICES                       

FLEETWASH INC 000008613            VEHICLE MAINTENANCE SERVICES                       

000008659            VEHICLE MAINTENANCE SERVICES                       

FEDERAL EXPRESS CORPORATION 85645                POSTAGE/SHIPPING/UPS/FED EX                        

FERGUSON WATERWORKS 000008624            INVENTORY

FASTENAL COMPANY 85623                PROJECT:  CONFINED SPACE TRAILER

FASTRAK INVOICE PROCESSING 

DEPARTMENT

85816                TRAVEL CONFERENCES                                 

ERIKA LYNNCROY 85823                CONSERVATION REBATES                               

EUROFINS EATON ANALYTICAL 85663                4/11/2024 PROJECT:  WLS 81/82/83 ANTELOPE N./POKER

INSPECTION & TESTING                               

EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 000008609            EMPLOYMENT COST                                    

ERC CONTRACTING 000008642            PROJECT:  KPM CONTRACT - 2024 TERM 2

EMCOR SERVICES 85671                CONTRACT SERVICES                                  

EMIGH ACE HARDWARE 000008618            OPERATING SUPPLIES                                 

000008647            OPERATING SUPPLIES                                 

DOUG VEERKAMP GENERAL ENGR 000008611            PROJECT:  WATT AVE MAIN REPLACMENT - RETENTION

ELENA GARDUNO 85632                CONSERVATION REBATES                               

DOMENICHELLI & ASSOCIATES 000008633            PROJECT:  Q STREET MAIN REPLACMENT
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VENDOR PAYMENT NO. DATE AMOUNT

AP Warrant List  From: 4/1/2024 To: 4/30/2024

DESCRIPTION

4/17/2024 $2,191.32

TOTAL $2,191.32

4/3/2024 $140.07

TOTAL $140.07

4/3/2024 $500.00

TOTAL $500.00

4/3/2024 $315.00

TOTAL $315.00

4/25/2024 $26,308.83

TOTAL $26,308.83

4/11/2024 $75.00

TOTAL $75.00

4/3/2024 $105.00

TOTAL $105.00

4/25/2024 $59,215.21

TOTAL $59,215.21

4/3/2024 $500.00

TOTAL $500.00

4/11/2024 $282,332.50

TOTAL $282,332.50

4/17/2024 $207,495.91

TOTAL $207,495.91

$60.00

$149.00

TOTAL $209.00

4/11/2024 $3,022.60

TOTAL $3,022.60

4/3/2024 $6,740.46

TOTAL $6,740.46

4/3/2024 $130.50

TOTAL $130.50

4/25/2024 $7,800.00

TOTAL $7,800.00

4/25/2024 $99.99

TOTAL $99.99

4/17/2024 $227.32

TOTAL $227.32

4/3/2024 $500.00

TOTAL $500.00

4/25/2024 $105.00

TOTAL $105.00

4/17/2024 $18,450.00

TOTAL $18,450.00

4/11/2024 $3,425.00

TOTAL $3,425.00

4/17/2024 $585.00

TOTAL $585.00

4/25/2024 $2,350.00

TOTAL $2,350.00

4/17/2024 $325.00

TOTAL $325.00

4/17/2024 $169.00

TOTAL $169.00

4/17/2024 $192.62

TOTAL $192.62

4/11/2024 $768.75

TOTAL $768.75

4/25/2024 $1,753.40

TOTAL $1,753.40

4/11/2024 $194.46

NEW PIG 85799                PRODUCTION - OPERATING SUPPLIES                                 

NINJIO LLC 85680                EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE SERVICES                     

MYFLEETCENTER 85754                VEHICLE MAINTENANCE SERVICES                       

NAVIANT 85679                IT - CONSULTING SERVICES                                

MOBILE-MED WORK HEALTH 

SOLUTIONS INC

85751                MISCELLANEOUS EMPLOYEE BENEFITS                    

MONICA VAZQUEZ 85759                FIELD OPS - TRAVEL CONFERENCES                                 

MAZE & ASSOCIATES 

ACCOUNTANCY CORP

000008644            FIN - AUDIT SERVICES                                     

MICHAEL PHILLIPS LANDSCAPE 

CORP

000008619            BUILDING SERVICE EXPENSE - OFFICE & YARD           

000008634            CONSERVATION - CONTRACT SERVICES                                  

000008650            PRODUCTION - CONTRACT SERVICES                                  

MATTHEW JOHNSON 85636                CONSERVATION REBATES                               

MAYNARD THOMAS FOX 85800                REQUIRED TRAINING                                  

LUKASZ KARBOWNIK 85824                CONSERVATION REBATES                               

MATT UNDERWOOD 85744                MISCELLANEOUS                                      

LIEBERT CASSIDY WHITMORE 85629                OTHER TRAINING                                     

LOEWEN PUMP MAINTENANCE 000008649            PROJECT:  WELL 60 - CONDITION ASSESSMENT

LAW OFFICE OF TOM JOHNSON 85688                LEGAL SERVICES                                     

LES SCHWAB TIRE CENTER 

MADISON

85619                VEHICLE MAINTENANCE SERVICES                       

KYLE JIVIDEN 85806                4/25/2024 DISTRIBUTION - REQUIRED TRAINING                                  

FIELD OPS - TRAVEL CONFERENCES                                 

KEVIN WILSON 85633                CONSERVATION REBATES                               

KIRBY PUMP AND MECHANICAL 85661                PROJECT:  KPM CONTRACT - 2024 TERM 1

85747                PROJECT:  KPM CONTRACT - 2024 TERM 1

JOE CROCKETT 85621                REQUIRED TRAINING                                  

KENNEDY JENKS CONSULTANTS 000008657            PROJECT:  BUTTERBALL SER LINE REPL-MRA5B

JEGO SYSTEMS 85817                PROJECT:  2023 SCADA NETWORK IMPROVEMENT

JENNY KONSTAN 85689                CONSERVATION REBATES                               

JEAN JAMES 85637                CONSERVATION REBATES                               

JEANIE GARDNER 85639                CONSERVATION REBATES                               

JAY BOATWRIGHT 85760                DIRECTOR - TRAVEL CONFERENCES                                 

JAYNE JOO 85634                CONSERVATION REBATES                               
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VENDOR PAYMENT NO. DATE AMOUNT

AP Warrant List  From: 4/1/2024 To: 4/30/2024

DESCRIPTION

TOTAL $194.46

4/11/2024 $317.90

TOTAL $317.90

4/25/2024 $365.98

TOTAL $365.98

4/3/2024 $3,663.14

TOTAL $3,663.14

$4,390.94

$12,709.38

TOTAL $17,100.32

$178.92

$674.18

TOTAL $853.10

$549.05

$97.61

TOTAL $646.66

4/11/2024 $2,587.42

TOTAL $2,587.42

4/4/2024 $2,265.38

TOTAL $2,265.38

4/18/2024 $19,894.38

TOTAL $19,894.38

4/5/2024 $140,862.77

TOTAL $140,862.77

4/5/2024 $1,876.66

TOTAL $1,876.66

4/4/2024 $10,218.87

TOTAL $10,218.87

4/4/2024 $28,085.37

TOTAL $28,085.37

4/4/2024 $18,673.65

TOTAL $18,673.65

4/18/2024 $18,673.65

TOTAL $18,673.65

4/18/2024 $10,218.87

TOTAL $10,218.87

4/18/2024 $28,105.95

TOTAL $28,105.95

4/3/2024 $107.35

TOTAL $107.35

4/11/2024 $203.40

TOTAL $203.40

4/25/2024 $84.75

TOTAL $84.75

4/3/2024 $669.38

TOTAL $669.38

4/11/2024 $1,890.00

TOTAL $1,890.00

4/17/2024 $900.38

TOTAL $900.38

4/25/2024 $7,494.75

TOTAL $7,494.75

4/25/2024 $4,045.04

TOTAL $4,045.04

4/11/2024 $3,504.99

TOTAL $3,504.99

4/17/2024 $40.98

TOTAL $40.98

4/11/2024 $192.87

TOTAL $192.87

4/25/2024 $1,474.02

PIP MARKETING SIGNS PRINT 85672                OPERATING SUPPLIES                                 

85815                BUILDING MAINTENANCE - OFFICE & YARD               

PFM ASSET MANAGEMENT LLC 000008654            FIN - FINANCIAL SERVICES                                 

PG&E 85650                UTILITIES                                          

85738                UTILITIES                                          

PETERSON BRUSTAD INC 85624                PROJECT:  WALNUT TANK CONDITION ASSMNT

85665                PROJECT:  ANTELOPE&WATT/ELKHORN RESERVOI

85748                PROJECT:  MBP DUDLEY PEACEKEEPER MAIN RE

85808                PROJECT:  WELL# N32A-C - WELLS BLENDING

ACH0085645           EMPLOYEE BENEFIT - PERS RETIREMENT

PEST PROS PEST SOLUTIONS 85630                BUILDING SERVICE EXPENSE - OFFICE & YARD           

85670                BUILDING SERVICE EXPENSE - OFFICE & YARD           

85814                BUILDING SERVICE EXPENSE - OFFICE & YARD           

PERS PENSION ACH0085475           EMPLOYEE BENEFIT - PERS RETIREMENT

ACH0085476           EMPLOYEE BENEFIT - PERS RETIREMENT

ACH0085477           EMPLOYEE BENEFIT - PERS RETIREMENT

ACH0085643           EMPLOYEE BENEFIT - PERS RETIREMENT

ACH0085644           EMPLOYEE BENEFIT - PERS RETIREMENT

PERS HEALTH ACH0085471           EMPLOYEE BENEFIT - HEALTH INSURANCE

ACH0085472           OPEB - RETIREE BENEFITS PREMIUM                    

PERS 457 PLAN ACH0085474           ACCRUED DEF COMP, PERS ROTH 457B                   

ACH0085642           ACCRUED DEF COMP, PERS ROTH 457B                   

INVENTORY

INVENTORY

PATRON TRUCKING INC 85673                OPERATING SUPPLIES                                 

PACE SUPPLY CORP 000008610            INVENTORY

000008625            4/11/2024 INVENTORY

INVENTORY

000008639            4/17/2024 INVENTORY

INVENTORY

000008656            4/25/2024

OFFICE DEPOT INC 85649                OFFICE SUPPLIES                                    

85794                OFFICE SUPPLIES                                    
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VENDOR PAYMENT NO. DATE AMOUNT

AP Warrant List  From: 4/1/2024 To: 4/30/2024

DESCRIPTION

TOTAL $1,474.02

4/11/2024 $10,847.61

TOTAL $10,847.61

4/25/2024 $4,917.00

TOTAL $4,917.00

4/17/2024 $660.81

TOTAL $660.81

$16,231.00

$820.93

TOTAL $17,051.93

$21,241.70

$21,587.19

TOTAL $42,828.89

4/17/2024 $17,500.00

TOTAL $17,500.00

4/3/2024 $167.80

TOTAL $167.80

4/3/2024 $427.00

TOTAL $427.00

4/3/2024 $7,090.00

TOTAL $7,090.00

4/11/2024 $1,340.00

TOTAL $1,340.00

4/3/2024 $765.40

TOTAL $765.40

4/3/2024 $300.00

TOTAL $300.00

$150.00

$710.00

TOTAL $860.00

4/25/2024 $2,053.27

TOTAL $2,053.27

4/17/2024 $14,160.45

TOTAL $14,160.45

4/11/2024 $241.05

TOTAL $241.05

4/3/2024 $18.00

TOTAL $18.00

$7.50

$74.23

TOTAL $81.73

4/17/2024 $342,847.12

TOTAL $342,847.12

4/25/2024 $1,008.70

TOTAL $1,008.70

4/11/2024 $679.37

TOTAL $679.37

4/11/2024 $1,577.92

TOTAL $1,577.92

$1,355.00

$3,144.00

$247.80

TOTAL $4,746.80

4/11/2024 $44,570.62

TOTAL $44,570.62

4/17/2024 $74,511.52

TOTAL $74,511.52

4/25/2024 $3,441.07

TOTAL $3,441.07

4/11/2024 $145.46

TOTAL $145.46

SONITROL 000008652            BUILDING SERVICE EXPENSE - OFFICE & YARD           

SUSAN BREECE 85692                CONSERVATION REBATES                               

SMUD 85651                ELECTRICAL CHARGES                                 

85741                ELECTRICAL CHARGES                                 

SIERRA CHEMICAL COMPANY 000008651            4/25/2024 HFA, CHEMICAL & DELIVERY                           

HYPO, CHEMICAL & DELIVERY                          

OPERATING SUPPLIES                                 

SETON 85657                OPERATING SUPPLIES                                 

SHRED-IT STERICYCLE 85664                CONTRACT SERVICES                                  

SAN JUAN WATER DISTRICT 000008635            SURFACE WATER - SAN JUAN TREATMENT COST                    

SENSUS USA INC 000008661            EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE SERVICES                     

SACRAMENTO SUBURBAN WATER 

DISTRICT

85625                PRINTING                                           

85809                4/25/2024 LOCAL TRAVEL COST                                  

TRAVEL CONFERENCES                                 

SAC VALLEY ELECTRIC INC 85752                PROJECT:  MARCONI ELECTRICAL - RETENTION PAYABLE                                  

SACRAMENTO COUNTY UTILITIES 85643                UTILITIES                                          

ROBERT ROSCOE 000008607            OPEB - RETIREE BENEFITS PREMIUM                    

RUE EQUIPMENT INC 85620                EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE SERVICES                     

85740                4/17/2024 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE SERVICES                     

VEHICLE MAINTENANCE SERVICES                       

85795                EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE SERVICES                     

RICOS WINDOW COVERING 

SYSTEMS

85628                BUILDING MAINTENANCE - OFFICE & YARD               

RIVER CITY PAINTING 000008608            BUILDING MAINTENANCE - OFFICE & YARD               

000008623            PRODUCTION - CONTRACT SERVICES                                  

RAWLES ENGINEERING 85739                PROJECT:  2023 VALVE/HYDRANT/SERV REPL

RICHIE SUNGA 85631                UNIFORMS                                           

QUADIENT LEASING USA INC 85755                EQUIPMENT RENTAL/LEASE                             

R&S OVERHEAD DOORS AND 

GATES

000008622            4/11/2024 PROJECT:  NEW GATE & OPERATOR@WATT/ELKH

CONSTRUCTION SERVICES                              

000008638            4/17/2024 PROJECT:  GATE/OPERATOR @ENTERPRISE SITE

PROJECT:  GATE/OPERATOR-ST GATE @ENTERPR

PRO FLOORS INC 85676                PROJECT:  WALNUT CARPET REPLACEMENT

PSOMAS 000008653            CONSULTING SERVICES                                
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VENDOR PAYMENT NO. DATE AMOUNT

AP Warrant List  From: 4/1/2024 To: 4/30/2024

DESCRIPTION

4/11/2024 $7,409.91

TOTAL $7,409.91

4/11/2024 $4,572.00

TOTAL $4,572.00

4/3/2024 $75.00

TOTAL $75.00

4/4/2024 $24,551.21

TOTAL $24,551.21

4/4/2024 $103,981.00

TOTAL $103,981.00

4/4/2024 $859,180.86

TOTAL $859,180.86

4/18/2024 $3,000.00

TOTAL $3,000.00

4/25/2024 $109.59

TOTAL $109.59

4/17/2024 $5,958.47

TOTAL $5,958.47

4/11/2024 $9,206.61

TOTAL $9,206.61

4/8/2024 $5,110.94

TOTAL $5,110.94

4/22/2024 $5,510.94

TOTAL $5,510.94

4/11/2024 $398.07

TOTAL $398.07

4/25/2024 $174.35

TOTAL $174.35

4/3/2024 $2,394.99

TOTAL $2,394.99

4/11/2024 $2,897.00

TOTAL $2,897.00

4/25/2024 $2,151.80

TOTAL $2,151.80

4/11/2024 $1,168.61

TOTAL $1,168.61

4/11/2024 $435.00

TOTAL $435.00

4/25/2024 $4,950.00

TOTAL $4,950.00

4/11/2024 $14,997.54

TOTAL $14,997.54

4/17/2024 $24,581.00

TOTAL $24,581.00

4/16/2024 $4,794.52

TOTAL $4,794.52

4/3/2024 $12,117.82

TOTAL $12,117.82

4/11/2024 $1,244.63

TOTAL $1,244.63

4/11/2024 $5,700.00

TOTAL $5,700.00

4/11/2024 $25.79

TOTAL $25.79

$3,811,289.78

ZORO 85675                OPERATING SUPPLIES                                 

GRAND TOTAL 

WHITE CAP 85686                FIELD OPS - OPERATING SUPPLIES                                 

WOLF CONSULTING 000008628            IT - CONSULTING SERVICES                                

WESTAMERICA BANK ANALYSIS 

FEES

ACH0085647           FIN - FINANCIAL SERVICES                                 

WEX 000008615            MAINT - OPERATING SUPPLIES                                 

WBCP INC 85674                HR - CONSULTING SERVICES                                

WEST YOST & ASSOCIATES 000008636            PROJECT:  WELL 80 WALNUT/AUBURN

WATERWISE CONSULTING, INC. 000008626            CONSERV - CONTRACT SERVICES                                  

WATERWISEPRO TRAINING LLC 85818                PRODUCTION - OTHER TRAINING                                     

WALNUT INDUSTRIAL CENTER LLC 85822                H&D WALNUT PARKING LOT LEASE                       

WASTE MANAGEMENT 000008621            BUILDING SERVICE EXPENSE - OFFICE & YARD           

VERIZON WIRELESS DALLAS TX 85622                COMMUNICATION                                      

85654                COMMUNICATION                                      

VALLEY BATTERY 85669                VEHICLE MAINTENANCE SERVICES                       

85812                VEHICLE MAINTENANCE SERVICES                       

US BANK CORPORATE PAYMENT 

SYSTEM

85659                PURCHASING CARD PAYMENT                       

VALIC AIG ACH0085478           ACCRUED DEF COMP, VALIC ROTH 457B                  

ACH0085646           ACCRUED DEF COMP, VALIC ROTH 457B                  

UBEO BUSINESS SERVICES 000008663            EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE SERVICES                     

UNUM 85758                EMPLOYEE BENEFIT - LTD INSURANCE                   

U.S. BANK NA WIRE85551            ACCRUED INTEREST - 2022B RR BONDS                  

ACH85553             ACCRUED INTEREST - 2018A RR BONDS                  

WIRE0085636          ACCRUED INTEREST - 2022A RR BONDS                  

85761                FIN - FINANCIAL SERVICES                                 

TERESA CARDOZO 85638                CONSERVATION REBATES                               

TAK COMMUNICATIONS CA INC 85684                CONSTRUCTION SERVICES                              

TELSTAR INSTRUMENTS 85667                PRODUCTION - CONTRACT SERVICES                                  
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VENDOR PAYMENT NO. DATE AMOUNT

AP Warrant List  From: 4/1/2024 To: 4/30/2024

DESCRIPTION
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Credit Card Expenditures 
APRIL 2024 

11



Description Proj/GLAcct

ALL STAFF MEETING REFRESHMENTS                                                                                                                        02-51403            

ALL STAFF MEETING REFRESHMENTS                                                                                                                        02-51403            

SAFETY BLUE CARD LOCKER ITEMS                                                                                                                         02-52101            

DAN YORK CAP TO CAP REFUND                                                                                                                            02-55001            

ACRYLICS                                                                                                                                              12-54008            

WAREHOUSE SUPPLIES                                                                                                                                    05-52101            

1099 FILING FORMS                                                                                                                                     03-54503            

TRAINING- BEN HENDERSON                                                                                                                               14-51407            

TRAINING- DAVID ARMAND                                                                                                                                14-51407            

TRAINING-KYLE JIVIDEN                                                                                                                                 05-55001            

TRAINING- JUSTIN MCGOWAN                                                                                                                              05-55001            

TRAINING-AARON CAUDILLO                                                                                                                               05-55001            

TRAINING-MONICA VAZQUEZ                                                                                                                               05-55001            

TRAINING-CHRIS CARTER                                                                                                                                 05-55001            

TRAINING-GEREMY MOODY                                                                                                                                 05-55001            

TRAINING-KYLE JIVIDEN                                                                                                                                 05-55001            

TRAINING-JUSTIN MCGOWAN                                                                                                                               05-55001            

TRAINING-MARK TAYLOR                                                                                                                                  05-55001            

PLUS MEMBERSHIP (03-52501)=$10 

OFFICE SUPPLIES (03-52108)= $117.02                                                                                    

SEE NOTES           

TRAINING-KYLE JIVIDEN                                                                                                                                 05-55001            

TRAINING-JUSTIN MCGOWAN                                                                                                                               05-55001            

WAREHOUSE SUPPLIES                                                                                                                                    05-52101            

TRAINING-RODNEY LEE                                                                                                                                   05-55001            

TRAINING- RODNEY LEE                                                                                                                                  05-55001            

KPM/SAFETY BBQ                                                                                                                                        02-51403            

KPM/SAFETY BBQ                                                                                                                                        02-51403            

KITCHEN/OFFICE SUPPLIES                                                                                                                               03-52108            

WAREHOUSE SUPPLIES                                                                                                                                    05-52101            

KPM/SAFETY BBQ                                                                                                                                        02-51403            

KITCHEN/OFFICE SUPPLIES                                                                                                                               03-52108            

KPM/SAFETY BBQ                                                                                                                                        02-51403            

KPM/SAFETY BBQ                                                                                                                                        02-51403            

KITCHEN/OFFICE SUPPLIES (03-

52108)= $11.84 KPM/SAFETY BBQ (02-

51403)=15.00                                                                            

SEE NOTES           

KITCHEN/OFFICE SUPPLIES                                                                                                                               03-52108            

KPM/SAFETY BBQ                                                                                                                                        02-51403            

KPM/SAFETY BBQ                                                                                                                                        02-51403            

TRAINING-TOM SAWYER & CODY 

SCOTT                                                                                                                      

06-51407            

TRAINING- ALLEN FURR                                                                                                                                  06-51407            EB CVU                                                                                              $500.00

RESTAURANT DEPOT                                                                                    $18.16

SMART & FINAL                                                                                       $48.45

EB CVU                                                                                              $1,000.00

SMART & FINAL                                                                                       $25.25

SMART & FINAL                                                                                       $26.84

SMART & FINAL                                                                                       $129.28

COSTCO                                                                                              $418.55

COSTCO                                                                                              $398.66

SAFEWAY                                                                                             $30.20

RESTAURANT DEPOT                                                                                    $296.23

WALMART                                                                                             $16.60

COSTCO                                                                                              $70.63

CLEVELAND MARRIOTT                                                                                  $1,199.68

SOUTHWEST                                                                                           $471.97

SAMS CLUB                                                                                           $128.14

AWWA                                                                                                $25.00

AWWA                                                                                                $25.00

HOME DEPOT                                                                                          $64.52

EMBASSY SUITES                                                                                      $488.06

EMBASSY SUITES                                                                                      $488.06

SAMS CLUB                                                                                           $127.02

EMBASSY SUITES                                                                                      $488.06

EMBASSY SUITES                                                                                      $488.06

EMBASSY SUITES                                                                                      $488.06

AWWA                                                                                                $35.00

EMBASSY SUITES                                                                                      $488.06

EMBASSY SUITES                                                                                      $488.06

AWWA                                                                                                $50.00

AWWA                                                                                                $50.00

AWWA                                                                                                $35.00

WILSONS                                                                                             $54.38

HOME DEPOT                                                                                          $10.26

EFILE/FORMS                                                                                         $114.30

FOOTHILLS DONUTS                                                                                    $121.54

COSTCO                                                                                              $163.10

CAP TO CAP ISTOURS                                                                                  ($2,345.00)

Sacramento Suburban Water District

US Bank Purchasing Card Program

CalCard Expenditures

April 2024

Vendor Name Amount

WAL-MART # 5962                                                                                     $33.34
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Description Proj/GLAcct

Sacramento Suburban Water District

US Bank Purchasing Card Program

CalCard Expenditures

April 2024

Vendor Name Amount

TRAINING-TOM SAWYER                                                                                                                                   06-51407            

TRAINING- CODY SCOTT                                                                                                                                  06-51407            

TRAINING- ALLEN FURR                                                                                                                                  06-51407            

TRAINING- RODNEY LEE                                                                                                                                  05-55001            

FIELD SERVICES SUPPLIES                                                                                                                               08-52101            

VPN SERVICE TO TEST CYBER 

SECURITY FROM OUTSIDE US (2 

YEARS)                                                                                          

18-53503            

GATE REMOTES                                                                                                                                          18-52101            

DEWALT 1/2 INCH RATCHET FOR 

TRUCK 73                                                                                                                  

12-52101            

FURNITURE DOLLIES FOR CARPET 

REPLACE AT WALNUT                                                                                                        

12-52101            

Totals:

HARBOR FREIGHT                                                                                      $38.76

$9,206.61

NORDVPN                                                                                             $81.36

N. SHORE COMM DOOR $365.25

HOME DEPOT                                                                                          $219.75

SOUTHWEST                                                                                           $299.96

TRIMBLE                                                                                             $800.00

HARBOR FREIGHT                                                                                      $43.09

SOUTHWEST                                                                                           $299.96

SOUTHWEST                                                                                           $299.96
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PFM Asset Management

SACRAMENTO SUBURBAN WATER DISTRICT

Transaction 

Type Trade Date Settlement Date

Maturity 

Date CUSIP

Security 

Description

S&P 

Rating

Coupon 

Rate  Par 

 Principal 

Proceeds 

 Accrued 

Interest 

 Total 

Amount 

BUY 04/01/2024 04/04/2024 04/04/2029 00724PAF6 ADOBE INC CORP NOTES (CALLABLE)A+ 4.8 150,000.00 (149,776.50) - (149,776.50)

BUY 04/02/2024 04/04/2024 04/04/2029 00724PAF6 ADOBE INC CORP NOTES (CALLABLE)A+ 4.8 125,000.00 (124,835.00) - (124,835.00)

BUY 04/16/2024 04/23/2024 04/16/2029 02582JKH2 AMXCA 2024-1 A AAA 5.23 315,000.00 (314,935.43) - (314,935.43)

BUY Total 590,000.00 (589,546.93) - (589,546.93)

INTEREST 04/01/2024 04/01/2024 MONEY0002MONEY MARKET FUND 0 - - 11,909.37 11,909.37

INTEREST 04/01/2024 04/25/2024 09/01/2028 3137HAST4 FHMS K509 A2 AA+ 4.85 280,000.00 - 1,131.67 1,131.67

INTEREST 04/01/2024 04/25/2024 03/01/2027 3137BXQY1 FHMS K064 A2 AA+ 3.224 375,000.00 - 1,007.50 1,007.50

INTEREST 04/01/2024 04/25/2024 06/01/2028 3137HAD45 FHMS KJ46 A1 AA+ 4.777 298,659.84 - 1,188.92 1,188.92

INTEREST 04/01/2024 04/25/2024 12/01/2024 3137BGK24 FHMS K043 A2 AA+ 3.062 269,643.87 - 688.04 688.04

INTEREST 04/01/2024 04/25/2024 10/01/2028 3137HB3G7 FHMS K511 A2 AA+ 4.86 210,000.00 - 850.50 850.50

INTEREST 04/01/2024 04/25/2024 12/01/2028 3137HBLV4 FHMS K514 A2 AA+ 4.572 215,000.00 - 819.15 819.15

INTEREST 04/01/2024 04/25/2024 08/01/2026 3137BSP72 FHMS K058 A2 AA+ 2.653 450,000.00 - 994.88 994.88

INTEREST 04/01/2024 04/25/2024 11/01/2026 3137BTUM1 FHMS K061 A2 AA+ 3.347 258,083.35 - 719.84 719.84

INTEREST 04/01/2024 04/25/2024 04/01/2027 3137F1G44 FHLMC MULTIFAMILY STRUCTURED PAA+ 3.243 375,000.00 - 1,013.44 1,013.44

INTEREST 04/01/2024 04/25/2024 07/01/2028 3136BQDE6 FNA 2023-M6 A2 AA+ 4.19 375,000.00 - 1,309.38 1,309.38

INTEREST 04/01/2024 04/25/2024 05/01/2028 3137HBC69 FHMS KJ48 A1 AA+ 4.858 298,739.00 - 1,209.40 1,209.40

INTEREST 04/01/2024 04/25/2024 10/01/2028 3137HB3D4 FHMS K510 A2 AA+ 5.069 135,000.00 - 570.26 570.26

INTEREST 04/01/2024 04/25/2024 01/01/2026 3137BNGT5 FHMS K054 A2 AA+ 2.745 200,000.00 - 457.50 457.50

INTEREST 04/01/2024 04/25/2024 09/01/2028 3137HAMS2 FHMS K507 A2 AA+ 4.8 375,000.00 - 1,500.00 1,500.00

INTEREST 04/01/2024 04/25/2024 08/01/2028 3137HAQ74 FHMS K508 A2 AA+ 4.74 375,000.00 - 1,481.25 1,481.25

INTEREST 04/01/2024 04/25/2024 08/01/2028 3137HAMH6FHMS K506 A2 AA+ 4.65 575,000.00 - 2,228.13 2,228.13

INTEREST 04/01/2024 04/25/2024 06/01/2028 3137HACX2 FHMS K505 A2 AA+ 4.819 375,000.00 - 1,505.94 1,505.94

INTEREST 04/13/2024 04/13/2024 04/13/2025 023135CE4 AMAZON.COM INC CORPORATE NOTESAA 3 200,000.00 - 3,000.00 3,000.00

INTEREST 04/14/2024 04/14/2024 04/14/2025 3130AJHU6 FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK NOTESAA+ 0.5 450,000.00 - 1,125.00 1,125.00

INTEREST 04/15/2024 04/15/2024 01/15/2027 161571HV9 CHAIT 2024-A1 A AAA 4.6 350,000.00 - 1,341.67 1,341.67

INTEREST 04/15/2024 04/15/2024 02/17/2026 14314QAC8 CARMX 2021-2 A3 AAA 0.52 40,916.92 - 17.73 17.73

INTEREST 04/15/2024 04/15/2024 05/15/2028 05522RDG0 BACCT 2023-A1 A1 AAA 4.79 135,000.00 - 538.88 538.88

INTEREST 04/15/2024 04/15/2024 10/15/2025 65480BAC1 NAROT 2021-A A3 AAA 0.33 131,623.88 - 36.20 36.20

INTEREST 04/15/2024 04/15/2024 04/15/2027 14318MAD1 CARMX 2022-3 A3 AAA 3.97 300,000.00 - 992.50 992.50

INTEREST 04/15/2024 04/15/2024 09/15/2028 02582JKD1 AMXCA 2023-3 A AAA 5.23 330,000.00 - 1,438.25 1,438.25

INTEREST 04/15/2024 04/15/2024 09/15/2026 14044CAC6 COPAR 2021-1 A3 AAA 0.77 76,288.55 - 48.95 48.95

INTEREST 04/15/2024 04/15/2024 05/15/2028 02582JJZ4 AMXCA 2023-1 A AAA 4.87 150,000.00 - 608.75 608.75

INTEREST 04/15/2024 04/15/2024 06/15/2026 14317DAC4 CARMX 2021-3 A3 AAA 0.55 127,484.36 - 58.43 58.43

INTEREST 04/15/2024 04/15/2024 09/15/2025 44933LAC7 HART 2021-A A3 AAA 0.38 14,980.13 - 4.74 4.74

INTEREST 04/15/2024 04/15/2024 07/15/2026 14041NFW6 COMET 2021-A1 A1 AAA 0.55 415,000.00 - 190.21 190.21

INTEREST 04/15/2024 04/15/2024 11/17/2025 89190GAC1 TAOT 2021-B A3 AAA 0.26 126,794.06 - 27.47 27.47

Managed Account Security Transactions & Interest
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PFM Asset Management

SACRAMENTO SUBURBAN WATER DISTRICT

Transaction 

Type Trade Date Settlement Date

Maturity 

Date CUSIP

Security 

Description

S&P 

Rating

Coupon 

Rate  Par 

 Principal 

Proceeds 

 Accrued 

Interest 

 Total 

Amount 

Managed Account Security Transactions & Interest

INTEREST 04/15/2024 04/15/2024 02/15/2029 92970QAA3 WFCIT 2024-A1 A AAA 4.94 400,000.00 - 2,415.11 2,415.11

INTEREST 04/15/2024 04/15/2024 04/15/2025 437076CM2 HOME DEPOT INC (CALLABLE) CORPORATE NOTEA 2.7 35,000.00 - 472.50 472.50

INTEREST 04/15/2024 04/15/2024 09/15/2026 254683CP8 DCENT 2021-A1 A1 AAA 0.58 250,000.00 - 120.83 120.83

INTEREST 04/15/2024 04/15/2024 05/15/2026 44935FAD6 HART 2021-C A3 AAA 0.74 53,219.85 - 32.82 32.82

INTEREST 04/15/2024 04/15/2024 08/15/2025 14316HAC6 CARMX 2020-4 A3 AAA 0.5 10,105.80 - 4.21 4.21

INTEREST 04/15/2024 04/15/2024 12/15/2025 14316NAC3 CARMX 2021-1 A3 AAA 0.34 11,188.08 - 3.17 3.17

INTEREST 04/15/2024 04/15/2024 04/15/2028 931142FB4 WALMART INC CORPORATE NOTES (CALLABLE)AA 3.9 320,000.00 - 6,240.00 6,240.00

INTEREST 04/16/2024 04/16/2024 08/18/2025 36260KAC8 GMCAR 2020-4 A3 AAA 0.38 3,748.84 - 1.19 1.19

INTEREST 04/16/2024 04/16/2024 06/16/2026 380140AC7 GMCAR 2021-3 A3 AAA 0.48 71,938.83 - 28.78 28.78

INTEREST 04/16/2024 04/16/2024 09/16/2026 362554AC1 GMCAR 2021-4 A3 AAA 0.68 64,263.45 - 36.42 36.42

INTEREST 04/20/2024 04/20/2024 01/20/2027 92868AAD7 VWALT 2022-A A4 NR 3.65 145,000.00 - 441.04 441.04

INTEREST 04/21/2024 04/21/2024 06/21/2028 438123AC5 HAROT 2023-4 A3 NR 5.67 70,000.00 - 330.75 330.75

INTEREST 04/21/2024 04/21/2024 01/21/2026 43815GAC3 HAROT 2021-4 A3 NR 0.88 70,635.29 - 51.80 51.80

INTEREST 04/22/2024 04/22/2024 04/22/2025 3135G03U5 FANNIE MAE NOTESAA+ 0.625 450,000.00 - 1,406.25 1,406.25

INTEREST 04/24/2024 04/24/2024 10/24/2024 06406RAL1 BANK OF NY MELLON CORPA 2.1 150,000.00 - 1,575.00 1,575.00

INTEREST 04/30/2024 04/30/2024 04/30/2026 91282CBW0 US TREASURY NOTESAA+ 0.75 400,000.00 - 1,500.00 1,500.00

INTEREST 04/30/2024 04/30/2024 04/30/2027 91282CEN7 US TREASURY NOTESAA+ 2.75 1,100,000.00 - 15,125.00 15,125.00

INTEREST Total 11,893,314.10 - 57,889.45 57,889.45

MATURITY 04/26/2024 04/26/2024 04/26/2024 06406RAS6 BANK OF NY MELLON CORP NOTES (CALLABLE)A 0.5 365,000.00 365,000.00 912.50 365,912.50

MATURITY 04/29/2024 04/29/2024 04/29/2024 61746BDQ6 MORGAN STANLEY CORP NOTESA- 3.875 375,000.00 375,000.00 7,265.63 382,265.63

MATURITY Total 740,000.00 740,000.00 8,178.13 748,178.13

PAYDOWNS 04/01/2024 04/25/2024 05/01/2028 3137HBC69 FHMS KJ48 A1 AA+ 4.858 351.95 351.95 - 351.95

PAYDOWNS 04/01/2024 04/25/2024 11/01/2026 3137BTUM1 FHMS K061 A2 AA+ 3.347 491.97 491.97 - 491.97

PAYDOWNS 04/01/2024 04/25/2024 06/01/2028 3137HAD45 FHMS KJ46 A1 AA+ 4.777 156.90 156.90 - 156.90

PAYDOWNS 04/01/2024 04/25/2024 12/01/2024 3137BGK24 FHMS K043 A2 AA+ 3.062 452.37 452.37 - 452.37

PAYDOWNS 04/15/2024 04/15/2024 12/15/2025 14316NAC3 CARMX 2021-1 A3 AAA 0.34 2,119.49 2,119.49 - 2,119.49

PAYDOWNS 04/15/2024 04/15/2024 06/15/2026 14317DAC4 CARMX 2021-3 A3 AAA 0.55 10,907.63 10,907.63 - 10,907.63

PAYDOWNS 04/15/2024 04/15/2024 09/15/2026 14044CAC6 COPAR 2021-1 A3 AAA 0.77 6,179.80 6,179.80 - 6,179.80

PAYDOWNS 04/15/2024 04/15/2024 10/15/2025 65480BAC1 NAROT 2021-A A3 AAA 0.33 18,203.60 18,203.60 - 18,203.60

PAYDOWNS 04/15/2024 04/15/2024 09/15/2025 44933LAC7 HART 2021-A A3 AAA 0.38 4,132.15 4,132.15 - 4,132.15

PAYDOWNS 04/15/2024 04/15/2024 11/17/2025 89190GAC1 TAOT 2021-B A3 AAA 0.26 18,615.96 18,615.96 - 18,615.96

PAYDOWNS 04/15/2024 04/15/2024 08/15/2025 14316HAC6 CARMX 2020-4 A3 AAA 0.5 5,400.30 5,400.30 - 5,400.30

PAYDOWNS 04/15/2024 04/15/2024 05/15/2026 44935FAD6 HART 2021-C A3 AAA 0.74 5,416.88 5,416.88 - 5,416.88

PAYDOWNS 04/15/2024 04/15/2024 02/17/2026 14314QAC8 CARMX 2021-2 A3 AAA 0.52 5,729.27 5,729.27 - 5,729.27

PAYDOWNS 04/16/2024 04/16/2024 08/18/2025 36260KAC8 GMCAR 2020-4 A3 AAA 0.38 3,748.84 3,748.84 - 3,748.84
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PFM Asset Management

SACRAMENTO SUBURBAN WATER DISTRICT

Transaction 

Type Trade Date Settlement Date

Maturity 

Date CUSIP

Security 

Description

S&P 

Rating

Coupon 

Rate  Par 

 Principal 

Proceeds 

 Accrued 

Interest 

 Total 

Amount 

Managed Account Security Transactions & Interest

PAYDOWNS 04/16/2024 04/16/2024 09/16/2026 362554AC1 GMCAR 2021-4 A3 AAA 0.68 5,063.23 5,063.23 - 5,063.23

PAYDOWNS 04/16/2024 04/16/2024 06/16/2026 380140AC7 GMCAR 2021-3 A3 AAA 0.48 7,185.32 7,185.32 - 7,185.32

PAYDOWNS 04/21/2024 04/21/2024 01/21/2026 43815GAC3 HAROT 2021-4 A3 NR 0.88 6,364.69 6,364.69 - 6,364.69

PAYDOWNS Total 100,520.35 100,520.35 - 100,520.35

SELL 04/16/2024 04/23/2024 07/31/2026 91282CCP4 US TREASURY NOTESAA+ 0.625 325,000.00 295,483.40 463.17 295,946.57

SELL Total 325,000.00 295,483.40 463.17 295,946.57

Grand Total 546,456.82 78,440.12 624,896.94
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Directors Compensation and Expense Accounting 
First Quarter 2024 
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 Directors Expense Report
Calendar Year 2024

Event/Purpose - 1st Quarter Jones Locke Boatwright Thomas Wichert Total

Local Meeting Expenses & Mileage -
  Reimbursed by District 81.07 81.07
  Paid Directly by District -

-
Conferences -
  Reimbursed by District 3,072.51 3,214.91 6,287.42
  Paid Directly by District 3,125.45 840.00 3,965.45

Total 3,125.45 3,072.51 4,135.98 - - 10,333.94

Event/Purpose - 2nd Quarter Jones Locke Boatwright Thomas Wichert Total

Local Meeting Expenses & Mileage -
  Reimbursed by District -
  Paid Directly by District -

-
Conferences -
  Reimbursed by District -
  Paid Directly by District -

Total - - - - - -

Event/Purpose - 3rd Quarter Jones Locke Boatwright Thomas Wichert Total

Local Meeting Expenses & Mileage -
  Reimbursed by District -
  Paid Directly by District -

-
Conferences -
  Reimbursed by District -
  Paid Directly by District -

Total - - - - - -

Event/Purpose - 4th Quarter Jones Locke Boatwright Thomas Wichert Total

Local Meeting Expenses & Mileage -
  Reimbursed by District -
  Paid Directly by District -

-
Conferences -
  Reimbursed by District -
  Paid Directly by District -

Total - - - - - -

 Directors Expense Report

2024 Year to Date

Event/Purpose Jones Locke Boatwright Thomas Wichert Total

Local Meeting Expenses & Mileage -
  Reimbursed by District - - 81.07 - - 81.07
  Paid Directly by District - - - - - -

-
Conferences -
  Reimbursed by District - 3,072.51 3,214.91 - - 6,287.42
  Paid Directly by District 3,125.45 - 840.00 - - 3,965.45

-
  Refunded by Director -
  Refunded Directly by Vendor -

Total 3,125.45 3,072.51 4,135.98 - - 10,333.94

This report meets the reporting requirements of Government Code sections 53065.5 and 53232.3 and is in conformance with District Policy.
Per section 300.10 of the Director's Compensation and Expense Reimbursement Policy (PL-BOD003), a Director's total annual reimburseable
expenses, excluding registration fees, may not exceed $10,000.00.
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Meeting 

Date
Meeting

Payroll 

Date 
K. Thomas Payroll Date C. Locke

Payroll 

Date 
D. Jones Payroll Date J. Boatwright R. Wichert

1/9/2024 Chromium in Drinking Water, Webinar 2/23/2024 X

1/9/2024 DPMWD Board Meeting 2/23/2024 X

1/12/2024 Cap to Cap Meeting 2/9/2024 X 2/23/2024 X

1/16/2024 ACWA SGMA Implementation Board 2/9/2024 X

1/16/2024 Carmichael WD Board Meeting 2/23/2024 X

1/17/2024 California Water Commission Strategies for protection during drought 2/9/2024 X

1/17/2024 Aerojet CAG 2/23/2024 X

1/17/2024 Meeting with GM, Dan York 2/23/2024 X

1/18/2024 RWA Board Meeting 2/9/2024 X 2/23/2024 X

1/18/2024 Meeting with GM, Dan York 2/23/2024 X

1/19/2024 Meet with GM, Dan York 2/9/2024 X 3/8/2024 X

1/20/2024 Meet with Director Thomas 2/9/2024 X

1/20/2024 Meeting with Director Locke 2/23/2024 X

1/22/2024 SSWD Board Meeting 2/23/2024 X 2/9/2024 X 3/8/2024 X

1/22/2024 SSWD Finance Committee /Regular Board Meeting 2/23/2024 X

1/24/2024 CWD Workshop 2/9/2024 X 3/8/2024 X 2/23/2024 X

1/25/2024 Meet with Director Nelson and Selsky 2/9/2024 X

1/26/2024 Meet with GM, Dan York 2/9/2024 X

1/30/2024 SSWD Workshop X

1/30/2024 Get the Lead Out! Webinar 2/23/2024 X

1/30/2024 LAFCo SDAC 2/23/2024 X

1/31/2024 Testimony on Drinking Water Systems Cybersecurity X

1/31/2024 SSWD Special Workshop re: Combination with CWD 2/23/2024 X 3/8/2024 X 2/23/2024 X

2/1/2024 Testimony on Drinking Water Systems Cybersecurity 3/8/2024 X

2/2/2024 Meet with Director Nelson CWD/SSWD workshop Hot Wash 3/8/2024 X

2/5/2024 Ethics Training 3/8/2024 X

2/6/2024 Harassment Training 3/8/2024 X

2/6/2024 DPMWD Meeting 3/8/2024 X

2/6/2024 Arden Arcade Rotary Presentation with Dan and Cathy 3/8/2024 X

2/8/2024 SGA Meeting 3/22/2024 X 3/8/2024 X

2/8/2024 SGA Board Meeting 3/8/2024 X

2/16/2024 Meeting with GM, Dan York and CWD GM 3/22/2024 X

2/20/2024 ACWA Webinar on Micro Plastics 3/22/2024 X

2/20/2024 Meeting with GM, Dan York 3/8/2024 X

2/20/2024
Meet with GM, Dan York, ACWA Groundwater Quality Committee 

Meeting re; Microplastics
3/8/2024 X

2/21/2024 Director Selsky Debrief 3/8/2024 X

2/21/2024 E Sacramento Rotary Presentation 3/8/2024 X

2/22/2024 Webinar Achieving Net Zero 3/22/2024 X

2/23/2024 Cap to Cap Meeting 3/8/2024 X 3/8/2024 X

2/23/2024 Meet with GM, Dan York 3/22/2024 X 3/8/2024 X

2/26/2024 February Board Meeting 3/22/2024 X 3/8/2024 X 3/8/2024 X 3/8/2024 X

2/28/2024 SJWD Meeting 3/22/2024 X 3/8/2024 X

3/1/2024 Meeting with Locke and Nelson 4/19/2024 X

3/4/2021 CWD 2X2 4/19/2024 X 4/19/2024 X 4/19/2024 X 4/19/2024 X

3/5/2024 Recap 2X2 and Joint Board Meeting 4/19/2024 X

3/5/2024 CWD Rotary Presentation 4/19/2024 X

3/5/2024 CA Water Boards Racial Equity Action Plan 2023 Annual Update 4/19/2024 X

3/6/2024 Special Board meeting ACWA Water Quality / Energy Committee 4/19/2024 X 4/19/2024 X 4/19/2024 X

3/7/2024 F&O Committee 4/19/2024 X 4/19/2024 X 4/19/2024 X

3/8/2024 NACWA in Chico 4/19/2024 X

3/11/2024 Meet with GM, Dan York 4/19/2024 X

3/13/2024 Meet with GM, Dan York 4/19/2024 X 4/19/2024 X

3/14/2024 RWA Board Meeting 4/19/2024 X 4/19/2024 X 4/19/2024 X

3/15/2024 OWP Safe Drinking water for disadvantaged communities 4/19/2024 X

3/18/2024 SSWD Board Meeting 4/19/2024 X 4/19/2024 X 4/19/2024 X 4/19/2024 X

3/19/2024 Webinar EPH Effects of Wild Fireson Air and Water Quality 4/19/2024 X

3/19/2024 State Water Board Meeting 4/19/2024 X

3/22/2024 Cap to Cap Planning Meeting 4/19/2024 X 4/19/2024 X

3/25/2024 SGA Budget Committee 4/19/2024 X

3/26/2024 CWD Meeting 4/19/2024 X 4/19/2024 X 4/19/2024 X

3/27/2024 Water Banking ASCE Symposium / Subcommittee 4/19/2024 X X X

3/28/2024 Director Nelson - Boatwright CWD Review X

3/28/2024 Civil Engineers Symposium 4/19/2024 X

1st Quarter Total Paid 23 3,128.00$  28 3,808.00$    17 2,312.00$  24 3,264.00$        -$          

1st Quarter:  1/1/2024 - 3/31/2024

Sacramento Suburban Water District

Board of Directors Meeting Attended - Calender Year 2024

Pay Rate per Diem is $136.00
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Agenda Item:  4 

Date: May 20, 2024

Subject: Policy Review – Water Service Rates, Fees and Charges Setting Policy (PL – 
Fin 009)

Staff Contact: Jeffery Ott, Director of Finance and Administration

Recommended Board Action: 
Ratify the Water Service Rates, Fees and Charges Setting Policy (PL – Fin 009) without changes 
and change the review period from one year to five years to coincide with rate or fee and charges 
studies.  

Background: 
The Water Service Rates, Fees and Charges Setting Policy (PL – Fin 009) (Policy) was adopted 
by the Board of Directors (Board) September 15, 2014, and was last reviewed by the Board on 
April 17, 2023, without changes. On April 22, 2024, the Water Service Rates, Fees and Charges 
Setting Policy (PL – Fin 009) was brought to the Board for its scheduled review.  No comments 
from the Board have been received to date.   

This Policy was reviewed by legal counsel for this update. 

Discussion: 
Staff recommends ratifying the Policy without changes.  A clean version (Attachment 1) is 
included for reference.   

In addition, at the September 18, 2023, regular Board meeting, the Board approved an updated 
Policy Review Schedule (Schedule), which provides an opportunity for staff to recommend a 
different review period for policies when they are brought forward for Board review than what is 
listed on the Schedule.  The Water Service Rates, Fees and Charges Setting Policy is currently 
listed for review every year on the Schedule and does require legal review. Staff is recommending 
that the review period be updated to every five (5) years to coincide with scheduled rate studies. 
As the District does not perform rate studies on an annual basis, reviews would best be performed 
just prior to a rate or fee and charges study.  

If the Board approves of the updated review period of five (5) years, the Policy and the Schedule 
will be updated to reflect this change.  

Fiscal Impact:
There is no fiscal impact related to the changes in this Policy.  
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Policy Review – Water Service Rates, Fees and Charges Setting Policy (PL – Fin 009) 
May 20, 2024 
Page 2 of 2 

Strategic Plan Alignment:
Goal C: Ensure Fiscal Responsibility and Affordable Rates 

Attachment: 
1 –Water Service Rates, Fees and Charges Setting Policy (PL – Fin 009) – clean 



Attachment 1 
PL - Fin 009 

Water Service Rates, Fees, and Charges Setting Policy Page 1 of 3 

Sacramento Suburban Water District 

 Water Service Rates, Fees, and Charges Setting Policy 

Adopted: September 15, 2014 
Ratified without Changes: May 20, 2024 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

100.00 Purpose of the Policy 
The Sacramento Suburban Water District is required to establish water service rates, 
fees, and charges that reflect the costs of providing the services rendered and that are 
fair, equitable, and defensible. The basis for establishing water service rates, fees, and 
charges has traditionally been cost-of-service principles and methodologies.1 Under 
principles established in California law, the District can take into account factors such 
as conservation, water use efficiency, ability to pay, and accrual of prudent reserves 
when determining the costs of providing District water service. California law, 
however, also imposes certain legal constraints on setting water service rates, fees and 
charges pursuant to Propositions 218 and Proposition 26 (Articles XIII C and XIII D 
of the California State Constitution), the Proposition 218 Omnibus Implementation Act 
(Government Code sections 53750 and following), and the Mitigation Fee Act 
(Government Code sections 66000 and following). Therefore, this policy has been 
developed to provide guidance for District financial planning and the rate-setting 
process for the Board of Directors and staff. This policy also provides a foundation for 
the long-term financial sustainability of the District, while providing ratepayers and the 
outside financial community with a better understanding of how District water rates, 
fees, and charges are determined.  

200.00 Policy 
The District’s water service rates, fees, and charges will be reviewed annually to 
confirm sufficient funding and to assess the need for adjustments to reflect inflation, 
construction needs, maintain bond covenants, and/or to avoid major rate adjustments 
resulting from the lack of regular analysis and planning.  

200.10  Water Service Rates. The District will establish water service rates using generally 
accepted rate-setting and costing methodologies, which includes compliance with 
applicable legal requirements including Proposition 218 and the Proposition 218 
Omnibus Implementation Act. The analyses associated with generally accepted rate-
setting methodologies include the following:  

A. Revenue Requirement Analysis – Establishes the level of financial resources 
required to prudently administer District operations and programs, and to 
maintain, repair, improve, and replace District water service facilities. In 

1 Generally-accepted cost-of-service principles and methodologies are defined and discussed in the American Water 
Works Association’s M-1 Manual, Principles of Water Rates, Fees, and Charges. 
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developing the District’s revenue requirement for current and forecasted future 
operations of the District, the District will consider the following: 

1. Revenue requirements, including anticipated external funding will 
include all District programs, operations, and maintenance expenses, 
applicable taxes/transfer payments, debt service (P&I), and capital 
improvements funded from rates. 

2. Revenues and costs will be projected annually, at a minimum, for a three- 
year period (the proposed budget year plus two additional projected 
years).  

3. Projections of operations and maintenance (O&M) costs should include 
any estimated incremental O&M costs associated with increased service 
levels or future capital improvements. 

4. Annually, the District will fund, through its water service rates, fees, and 
charges, an amount to adequately maintain the existing infrastructure of 
the District. The District will fund selected capital projects based on the 
District’s Capital Asset Replacement Management Plans and the Water 
System Master Plan.  

5. The level of any proposed increase in rates, fees, or charges will be based 
on the full cost of providing water service to retail and wholesale 
customers.  

B. Cost of Service Analysis – Determines the equitable allocation of the revenue 
requirement between the various customer groups. 

1. When possible, a cost of service study will be utilized to equitably 
allocate District costs to the various customer classes. 

2. The District will utilize generally-accepted methodologies in this 
analysis, but will also consider the specific circumstances and unique 
characteristics of the District.  

C. Rate Design Analysis – The District will design rates to collect the required level 
of revenue taking into consideration the following: 

1. Rate designs will be reflective of the customers served, District needs, 
and the policy goals set by the Board of Directors.  

2. Rates will be set to recover the costs of delivering water to different 
customer classes (e.g. single family, multi-family, or commercial). 

3. Rates will be designed to be equitable for the service provided.  
4. Rates will be set in a manner that is easy for customers to understand and 

for the District to administer. 
5. It shall be the policy of the Board of Directors to set rates at the lowest 

responsible level.  
6. If revenue generated exceeds planned expenditures, including planned 

reserve requirements, rates can be reduced by the Board of Directors. 

200.20 Fee and Charge Analysis. The District maintains various fees and charges to recover 
the costs of providing certain services or facilities to specific customers or users. Fees 
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and charges must comply with applicable legal requirements, including Proposition 
26 and the Mitigation Fee Act.  A fee or charge will be developed when a specific 
customer or user can be identified, the amount of the fee and the service for which it 
is being charged can be determined with reasonable accuracy, and it is necessary to 
encourage or discourage certain behavior.  The District will set fees and charges that 
reflect the goals, objectives, and policies of the Board of Directors and take into 
consideration the following principles: 

1. Beneficiaries of a service should pay for that service. 
2. Services provided for the benefit of a specific individual or class 

requiring District services other than ordinary water service should not be 
paid from general water rate revenues to avoid subsidies from ratepayers 
for special benefits. 

3. The level of fees and charges should be related to the cost of providing 
the service consistent with legal requirements. 

300.00 Revenue Diversification 
The District has limited ability for revenue diversification. Where possible, the District 
will explore additional revenue sources such as water banking, water transfers, and 
grants.  

400.00 Reviews and Updates 
The financial performance of the District will be closely monitored to maintain rates, 
fees, and charges adequate to finance District operations through: 
A. Annual Reviews - District water service rates, fees, and charges will be reviewed 

annually as part of the budget process to determine the adequacy of revenues to 
cover the planned expenditures and to comply with this Policy. 

B. Comprehensive Studies – The District will conduct studies of its water service 
rates and fees and charges at least every five years to update assumptions, ensure 
that rates, fees and charges reflect the costs of service and are sufficient to fund 
District operations, and plan for the long-term solvency and viability of the 
District.  

500.00 Authority 
The General Manager and Director of Finance and Administration are responsible for 
complying with this policy and for regular reporting to the Board of Directors of the 
District’s financial status.  

600.00 Policy Review 
This policy shall be periodically reviewed by the Board of Directors in accordance 
with its established policy review schedule.



Agenda Item:  5 

Date: May 20, 2024

Subject: Policy Review – Technology Use Policy (PL – IT 005)

Staff Contact: Jeffery Ott, Director of Finance and Administration

Recommended Board Action: 
Approve Technology Use Policy (PL – IT 005) with changes.  

Background: 
The Technology Use Policy (PL – IT 005) (Policy) was adopted by the Board of Directors 
(Directors) on September 20, 2004, and was last reviewed by the Board with changes on July 18, 
2022. On April 22, 2024, the Policy was brought to the Board for its scheduled review.  No 
comments from Directors have been received to date.   

This Policy was reviewed by legal counsel for this update. 

Discussion: 
Staff recommends adopting the Policy .  Both a redline version (Attachment 1) and clean version 
(Attachment 2) are included for reference.  In summary, edits by staff and legal were made to the 
following sections: 

1) Minor language edits throughout.  

2) Added the following language to Section 200.50.  

“The use of internet based AI (Artificial Intelligence) platforms to assist with content 
creation should never include any Personal Identifiable Information (PII) of customers or 
District staff.” 

Fiscal Impact:
There is no fiscal impact related to the changes in this Policy.  

Strategic Plan Alignment: 
Goal B: Optimize Operational and Organizational Efficiencies  
Goal C: Ensure Fiscal Responsibility and Affordable Rates 

Attachment: 
1 – Technology Use Policy (PL – IT 005) – redline 
2 – Technology Use Policy (PL – IT 005) – clean 
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Attachment 1 
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Technology Use Policy Page 1 of 4 

Sacramento Suburban Water District 

Technology Use Policy 

Adopted:  September 20, 2004 
Approved with Changes: July 18, 2022May 20, 2024

______________________________________________________________________________ 

100.00 Purpose of the Policy 

The purpose of this policy is to provide guidelines for the appropriate use of all 
technology resources provided by the District.  These resources include computers, 
servers, printers, scanners, software, Internet, Intranet, phones, copier/fax machines, 
and all other technology-related devices and data. 

200.00 Policy 

The District uses various forms of electronic communication and equipment including, 
but not limited to computers, tablets, printers, modems, telephones, cell phones, voice 
mail, copier/fax machines, internet, texting, and e-mail (collectively referred to as 
“electronic facilities”).  All electronic facilities and data are and will remain the sole 
property of the District.  All messages sent and received, including any personal 
messages, and all data and information stored on the District’s electronic facilities are 
the District’s property regardless of content. 

200.10 Social Media 

Use of District electronic facilities to access and use any form of social media for 
personal purposes is not permitted. Employees who may need to use social media for 
District-related business must obtain prior approval from the General Manager or 
his/her designee and comply with the District’s Social Media Procedures promulgated 
by the General Manager.  Any form of social media used by the District as an outreach 
or communications tool are subject to the Social Media Procedures promulgated by the 
General Manager and shall not be used in a manner that creates an open public forum. 

200.20 Specifically Prohibited Usage/Activity  

Electronic facilities will not be used in any manner that would: (1) be discriminatory, 
lewd, derogatory, defamatory, disparaging, sexually explicit, harassing, threatening, or 
obscene; (2) constitute copyright, trademark infringement or misappropriation of trade 
secrets; or (3) be for any other purpose which is illegal, against District policy, or not 
in the best interests of the District. 
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Unless pre-approved by the Information Technology Manager or the General Manager, the 
use of personal software or peripheral devices installed on or connected to District 
electronic facilities is not authorized, including, but not limited to: 

1. A piece of software acquired for one’s home computer 
2. Downloaded software from the internet 
3. Any proprietary software or data not licensed to the District 
4. Personal flash drives or other portable storage devices 

External connections to the District’s internal network are not permitted unless 
expressly authorized in advance by the Information Technology Manager or the General 
Manager and necessary for a District purpose. 

Employees must not place stickers, decals, tape or other such attachments on District 
electronic facilities unless expressly authorized. 

200.30 Software Installation and Usage  

To avoid any security breach or other harm, employees will not install personal 
software in District electronic facilities.  Unless otherwise determined by the 
Information Technology Manager or other qualified person, all software on the Internet 
should be considered copyrighted work. Therefore, employees are prohibited from 
downloading software and/or modifying any such files without permission from the 
copyright holder. 

All software on any District electronic facility must be licensed to the District.  Any 
updates to existing software must be approved by the Information Technology Manager 
prior to installing the update.   

200.40 Ownership and Privacy  

All electronic information created by any employee using any District facility is the 
property of the District and will remain the property of the District.  Employees should 
understand that they have no right or expectation of privacy with respect to any 
messages or information created or maintained on the District’s electronic 
facilities, including personal information or messages, and that any electronic 
information created, sent, received or accessed by an employee may be a public 
record subject to disclosure upon request.  Personal passwords may be used for 
purposes of security, but the use of a personal password does not affect the District’s 
ownership of, or ability to access, the electronic information.   

All District electronic facilities provided to employees for the performance of District 
work will remain the property of the District. Employees are expected to exercise due 
care and proper safeguards while using District-provided electronic facilities and to 
notify the Information Technology department in the event of any potential or actual 
damage, breach, theft or other loss of District electronic facilities or data immediately.   
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The District reserves the right to enter, access, search, monitor, review, copy, and/or 
retrieve electronic files, messages, e-mail, texts, voice mail, history of internet usage, 
and any other type of electronic file or information created or stored on any District 
electronic facility, without notice, for any legitimate business purpose including, but 
not limited to, ensuring that there is no misuse or violation of District policy or any 
law, investigating theft, and monitoring disclosure of District information.  The District 
may override personal passwords if it becomes necessary or appropriate to do so for 
any reason. 

200.50 Data Management and Protection  

All employees must use, manage and protect District records resulting from their use 
of District electronic facilities as required by this policy, the District’s Records 
Management Policy (PL - Adm 002), Electronic Communications System Management 
and Retention Policy (PL - IT 003) and all related procedures promulgated by the 
General Manager, which set forth the responsibilities of all District employees 
concerning the creation, storage, protection, retention, and disposal of electronic 
documents and communications that are designated as either official or not official 
District records.  Employees are advised that if they use their personal electronic 
devices on District business, they may be creating District records that must be 
preserved and that may subject their personal electronic devices to surrender to the 
District to search for, view, and possibly extract any District records.   

Drafts, copies, duplicates, support files and other types of documents as outlined in 
Policy PL – Adm 002 Records Management Policy, Section 300.30.b should be 
removed from District electronic facilities (especially file stores and email) when no 
longer required. The email system is not to be used as a file storage system. 
Attachments should be removed and stored with other electronic files in appropriately 
designated locations in accordance with District Policy PL – IT 003 Electronic 
Communications System Management and Retention Policy, Section 100.10 and 
200.00.  

The Internet does not guarantee the privacy and confidentiality of information. 
Sensitive District records or other material transferred over the Internet may be at risk 
of detection or interception by a third party. Employees must exercise caution and due 
care when transferring such records and materials over the internet. When possible, 
Employees should use a file sharing site or other secure program for transmitting files 
instead of attaching sensitive information to an email.

The use of internet based AI (Artificial Intelligence) platforms to assist with content 
creation should never include any Personal Identifiable Information (PII) of customers 
or District staff.

The introduction of viruses, malware or malicious tampering with any electronic 
facility is expressly prohibited. Employees are to use extreme care when opening links 
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or attachments to ensure they are free from viruses or malicious code that could infect 
District electronic facilities. Files that are downloaded from the internet must be 
checked with virus detection software before being opened and used. The truth or 
accuracy of information on the internet and in unsolicited e-mails should be considered 
suspect until confirmed by a separate (reliable) source.  

200.60 Policy Violation  

Any employee who misuses the District’s electronic facilities or otherwise violates this 
policy or its related procedures will be subject to discipline up to and including 
termination. 

300.00 Policy Review 

This policy shall be periodically reviewed by the Board of Directors in accordance with 
its established policy review schedule. 
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Sacramento Suburban Water District 

Technology Use Policy 

Adopted:  September 20, 2004 
Approved with Changes: May 20, 2024 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

100.00 Purpose of the Policy 

The purpose of this policy is to provide guidelines for the appropriate use of all 
technology resources provided by the District.  These resources include computers, 
servers, printers, scanners, software, Internet, Intranet, phones, copier/fax machines, 
and all other technology-related devices and data. 

200.00 Policy 

The District uses various forms of electronic communication and equipment including, 
but not limited to computers, tablets, printers, modems, telephones, cell phones, voice 
mail, copier/fax machines, internet, texting, and e-mail (collectively referred to as 
“electronic facilities”).  All electronic facilities and data are and will remain the sole 
property of the District.  All messages sent and received, including any personal 
messages, and all data and information stored on the District’s electronic facilities are 
the District’s property regardless of content. 

200.10 Social Media 

Use of District electronic facilities to access and use any form of social media for 
personal purposes is not permitted. Employees who may need to use social media for 
District-related business must obtain prior approval from the General Manager or 
his/her designee and comply with the District’s Social Media Procedures promulgated 
by the General Manager.  Any form of social media used by the District as an outreach 
or communications tool are subject to the Social Media Procedures promulgated by the 
General Manager and shall not be used in a manner that creates an open public forum. 

200.20 Specifically Prohibited Usage/Activity  

Electronic facilities will not be used in any manner that would: (1) be discriminatory, 
lewd, derogatory, defamatory, disparaging, sexually explicit, harassing, threatening, or 
obscene; (2) constitute copyright, trademark infringement or misappropriation of trade 
secrets; or (3) be for any other purpose which is illegal, against District policy, or not 
in the best interests of the District. 
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Unless pre-approved by the Information Technology Manager or the General Manager, the 
use of personal software or peripheral devices installed on or connected to District 
electronic facilities is not authorized, including, but not limited to: 

1. A piece of software acquired for one’s home computer 
2. Downloaded software from the internet 
3. Any proprietary software or data not licensed to the District 
4. Personal flash drives or other portable storage devices 

External connections to the District’s internal network are not permitted unless 
expressly authorized in advance by the Information Technology Manager or the General 
Manager and necessary for a District purpose. 

Employees must not place stickers, decals, tape or other such attachments on District 
electronic facilities unless expressly authorized. 

200.30 Software Installation and Usage  

To avoid any security breach or other harm, employees will not install personal 
software in District electronic facilities.  Unless otherwise determined by the 
Information Technology Manager or other qualified person, all software on the Internet 
should be considered copyrighted work. Therefore, employees are prohibited from 
downloading software and/or modifying any such files without permission from the 
copyright holder. 

All software on any District electronic facility must be licensed to the District.  Any 
updates to existing software must be approved by the Information Technology Manager 
prior to installing the update.   

200.40 Ownership and Privacy  

All electronic information created by any employee using any District facility is the 
property of the District and will remain the property of the District.  Employees should 
understand that they have no right or expectation of privacy with respect to any 
messages or information created or maintained on the District’s electronic 
facilities, including personal information or messages, and that any electronic 
information created, sent, received or accessed by an employee may be a public 
record subject to disclosure upon request.  Personal passwords may be used for 
purposes of security, but the use of a personal password does not affect the District’s 
ownership of, or ability to access, the electronic information.   

All District electronic facilities provided to employees for the performance of District 
work will remain the property of the District. Employees are expected to exercise due 
care and proper safeguards while using District-provided electronic facilities and to 
notify the Information Technology department in the event of any potential or actual 
damage, breach, theft or other loss of District electronic facilities or data immediately.   
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The District reserves the right to enter, access, search, monitor, review, copy, and/or 
retrieve electronic files, messages, e-mail, texts, voice mail, history of internet usage, 
and any other type of electronic file or information created or stored on any District 
electronic facility, without notice, for any legitimate business purpose including, but 
not limited to, ensuring that there is no misuse or violation of District policy or any 
law, investigating theft, and monitoring disclosure of District information.  The District 
may override personal passwords if it becomes necessary or appropriate to do so for 
any reason. 

200.50 Data Management and Protection  

All employees must use, manage and protect District records resulting from their use 
of District electronic facilities as required by this policy, the District’s Records 
Management Policy (PL - Adm 002), Electronic Communications System Management 
and Retention Policy (PL - IT 003) and all related procedures promulgated by the 
General Manager, which set forth the responsibilities of all District employees 
concerning the creation, storage, protection, retention, and disposal of electronic 
documents and communications that are designated as either official or not official 
District records.  Employees are advised that if they use their personal electronic 
devices on District business, they may be creating District records that must be 
preserved and that may subject their personal electronic devices to surrender to the 
District to search for, view, and possibly extract any District records.   

Drafts, copies, duplicates, support files and other types of documents as outlined in 
Policy PL – Adm 002 Records Management Policy, Section 300.30.b should be 
removed from District electronic facilities (especially file stores and email) when no 
longer required. The email system is not to be used as a file storage system. 
Attachments should be removed and stored with other electronic files in appropriately 
designated locations in accordance with District Policy PL – IT 003 Electronic 
Communications System Management and Retention Policy, Section 100.10 and 
200.00.  

The Internet does not guarantee the privacy and confidentiality of information. 
Sensitive District records or other material transferred over the Internet may be at risk 
of detection or interception by a third party. Employees must exercise caution and due 
care when transferring such records and materials over the internet. When possible, 
Employees should use a file sharing site or other secure program for transmitting files 
instead of attaching sensitive information to an email. 

The use of internet based AI (Artificial Intelligence) platforms to assist with content 
creation should never include any Personal Identifiable Information (PII) of customers 
or District staff. 

The introduction of viruses, malware or malicious tampering with any electronic 
facility is expressly prohibited. Employees are to use extreme care when opening links 
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or attachments to ensure they are free from viruses or malicious code that could infect 
District electronic facilities. Files that are downloaded from the internet must be 
checked with virus detection software before being opened and used. The truth or 
accuracy of information on the internet and in unsolicited e-mails should be considered 
suspect until confirmed by a separate (reliable) source.  

200.60 Policy Violation  

Any employee who misuses the District’s electronic facilities or otherwise violates this 
policy or its related procedures will be subject to discipline up to and including 
termination. 

300.00 Policy Review 

This policy shall be periodically reviewed by the Board of Directors in accordance with 
its established policy review schedule. 



Agenda Item:  6 

Date: May 20, 2024

Subject: Resolution No. 24-04 Honoring Todd Artrip on his Retirement

Staff Contact: Dan York, General Manager

Recommended Board Action: 
Adopt Resolution No. 24-24 Honoring Todd Artrip, Operations Manager, on his Retirement. 

Discussion: 
Todd Artrip (Mr. Artrip) has been a valued employee of the Sacramento Suburban Water District 
for over 19 years, having been hired on January 31, 2005.  His retirement will be effective May 
30, 2024. This Resolution commemorates his service.  Staff has prepared a ceremonial, framed 
version of this Resolution for presentation to Mr. Artrip.  

Fiscal Impact: 
None. 

Strategic Plan Alignment: 

Goal E    Retain and Recruit a Qualified and Stable Workforce  

This resolution benefits District customers by recognizing staff who have provided significant 
benefit to the overall operation and success of the District in various ways during their years of 
service to the District. This resolution specifically reinforces the District’s commitment to its 
Mission and Vision Statements by recognizing employees that have performed their duties in 
accordance with District Values. 
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Resolution No. 24-04 
A Resolution Honoring  

Todd Artrip 
on His Retirement 

Whereas, Todd Artrip completed over 19 years of dedicated service with the Sacramento 
Suburban Water District, having been hired on January 31, 2005; and  

Whereas, Todd’s dedication to public service and expertise in utility management made 
the Sacramento Suburban Water District a more efficient organization with improved customer 
service and increased water supply reliability; and 

Whereas, Todd has mentored District staff, implemented numerous processes improving 
District operations, and set an example to be followed in the future by staff who were fortunate 
to have worked with him; and 

Whereas, Todd earned the admiration and respect of his fellow employees, management 
staff, the Board of Directors, and the public for his dedication, technical expertise, enthusiasm, 
and hard work; and 

Whereas, Todd’s ability to competently serve in different roles within the District over 
the years has been a benefit to the organization and truly appreciated by management; and   

Whereas, Todd will no longer have to attend Board meetings; and   

Whereas, Todd and his wife Shelly can now spend more time with family and friends, 
travel in their motorhome with their dog, hike, ride bikes, camp, and work on that “honey do” 
list; and 

Whereas, Todd’s retirement from the Sacramento Suburban Water District will be 
effective Thursday, May 30, 2024. 

Now therefore, be it resolved by the Board of Directors of the Sacramento Suburban 
Water District that: 

The Board of Directors expresses its deep and sincere appreciation to Todd for his years 
of dedicated public service to the District. 

The Board of Directors wishes Todd all the best for a healthy, happy, and productive 
future. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Sacramento Suburban Water 
District on this 20th day of May 2024.  

AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
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By:   
Kevin Thomas 
President, Board of Directors 
Sacramento Suburban Water District 

By:   
(SEAL) Dan York  

General Manager/Secretary 
Sacramento Suburban Water District   



 

 

 

Agenda Item: 7 

 
Date: May 20, 2024 
  
Subject: 2023 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report and Audit Results 
  
Staff Contact: Lynn Pham, Controller 
 
 
Recommended Board Action: 
Accept the 2023 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report and audit results, as recommended by 
the Audit Committee at the April 24, 2024, Audit Committee meeting. 
 
Summary: 
The Audit Committee reviewed the 2023 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (Annual 
Report) and audit results with Sacramento Suburban Water District’s (District) external auditor, 
Maze & Associates (Auditor), at the April 22, 2024, Audit Committee meeting. There were no 
substantive findings of any issues with internal controls or financial data. The audit resulted in the 
District receiving an unmodified opinion. This represents the highest level of opinion indicating 
that there were no material misstatements in the information subject to audit. The Audit Committee 
recommended acceptance of the audit results and approval of the 2023 Annual Report to the 
District’s Board of Directors (Board).  
 
Discussion: 
Staff have prepared the District’s Annual Report for the years ended December 31, 2023, and 
2022. The Auditor performed their audit and rendered their opinion, which is found on pages 1 to 
3 in the Financial Section of the Annual Report (Attachment 1). In addition to the Auditor’s 
Opinion, the Annual Report includes the Auditor’s Report on Internal Controls as required under 
Government Auditing Standards (pages 84 and 85). Also, the Auditor has provided a letter to the 
Board (Attachment 2) wherein they discuss the results of their audit.  
 
This year was the fourth year with the audit firm, Maze & Associates. For this year’s audit, the 
audit staff of Maze and Associates performed portions of the audit at the District’s offices. The 
audit field work was conducted in two phases: 1) an interim that was conducted from February 5 
through February 9, and 2) final that was conducted from March 25 through March 29. The fee for 
this year’s audit is $42,696 compared with $41,858 for 2022 and agrees with the cost schedule 
provided by the Auditor in their 2020 audit services proposal. 
 

1. The Annual Report is presented in three sections: 
 

a) Introductory – Provides readers with background and the organizational structure of 
the District. 
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b) Financial – Begins with the Auditors Opinion, followed by Management’s Discussion 
and Analysis of the financial results for 2023 and 2022, followed by the Financial 
Statements, Footnotes and Required Supplementary Information. 

 
c) Statistical Information – Presents other financial and operational information about the 

District and the community in which it operates and shows historical data for 
comparative purposes. 

 
2. Memorandum on Internal Controls and Required Communications – This letter is a 

required communication as designated under generally accepted auditing standards. The 
letter reports to the Board significant audit findings, if any, noted during the audit, estimates 
used by the District in preparing the Annual Report, difficulties encountered during the 
audit and disagreements, if any, with management amongst other matters. The Auditors 
state that: 1) “… during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control 
that we consider to be material weaknesses.”, 2) “All significant transactions have been 
recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.”, 3) “The financial statement 
disclosures are neutral, consistent and clear.”, 4) “We encountered no significant 
difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.”, and 5) 
regarding disagreements with management in financial accounting, reporting or auditing 
matters, “We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of 
our audit.” 
 

Fiscal Impact: 
$42,696 – per Audit Engagement Letter with Maze & Associates - $36,933 for the audit, and 
$5,763 for the Board requested additional procedures. 
 
Strategic Plan Alignment: 
Goal C: Ensure Fiscal Responsibility and Affordable Rates 
 
Produce annual financial statements and supporting documentation to allow outside auditors to 
provide the District with unmodified audit opinions. The annual financial report is a benefit to 
District customers as it demonstrates the District’s commitment to financial integrity and 
transparency. 
 
Attachments: 

1. 2023 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report  
2. Memorandum on Internal Controls and Required Communications 
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Introductory Section 



 

I 

April 3, 2024 

President and Members of the Board of Directors, Customers and 
Interested Parties of the Sacramento Suburban Water District: 

We are pleased to present this Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (Annual Report) of the Sacramento 
Suburban Water District (District) for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022. The District is required under 
State law to publish, within six months of the close of each fiscal year, a complete set of basic financial statements 
presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). These basic financial statements 
are required to be audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by 
the Comptroller General of the United States and the State Controller’s Minimum Audit Requirements for California 
Special Districts.  

This Annual Report consists of management’s representations concerning the District’s finances. Consequently, 
management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information presented in this 
Annual Report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, management has established a 
comprehensive internal control framework designed to protect the District’s assets from loss, theft, and misuse and 
to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the District’s financial statements in conformity 
with GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the District’s comprehensive 
framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge 
and belief, this Annual Report is complete and reliable in all material respects. 

The District’s basic financial statements have been audited by Maze & Associates Accountancy Corporation, an 
independent firm of licensed certified public accountants. In their role as independent auditors, Maze & Associates 
worked directly for the Board of Directors and the Board’s standing Audit Committee. The goal of the independent 
audit is to provide reasonable assurance that the District’s basic financial statements for the years ended December 
31, 2023 and 2022, are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles 
used and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. 
The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an 
unmodified (“clean”) opinion that the District’s basic financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2023 
and 2022, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. An unmodified opinion is the highest level of assurance 
that an auditor can provide. The Independent Auditor’s Report is presented as the first component in the Financial 
Section of this Annual Report. 
 
GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview and analysis to accompany the basic 
financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This transmittal letter is 
designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The District’s MD&A can be found 
immediately following the Independent Auditor’s Report in the Financial Section of this Annual Report. 



 

II 

District Profile 
 

The District’s Mission is “to deliver a 
high quality, reliable supply of water 
and superior customer service at the 
lowest responsible water rate.” District 
goals in support of this mission 
include: assuring a safe and reliable 
supply of high quality water in an 
environmentally responsible and 
sustainable manner for District 
customers; planning, constructing, 
operating and maintaining the District 
water system facilities embracing 
sustainable practices to provide 

reliable delivery of high quality water; assuring superior customer service; ensuring effective and efficient 
management and public reporting of all District financial processes; and providing leadership on regional, statewide 
and national water management issues that may affect the District. 

The District was formed on February 1, 2002 under the State of California’s County Water District Law by the 
consolidation of the Northridge Water District and the Arcade Water District. The District is located in Sacramento 
County, north of the American River and serves a large suburban area including portions of Citrus Heights, 
Carmichael, North Highlands, City of Sacramento (City), and Antelope, as well as McClellan Park (formerly 
McClellan Air Force Base). The District’s service area covers approximately 36 square miles (23,032 acres of land) 
and serves water to an estimated population of approximately 194,444 (based on the 2020 census) through 
approximately 47,788 permanent customer connections. The District’s territory is substantially built out and other 
than residential and commercial in-fill projects, and industrial and commercial development at McClellan Park, the 
District does not expect significant additional development within its territory. 

The District has created the Sacramento Suburban Water District Financing Corporation (Corporation) unit to assist 
the District in the issuance of debt. Although legally separate from the District, the Corporation is reported as if it 
were part of the primary government because it shares a common Board of Directors with the District, and because 
its sole purpose is to provide financing to the District under the debt issuance documents of the District. Debt issued 
by the Corporation is reflected as debt of the District in these financial statements. The Corporation has no other 
transactions and does not issue separate financial statements.  

The District is governed by a 5-member Board of Directors, each of which is elected to four-year terms from 
geographical divisions by the registered voters residing in each division of the District. The terms of the Directors 
are staggered, with the Directors from Divisions 1 and 2 elected at the same statewide general election and the 
Directors from Divisions 3, 4 and 5 elected at the general election two years later. 

The service area experiences cool and humid winters and hot and dry summers. The combination of hot and dry 
weather results in higher water demands during the summer than in winter. Fluctuation in water production from 
year-to-year typically results from weather conditions in the spring and fall. Demand during the summer and winter 
generally does not vary significantly from one year to the next with the notable exception of recent conservation 
efforts.  

 

 

 



 

III 

System Description 

The distribution system, including storage, pump stations and interconnections, has approximately 694 miles of 
pipeline that range in size from 48-inch transmission mains down to 4-inch distribution mains. There are 48 
emergency interties with neighboring agencies along the District’s service boundary. The District has 6 storage 
tanks with a collective capacity to hold approximately 15.8 million gallons of water. There are a total of 7 booster 
pumping stations in the District, three of which are co-located with major storage tanks. The District pumps its 
groundwater from approximately 71 operational groundwater wells, which are capable of producing 100% of the 
annual District water demand. All of the groundwater wells pump directly into the distribution system and range 
between 270 and 1,036 feet deep. The District also has facilities to accept treated surface water from Folsom 
Reservoir and the Lower American River.  

Water Supplies and Management 

Groundwater 

SSWD has established rights to pump 
groundwater to supply the entire needs of 
District customers in any one year and has 
exercised this right since its inception.  
Under California law, SSWD is not 
required to obtain a permit or other 
approval from any agency to establish its 
right to pump this groundwater supply.  
SSWD’s groundwater wells and storage 
facilities are capable of producing 100% of 
SSWD’s annual water demand. As a 
municipal pumper, SSWD may extract and 

serve groundwater anywhere within its service area, or outside of it. SSWD’s wells are permitted through the State 
Water Resources Control Board, Division of Drinking Water (DDW) and are required to comply with all applicable 
federal, local, and state water quality and drinking water standards.  

SSWD pumps from the North American Sub-basin (NASb), which is jointly managed on behalf of SSWD and other 
municipal pumpers by the Sacramento Groundwater Authority (SGA) under a Groundwater Management Plan 
adopted consistent with the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA). SSWD works with other 
groundwater pumpers in the basin to sustainably manage groundwater supply consistent with SGMA. Pursuant to 
the groundwater pumping measures established by the SGA, the District’s annual average pumping allotment for 
groundwater is 35,035 acre-feet. Amounts pumped in excess of this target are subtracted from the District’s 
“Exchangeable Water Balance,” which is groundwater banked by the District. Amounts of groundwater pumped 
below this target that are replaced with purchased surface water are added to the District’s “Exchangeable Water 
Balance,” with the District being credited for the in-lieu groundwater banked.  As of December 1, 2023, the District 
has banked approximately 261,000 acre-feet of Exchange Water Balance that the District may use at its discretion 
subject to any future regulations imposed under SGMA or other legislative or executive action The District has 
made significant investments to put surface water supply and conjunctive use facilities in place, and as a result of 
these investments, groundwater levels have stabilized. The District has enough source and storage capacity to meet 
the system Maximum Daily Demand and Peak Hourly Demand per section 64554(a), Article 2, Chapter 16, Division 
4, Title 22, of the California Code of Regulations. 



 

IV 

Surface Water 

In addition to groundwater, the District imports 
surface water from two supply sources, when 
available, Folsom Reservoir and the Lower 
American River. SSWD has no surface water rights 
but has two contractual entitlements to surface 
water, one from the Placer County Water Agency 
(PCWA) for up to 29,000 acre-feet and one from the 
City of Sacramento (City) for up to 26,064 acre-feet.  

When available, the District purchases surface water 
from PCWA supplied from the Middle Fork 

American River and delivered to Folsom Reservoir. The PCWA water is treated by San Juan Water District (SJWD) 
at the Peterson Water Treatment Plant pursuant to contract and then conveyed through District-owned transmission 
pipelines, or purchased pipeline capacity, into the District’s water distribution system in the North Service Area. 
The District also purchases, when available, surface water from the City supplied from the Lower American River 
which is diverted and treated by the City at its E.A. Fairbairn Water Treatment Plant and conveyed through 
purchased and District-owned pipeline capacity for distribution to customers in the District’s South Service Area. 
These two sources of surface water ultimately depend upon unimpaired inflow to Folsom Reservoir, or releases 
from Folsom Reservoir to the Lower American River, and are not available in all years, or at all times. 

In addition to the two contractual entitlements, the District purchases, when available, Central Valley Water Project 
Section 215 surface water from the United States Bureau of Reclamation (USBR) and starting in 2020 the District 
began entering into annual agreements with SJWD to purchase its excess surface water, when available.  

Conjunctive Use 

SSWD has operated an active Conjunctive Use Program since 1998.  Under this program, SSWD supplies imported 
treated surface water to its customers under its City and PCWA contractual entitlements, along with other purchased 
water sources, in lieu of providing pumped groundwater.  This reduces SSWD’s need to extract groundwater which 
in turn allows SSWD’s groundwater supplies to be replenished through natural groundwater recharge.  This 
operation is referred to as “in-lieu recharge.”  SSWD’s groundwater wells are located in the NASb which is part of 
the Sacramento Valley Groundwater Basin. While groundwater levels normally fluctuate (rise and fall) in response 
to hydrologic conditions, groundwater levels in the NASb had declined over the 50 years prior to the millennium at 
an average rate of approximately 1.5 to 2.0 feet per year.  There is a regional consensus that this decline was largely 
the result of excessive groundwater pumping.  By supplementing its supplies with surface water, SSWD’s 
groundwater pumping was reduced, thereby allowing for more groundwater (aquifer) recharge. This supply 
flexibility positions the District very favorably with California’s SGMA. 

When no PCWA or City water was available during 2020, 2021 and 2022, the District was still able to acquire 
surface water through the new SJWD agreements of 1,016, 2,228 and 6,098 acre feet, respectively.  The storms that 
impacted northern California during the winter of 2022/23 and through the spring of 2023 provided enough runoff 
to allow the District to take both PCWA and USBR Section 215 surface water from Folsom Reservoir as well as 
Lower American River surface water from the City during CY2023, receiving 10,749, 2,063, and 7,471 acre feet, 
respectively. This accounted for approximately 65% of the District’s water production for CY2023 as the District 
only pumped 11,247 acre feet of groundwater.  
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Revenue Sources 

The District’s annual revenues come primarily from water sales. Operating revenues segregate water sales into two 
components used by the District in setting its water rate structure: consumption charges and fixed charges. In 
addition, the District receives operating revenues from treated water passed through its conveyance system to 
neighboring water districts as well as from fees charged for certain District services, including penalty charges. 
Periodically, the District also receives operating revenue from water transfer sales. 

In 2023, the District completed its transition to water meters from flat rate 
accounts, ahead of the 2025 mandate.  
 
January 1, 2020, was the start of the first year of a planned 5-year annual 
rate increase based on the results of the 2019 Rate Study that was 
approved by the Board of Directors in November 2019 after a Public 
Hearing. Rates were approved to increase on average 5%, 4%, 3%, 3%, 
and 3% from 2020 – 2024, unless the Board of Directors approve lower 
increases. The five increases of 5%, 4%, 3%, 3%, and 3% were placed 
into effect on January 1, 2020, 2021, 2022, 2023, and 2024, respectively. 
Current single-family residential metered rates include a fixed charge 
(service charge) based on meter size, plus a two-tier water consumption 
rate. The tier structure includes 15 cubic feet (CCF) per month at a lower 
initial rate with water consumption in excess of 15 CCF at a higher rate. 
Multi-family residential and non-residential customers are subject to a 
fixed charge based on meter size and a single-tier rate based on 
consumption.  
 
The District’s sources of non-operating revenue come primarily from state and federal capital grants, developer 
contributions, rental and investment income. 
 

COVID-19 Pandemic 
 
In April 2020, the Governor of California issued Executive Order N-42-20 that imposed a moratorium on water 
service terminations of residential and small businesses in the critical infrastructure sectors for the duration of the 
COVID-19 emergency. The District responded by adopting a Resolution suspending the imposition of late fees and 
suspending collection activities for all customers until such time that the Executive Order was rescinded. In 
September 2021, the Governor signed SB 155 into law which established, among other items, the end date on the 
water service termination moratorium as of December 31, 2021. In January 2022, the Board approved Resolution 
No. 22-03 rescinding the 2020 resolution and reinstating all previous collections activities in accordance with the 
guidance provided in SB 155.  By the summer of 2022, the District had fully implemented all previous collections 
activities returning to normal collections processing that included disconnecting delinquent water service accounts. 
In December 2022, the Board directed staff to update the appropriate regulations and policies necessary to begin 
using the direct levy process as the primary means of collection of delinquent water bills. The direct levy process 
involves transferring delinquent balances to the County of Sacramento’s (County) secured property tax rolls for 
collection.  On February 28, 2023, Governor Gavin Newsom issued a proclamation terminating the state’s COVID-
19 State of Emergency. During August of 2023, the District transferred its first batch of delinquent bills to the 
County’s secured property tax rolls for assessment and collection. The financial effects of the pandemic and its 
aftermath are addressed in the MD&A section of this report.  



 

VI 

 

Local Economy1 

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps 
best understood when it is considered from the broader 
perspective of the specific environment within which the 
District operates. Sacramento County (County) is the eighth 
most populous county in California with a population of roughly 
1.58 million and is home to the state's capital. The County sits 
in the middle of the agriculturally rich 400-mile long Central 
Valley of California. Sacramento’s four-county metropolitan 
statistical area (metro-area) is the largest metro-area in the 
Central Valley and is the fifth largest metro-area in the state. 
Among the larger counties in the state, the County is runner-up 

to Riverside in potential for both population and 
job growth over the forecast horizon (2024-
2028). From 2014-2022, the population of the 
County grew at an annual average rate of 0.66%. 
Employment in the County consists of a labor 
force of 731,900 as of December 2023. The 
unemployment rate averaged 3.9% in 2022 and 
increased to 4.7% in 2023. Employment and 
population are projected to grow by an average 
0.9% and 0.43% per annum, respectively, over 
the next five years in the County. 

 

The County’s economy is broadly based. Government and 
education & healthcare are the largest sectors of employment, 
while professional services, retail, leisure and construction 
activities follow. Because it contains the state capital, the 
County’s economy is highly influenced by the public sector. 
Government jobs account for roughly 25% of total 
employment. Healthcare providers such as Kaiser Permanente, 
UC Davis Health Systems, Sutter Health, and Dignity Health, 
along with Intel and Siemens Mobility, and grocery store 
chains Raley’s and Safeway are large private employers in the 
county. Job creation over the next five years is expected to 
come predominantly from professional & business services 
and education & healthcare, followed by leisure & hospitality and government.  

 
1 Population, employment and unemployment data from State of California, Department of Transportation, Socio Economic 
Files, Sacramento County Economic Forecast (2022/2023); Labor force data from California Employment Development 
Department, Sacramento County Profile (2023). 
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Long-Term Financial Planning 
 
The District currently has several major construction projects underway. These projects involve rehabilitation or 
replacement of existing facilities to ensure system reliability, to enhance operational efficiency, to protect the 
environment and public health, and to comply with water quality regulations. With an aging infrastructure, the 
District has dedicated significant resources to develop a comprehensive infrastructure assessment and has 
established specific asset management plans for the ultimate needs of its facilities (typically to the end of each 
asset’s useful service life). These asset plans are intended to allow the District to better plan and budget for future 
capital facility needs, consisting primarily of capital replacements, which is one of the most significant challenges 
facing the District. As the future capital needs of the District are primarily repair and replacement projects, the 
District intends to fund such projects through pay-as-you-go financing rather than the issuance of additional debt.   

 
Relevant Financial Policies and Controls 
 
Key District Financial Policies include the Water Service Rates, Fees and Charges Setting Policy, Reserve Policy, 
Debt Management Policy, Investment Policy and the Budget Policy. Such policies, when coupled with the District’s 
Internal Control Structure, guide and protect the financial position of the District. 

 
Water Service Rates, Fees and Charges Setting Policy 
This policy serves to provide guidance and consistency in District financial planning and the rate setting decision-
making process for the Board of Directors and staff. The policy also provides a foundation for the long-term 
financial sustainability of the District, while providing the outside financial community with a better understanding 
of the District’s commitment to managing itself in a financially prudent and sustainable manner. 

 
Reserve Policy 
The purpose of this policy is to establish a reserve fund level that is specific to the needs and risks of the District; 
to identify when and how reserve funds are utilized and replenished; and to recognize the long-term nature of such 
funds and their relationship to current and projected customer rates. The District’s financial reserve fund comprises 
various funds established for specific purposes and to mitigate certain risks. Collectively, these funds enable the 
District to operate in a safe and prudent manner, with the policy providing for appropriate oversight. 

 
Debt Management Policy 
The District recognizes the issuance of long-term debt is a valuable funding source. Used appropriately and 
prudently, long-term debt can minimize the District’s water system rates, fees and charges over time. To minimize 
dependency on debt financing, the District strives to fund annual renewal and replacement capital projects from 
rates. The District intends to manage itself to exceed the minimum target debt service coverage requirements 
imposed by bond covenants. The District will not issue long-term debt to support operating costs. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

VIII 

Investment Policy 
This policy provides guidance to the Board of Directors and Staff for the proper and legal investing of District 
assets. The District’s reserves and excess operating cash are invested in accordance with the policy that is reviewed 
at least annually for compliance with California Law.  The Director of Finance and Administration/District 
Treasurer is responsible for the regular reporting of the transactions and balances of the District’s investment 
portfolio and for compliance with the policy to the Board of Directors.  The policy allows for the delegation of 
investment authority to a professional investment advisor of which the District does employ. Assets exempt from 
this policy include operating cash held at the District’s commercial bank, debt proceeds, pension, and other post-
employment benefits held in trust.  
 
Budget Policy 
The District’s budget serves as the foundation for financial planning and control. The budget is a non-appropriated 
one-year financial spending and receipt plan for operating and maintenance expenses, capital projects, debt service 
and revenues, and is adopted by the Board of Directors prior to each new fiscal year. The budget is based on certain 
policies set by the Board of Directors and is reviewed monthly as part of the District’s regular financial reporting 
process. The Board of Directors must approve all supplemental amendments to the budgets and transfers between 
budgets. The General Manager directs the Director of Finance and Administration in transfers between category 
levels within individual adopted budgets throughout the fiscal year with subsequent reporting to the Board of 
Directors. 
 
Internal Controls 
District management is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed to ensure 
that the assets of the District are protected from loss, theft, or misuse. The internal control composition is designed 
to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and other reporting, including regulatory reporting, in 
accordance with the requirements of such reporting. The internal control structure is also designed to provide 
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance 
recognizes that (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived, and (2) the valuation of 
costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management. 

 
Changes in Accounting Principles 
 
During 2022, the District implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 87 – 
Leases and GASB Statement No. 96 – Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements (SBITA) during 
fiscal year 2022. The District also implemented a new policy in fiscal year 2022 addressing the accounting for 
leases and SBITAs. The new policy establishes the guidelines for reporting leases and SBITAs. Any material lease 
or SBITA, defined as having a net present value greater than one percent (1.0%) of the five-year average of annual 
total assets, shall be reported in accordance with GASB Statements No. 87 or 96, as appropriate.  
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Major Initiatives 
 

Major initiatives the District is pursuing include 
regional efforts regarding water supply and 
quality, including water conservation. Selected 
from the recently developed asset management 
plans, the 2024 budget calls for certain capital 
improvement project spending totaling $26.7 
million. Major projects include well 
replacements and rehabilitation of $21.2 million, 
and distribution system replacements and 
improvements of $4.3 million, which includes 
water main, hydrant, valve and service 
replacements. Wells 78 and 79 were completed 
and placed into service in 2023. Well 80 is still in 
progress. 
 

Well 78 

 
During 2023, the District agreed to participate in a funding agreement between the State of California DWR and 
the Regional Water Authority (RWA). The Voluntary Agreement Early Implementation for the American River 
(ARTESIAN) agreement provides up to $55.0 million to regional water purveyors to provide new and enhanced 
infrastructure that will improve the American 
River region’s ability to enhance groundwater 
production capabilities and flexibility in Dry and 
Critical Water Years as determined by the 
Sacramento River Index. The District submitted 
two projects, Wells 81, 82 & 83, and Well 84 for 
funding. The District is eligible to receive up to 
$18.84 million in funding towards these two 
projects over three years, 2023 - 2025.  In return, 
the District has committed to provide the DWR 
 

                                                      Well 84 

with up to 10,488 acre feet of flow 
commitment for up to three out of eight 
years from 2025 through 2032 with the 
option to provide flow commitment for 
one additional year during the period 
2033 through 2036 if all three of the 
previous years are not utilized.    
    

 
Wells 81, 82, 83 

 



 

X 

Since the pandemic of 2020, groundwater well contractor resources have 
been scarce and difficult to schedule on short notice. Since the District’s 
main source of water supply is groundwater, to maintain 71 operational 
groundwater wells, the availability of contractors to help maintain the 
District’s groundwater wells is vital. During 2023, the District began a 
long-term, exclusive agreement with Kirby’s Pump and Mechanical, Inc. 
(KPM) to provide well rehabilitation and refurbishment services 
exclusively to the District.  
 
The agreement has a one-year initial term with up to 4 consecutive one-
year extensions and the option for the District to purchase KPM at any 
time after the initial term. Having a readily available resource to address 
groundwater well rehabilitation, corrective, as well as proactive, 
maintenance on the District’s groundwater wells has greatly improved 
the availability of groundwater production capacity. 
 

 
 

For the past several years, the District’s Board of Directors has been in discussions with two neighboring water 
agencies regarding potential combinations. Del Paso Manor Water District is a neighboring agency surrounded by 
the District that serves approximately 1.3 square miles and 1,800 residential, commercial and institutional 
connections. During 2023 both Boards officially ceased discussions on a potential combination.  
 
Carmichael Water District is also a neighboring agency that serves approximately 8.0 square miles and 11,900 
residential, commercial and institutional connections. In March of 2024, Carmichael’s Board voted to cease all 
combination discussions with the District. 

 
Awards and Acknowledgments 
 

The District’s insurance carrier, the Association of California Water Agencies/Joint Powers Insurance Authority 
(ACWA/JPIA) encourages all member agencies and their staff to not only practice good safety, but to actively seek 
improvements to further reduce risk and protect workers. The H.R. LaBounty Safety Award Program is designed 
for all JPIA members as a way to promote safe workplace behavior and operations practices while rewarding those 
employees who demonstrate safe behavior, take part in recognizable proactive activities, or participate in risk-
reducing actions. It gives members another way to foster a safety culture that reduces the potential for losses. 
 
In 2023, the District submitted five nominations to be considered for the H.R. LaBounty Safety Award. The 
submissions were evaluated by the JPIA Risk Management Committee and scored on a best practice scoring criteria. 
The District’s submissions were recognized as exceptional and worthy of receiving the H.R. LaBounty Safety 
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Award. The five submissions were: Ergonomic Fire Hydrant Repair Station, Safety Calendar Coloring Contest, 
Well Pump Turbine Motor Oiling Process, Meter Box Replacement Job Hazard Analysis, and To-Go Trauma Kits.  
 
In November  2023, the District received a letter from the President of ACWA/JPIA, commending the District for 
its efforts in reducing claims.  In recognition of this effort, ACWA/JPIA approved a President’s Special Recognition 
Award certificate for the Workers’ Compensation Program. This award was presented for achieving low loss ratios 
in the Workers’ Compensation Program for the period 07/01/2019 – 06/30/2022.  A member district must have a 
loss ratio of 20% or less to receive the President's Special Recognition Award.   
 
The District was honored by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) WaterSense Program 
at the October 2023 WaterSmart Innovations Conference and Exposition in Las Vegas for 
Excellence in Education for the District’s efforts at raising awareness of the WaterSense label.  
WaterSense is a partnership program sponsored by EPA that seeks to protect the future of our 
nation's water supply by offering people a simple way to use less water with water-efficient 
products, new homes, and services. Since the program's inception in 2006, WaterSense has 
helped consumers save trillions of gallons of water and billions in water and energy bills.  This 
is the second Excellence in Education Award the District has been honored by WaterSense for 
its public awareness efforts. 
 
For the twelfth straight year, the Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) 
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the District for its Annual Report 
for the year ended December 31, 2022. To be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government agency must 
publish an easily readable and efficiently organized annual comprehensive financial report. This report must satisfy 
both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. 
 
A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current Annual Report 
continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to 
determine its eligibility for another certificate. 
 

Preparation of this Annual Report was accomplished by the combined efforts of District staff. We appreciate the 
dedicated efforts and professionalism that our staff members bring to the District. We would also like to thank the 
Board of Directors for their continued support in the planning, implementation and oversight of the financial and 
internal control policies of the District. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
 
 

     ______________________________________ 
 
Daniel R. York       Jeffery S. Ott 
General Manager      Director of Finance and Administration 
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General Manager and Secretary  Daniel R. York 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
 
Board of Directors of the  
Sacramento Suburban Water District 
Sacramento, California  
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of the Sacramento Suburban 
Water District (District), as of and for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the Table of 
Contents. 
 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
the business-type activities of the District as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 and the respective changes in its financial 
position and its cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
(GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in the Government Auditing Standards, issued by 
the Comptroller General of the United States.  Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.  We are required to be 
independent of the District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical 
requirements relating to our audits.  We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 
 
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, 
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going concern 
for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise 
substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.  
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.  The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  Misstatements are considered material if, there is a 
substantial likelihood that individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable 
user based on the financial statements. 
 
In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing 
Standards, we: 
 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.  Such procedures include examining, 
on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

 
 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
District’s internal control.  Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed 

 
 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 

estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise 
substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time. 

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we 
identified during the audit. 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion 
and analysis be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of 
management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited 
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do 
not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide 
us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.  
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Other Information 
 
Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report.  The other information comprises 
the Introductory Section and Statistical Section listed in the Table of Contents, but does not include the basic financial 
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.  Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not cover the other 
information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and 
consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the basic financial statements, or 
the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  If, based on the work performed, we conclude that 
an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.  
 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 3, 2024, on our 
consideration of the District's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely 
to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
in considering the District’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.  

 

Pleasant Hill, California  
April 3, 2024 
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The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) provides a general overview and analysis of the 
financial activities and performance of the District for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022. Readers are 
encouraged to consider the information presented here in conjunction with the Transmittal Letter and the 
Independent Auditor’s Report which precedes this analysis, and the Basic Financial Statements and related Notes 
to the Basic Financial Statements (Notes), which follow. 

Operational Activities and Financial Highlights 

Operating activity of the District varies from year to year with the resulting changes affecting District revenues, 
expenses, capital project expenditures and overall cash flows. Those activities that tend to drive District costs most 
notably for the periods ending December 2023, 2022, and 2021, are highlighted below. 
 

Water Activities and Highlights 

 For the period ended December 31, 2023 the District sourced 30,018 acre-feet of water (18,770 surface and 
11,247 ground) for 47,788 permanent customer connections, compared to 30,963 acre-feet of water (6,098 
surface and 24,865 ground) for 47,680 connections in 2022, and 32,154 acre-feet of water (2,228 surface 
and 29,976 ground) for 47,402 connections in 2021.  

 

 In 2022, the District joined with other local water purveyors to transfer surface water to several other water 
agencies outside of the Sacramento area. The District’s portion of the transfer resulted in net proceeds of 
$1,312,754 (gross proceeds of $1,748,400 less costs of $435,646). Costs comprise the pumping of 3,842 
acre-feet of ground water delivered to the City of Sacramento and administrative expenses (legal and 
consulting). However, the 3,842 acre-feet of ground water provided to the City of Sacramento will be 
returned to the District at no cost to the District. This will result in economic, as well as aquifer, benefit to 
the District by not having to pump groundwater. At the current net cost for pumping and treating water 
($138.00 per acre-foot) the savings would be approximately $0.53 million.  
 

 In 2023, the District sourced an additional 1,802 acre feet of PCWA surface water that was wheeled to a 
neighboring water purveyor resulting in $0.8 million in additional revenue. The District also received 7,471 
acre feet of no-cost water from the City of Sacramento related to prior surface water transfers resulting in a 
net savings for the District of approximately $1.0 million in pumping and treatment costs. The District still 
has approximately 3,600 acre feet of no-cost water to receive from the City of Sacramento that may be 
available in 2024. 

 -
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 The District has sufficient groundwater well capacity to meet customer demand now and for the foreseeable 
future. The water delivered to District customers meets the regulatory maximum contaminant level (MCL) 
requirements established by the USEPA and State Water Resources Control Board’s Division of Drinking 
Water. The District also adheres to federal, state, and local regulations that govern the operation of the water 
system. If the concentration of a constituent exceeds its regulatory MCL, that source is immediately removed 
from active service. The District regularly tests for over 120 different constituents in its raw and treated 
water.  The results of any detected constituents are published in the “Consumer Confidence Report” or, 
“Annual Water Quality Report” that is distributed to customers each year. A copy is also available on the 
District’s web site: https://www.sswd.org/departments/water-quality/consumer-confidence-reports 

Capital Project Activities and Highlights 

 The District is continuously working on various major construction projects, most of which for the past 
twenty years have been related to the replacement of distribution system mainlines that are near the end of 
their useful service life and the installation of water meters to meet state law requirements as discussed more 
fully below. However, the District has transitioned away from the majority of capital project dollars being 
spent on system mainlines and meter installations to groundwater well rehabilitation and replacement.  

 

 In 2023, approximately 0.7 miles of pipeline and appurtenance replacements were installed at a cost of $2.4 
million, compared to 1.1 miles in 2022 and 0.7 miles in 2021 at costs of $4.9 million and $2.3 million, 
respectively. As of December 31, 2023, the District has five new wells under construction and property 
acquisitions in process to begin construction on two additional wells. Total 2023 spending on well 
rehabilitation and replacement was $19.8 million compared to $14.9 million and $6.1 million in 2022 and 
2021, respectively. Total expenditures for all capital improvement projects in 2023, 2022, and 2021 were 
$24.9 million, $23.8 million, and $15.4 million, respectively. 

 

 In accordance with state law, the District has completed updating all its domestic and irrigation service 
connections to metered before the 2025 mandate. During 2023, 199 new water meters were installed, 
compared to 14 in 2022 and 989 in 2021. As of December 31, 2023, 100 percent of the District’s connections 
are on water meters compared to 99.6 percent at the end of 2022 and 99.6 percent at the end of 2021.  
 

Financial Highlights 

 In 2023, the District submitted billings for $3.9 million against the $18.84 million ARTESIAN agreement 
mentioned above.  

 

 In March 2022, the District completed a refinancing of its 2009A Certificates of Participation (variable rate) 
and its 2012A Revenue Refunding Bonds (fixed rate) to achieve economic benefit from the low interest rates 
on municipal debt and to eliminate the risks associated with its variable rate debt.  Concurrent with the 
refinancing of the 2009A Certificates of Participation, the District also terminated the interest rate swap with 
Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. and the letter of credit with Sumitomo Mitsui Bank. See Note 8 for more details.  
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 Calendar year 2024 is the final year of a 5-year rate increase program mentioned previously. The District 
normally will have a pause year in between rate increase programs. 2025 was to be a pause year, however, 
in November of 2023 the Board of Directors directed staff to prepare a new rate study during 2024 for 
possible implementation as of January 1, 2025.  

Description of the Basic Financial Statements 

The Basic Financial Statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the District’s finances. 
Since the District’s primary function is to deliver a high quality, reliable supply of water to its consumers and 
recover the associated costs through customer rates, fees and charges, the Basic Financial Statements report 
activities in a manner similar to a private-sector business. The Basic Financial Statements are as follows: 

The Statements of Net Position present information on all the District’s assets, deferred outflows of resources, 
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position, some of which is restricted 
in accordance with debt covenants. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator 
of whether the District’s financial position is improving or deteriorating. 

The Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position present information showing how the District’s 
net position changed during the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022. All changes in net position are reported 
as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. 
In other words, the District reports expenses and revenues on an accrual basis rather than a cash basis. 

The Statements of Cash Flows present information on the sources and uses of cash within the District throughout 
the year that serves to explain the change in the amount of the District’s cash and cash equivalents that are on hand 
at the end of each year. Cash generation and/or usage from four different activity-types of the District are provided: 
operations, non-capital financing, capital and related financing, and investing. 

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Notes) provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the Basic Financial Statements. 

The Required Supplementary Information Section of this Annual Report includes information describing the 
District’s contributions to, and funding progress of, the pension plan and postemployment benefits other than 
pensions for District employees. 

The Statistical Section of this Annual Report provides selected financial and operational data over the last ten years 
where available, which includes the Schedule of Net Revenues showing the District’s debt service coverage ratio. 
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Condensed Statements of Net Position 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Assets 2023 2022 Change 2021 Change 
Current assets $      24,185  $       19,101 $     5,083  $     21,270  $ (2,169) 
Non-current assets 36,111  37,209 (1,098)  41,956 (4,747) 
Capital assets, net 338,593  324,542 14,052  309,062 15,480 

Total assets 398,889  380,852 18,037  372,288 8,564 
      

Deferred outflows 10,388  11,254 866 7,307 3,947 

      

Liabilities      
Current liabilities 15,609  14,886 723  13,276 1,610 
Non-current liabilities 66,798  71,332 (4,534) 74,833 (3,501) 

Total liabilities 82,407  86,218 (3,811) 88,110 (1,891) 
      
Deferred inflows 2,652  3,432 (780)  7,784 (4,352) 
      
Net position      

Net investment in capital assets 289,215  270,542 18,673  247,828 22,714  
Restricted for debt service fund 16 2 14 - 2 
Unrestricted 34,987  31,912 3,075  35,874 (3,962) 

Total net position $     324,218  $     302,456 $   21,762  $   283,702 $  18,754 

Referring to the table above, total assets increased by $18.0 million compared to December 31, 2022, to a total of 
$398.9 million as of December 31, 2023. The principal reason for the increase is related to an increase in capital 
assets of $14.0 million as the District replaces its aging infrastructure and a $5.1 million increase in current assets, 
offset by a smaller decrease in other non-current assets. The source of funds for capital projects is primarily a portion 
of customer fixed rate charges collected monthly, as well as state and federal grants when available. 

Current assets increased by $5.1 million in 2023 compared to a $2.2 million decrease in 2022. The 2023 increase 
was primarily attributable to an increase in receivables of $6.5 million, of which $4.9 million is in grant receivables, 
offset by a decrease in cash and cash equivalents of $1.4 million related primarily to increased construction 
spending, while the 2022 decrease was primarily attributable to a decrease in cash and cash equivalents of $4.1 
million related primarily to the termination of the Wells Fargo Bank N.A. swap agreement for $5.6 million in cash 
offset by an increase in receivables of $1.9 million related to the 2022 Water Transfer mentioned above.  

Non-current assets decreased by $1.1 million in 2023 after having decreased by $4.7 million in 2022. The 2023 
decrease is due primarily to maturing investments being held as cash and cash equivalent instead of being reinvested. 
The 2022 decrease is due primarily to a $4.4 million decrease in the investment portfolio (net of investment earnings 
of $0.65 million, proceeds from maturities of $2.70 million transferred to short-term money market account and 
$2.32 million in unrealized investment loss) and to a $0.4 million decrease in the interest rate swap due to 
termination.  The District continues to invest most of its excess cash in the capital markets and tries to maintain a 
minimal investment in the state’s investment pool (LAIF). However, excess operating cash related to delays in 
capital project spending is kept in the LAIF account for liquidity purposes. The investment portfolio and cash 
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equivalents had an unrealized fair value gain of $1,815,904 as of December 31, 2023 compared to an unrealized 
loss of $2,315,214 as of December 31, 2022.  

Capital assets, net, increased $14.0 million in 2023 due primarily to an increase in non-depreciable assets of $11.4 
million (easements and construction-in-progress (CIP)), capitalization of assets of $15.6 million and net 
depreciation of $13.0 million. The 2022 increase of $15.5 million is due primarily to an increase in non-depreciable 
assets of $12.5 million (easements and construction-in-progress (CIP)), capitalization of assets of $15.1 million and 
depreciation of $12.2 million. Expenditures for 2023 and 2022 continue to be primarily for the construction and 
replacement of a portion of the District’s transmission and distribution system ($2.5 and $6.8 million, respectively), 
the addition and/or improvement to well facilities ($19.8 and $14.9 million, respectively), and the addition of $0.3 
and $1.1 million, respectively, of new water meter equipment. Several other capital asset construction projects are 
in various stages of completion with costs incurred during 2023 of $2.3 million and $0.9 million in 2022.  
Developers contributed $2.0 million and $4.2 million in 2023 and 2022, respectively (see Note 6).  

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, deferred outflows of resources primarily include deferred gains and losses on 
advance debt refundings, the recognition of pension expense in accordance with the provisions of GASB Statements 
No. 68 and 71, the recognition of Other Post-employment Benefits (OPEB) expense in accordance with the 
provisions of GASB Statement No. 75 (GASB 75) as well as the recognition of asset retirement obligations in 
accordance with GASB Statement No. 83 (GASB 83). 

Total liabilities decreased by $3.8 million and $1.9 million as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. The 
2023 decrease is due primarily to a decrease in long-term debt ($5.7 million) offset by increases in net pension 
liability ($1.2 million) and accounts payable ($1.0 million). The 2022 decrease is due primarily to several offsetting 
increases and decreases in liabilities related to a decrease in long-term debt ($10.2 million), an increase ($6.9 
million) in net pension liability, and an increase ($1.5 million) in accounts payable and accrued expenses.  

Current liabilities increased to $15.6 million from $14.9 million as of December 31, 2023 primarily related to an 
increase in accounts payable ($1.0 million) and a decrease in accrued expenses ($0.5 million). The 2022 increase 
of $1.6 million was mostly related to an increase in accrued expenses ($0.6 million) and increase in accounts payable 
($0.9 million) for several large construction related invoices for December.    

Non-current liabilities decreased by $4.5 million in 2023 compared to a decrease of 3.5 million in 2022. The 2023 
decrease is primarily related to decrease in the non-current portion of long-term debt ($5.8 million) offset by small 
increases in net pension liability ($1.2 million) and asset retirement obligation ($0.3 million).  The 2022 decrease 
is primarily related to a reduction in long-term debt principal ($7.3 million), termination of the Wells Fargo Bank, 
N.A. interest rate swap ($3.6 million), and an increase in unamortized bond premium ($5.5 million) as part of the 
2022 debt refinancing, scheduled principal paydowns of long-term debt ($5.0 million), and increase in net pension 
liability ($6.9 million). The net pension liability increase is the result of CalPERS investment losses and the effect 
of those losses on the District’s share of the net pension liability.  

The District realized an overall increase in net position of $21.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2023, 
compared to $18.8 million and $15.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. The 
components of net position as of December 31, 2023 are: 

 The largest component of District net position is the District’s net investment in capital assets which 
increased by $18.7 million to $289.2 million as of December 31, 2023, and is comprised of total capital 
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assets (net of accumulated depreciation) plus deferred outflows on long-term debt refundings less related 
long-term debt and other liabilities used to acquire those assets that are still outstanding. The District uses 
these capital assets to provide services to customers within the District’s service area; consequently, these 
assets are not available for future spending.  

 Restricted net position consists solely of debt reserves held in escrow for the District’s debt obligations.  

 At the end of 2023, 2022 and 2021, the District showed a positive balance in its unrestricted net position of 
$35.0 million, $31.9 million, and $35.9 million, respectively. The 2023 increase primarily reflects the 
increase in current assets and investments ($4.0 million), increase in non-debt related deferred outflows ($0.1 
million), an increase in liabilities, net of capital related liabilities, ($1.8 million) and a decrease in deferred 
inflows ($0.8 million). The 2022 decrease of $4.0 million primarily reflects the decrease in current assets 
and investments ($6.5 million), increase in non-debt related deferred outflows ($3.9 million), an increase in 
liabilities, net of capital related liabilities, ($5.3 million) and a decrease in deferred inflows ($4.4 million). 
The 2021 increase of $6.7 million primarily reflects the increase in current assets ($6.5 million), an increase 
in deferred inflows ($6.2 million) and a decrease in non-current liabilities, net of debt, ($6.1 million).  

 

Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

 2023 2022 Change 2021 Change 
Revenues    

Operating revenues $    53,449  $    53,359 $   90 $    48,973  $    4,386 
Rental revenue  317  315  2  339 (24) 
Interest and investment revenue  2,220 (1,664)  3,884 (321) (1,343) 
Grant revenue pass-through to sub recipients -  -   468 (468) 
Other non-operating revenues 791 54 737  765 (711) 

Total revenues  56,777  52,064 4,713 50,224 1,840 
Expenses      

Operating expenses  26,843  22,455 4,388 21,839 616 
Depreciation and amortization  13,734  13,766  (32) 13,588 178 

Interest expense 2,239 2,641 
 

(402) 2,271 370 

Sub recipient grant expense - -  (0)  468 (468) 

Other non-operating expenses 21  344 (323) 132 212 

Total expenses 42,837  39,206 3,631 39,927 908 

Net revenue before capital contributions  13,941  12,858 1,083  11,927 932 
Capital contributions 7,821  5,896 1,925  3,851 2,045 

Change in net position 21,762  18,754 3,008  15,778 2,977 

Net position, beginning of year  302,456  283,702 18,754  267,923 15,778 

Restatement - - - - - 
Net position, end of year $  324,218  $  302,456  $ 21,762 $  283,702 $  18,755 



Sacramento Suburban Water District 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) 
For the Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 

10 

From the table above it can be seen that the District’s net position increased by $21.8 million for the period ended 
December 31, 2023 compared to $18.8 million for 2022. The increases result from a variety of factors as described 
more fully below. 

The District’s operating revenues come primarily from its customers. The District charges a metered rate to its 
commercial customers and a metered or flat rate to residential customers depending on whether the service 
connections of such customers have a water meter. The last of the flat rate bills were billed in October of 2023 as 
the District has completed its meter retrofit program. All District customers, regardless of the type of service, are 
charged a fixed service charge based on the size of their respective meter or connection. Beginning January 1, 2020, 
the District is utilizing a new rate structure that has only two components (usage charge and fixed (service) charge) 
compared with three in the previous period (usage charge, fixed (service) charge and capital facilities charge). The 
capital facilities charge has been combined with the fixed (service) charge.  

In addition, as shown in the table above, and as more fully illustrated in the table below, operating revenues were 
flat and increased by a mere $90,000 compared to the year ended December 31, 2022, primarily due to the net effect 
of the following: 1) the District did not participate in a water transfer in 2023 resulting in a decrease in revenue 
from the previous year of $1.7 million, 2) a 3% average rate increase went into effect on January 1, 2023, which 
resulted in increased service charge revenue of $1.2 million, and 3) wheeling water revenue increased by $0.8 
million as a result of PCWA surface water availability in 2023.  2022 operating revenues increased by $4.4 million 
(8.9%) compared to the year ended December 31, 2021, primarily due to the net effect of the following: 1) the 
District participated in a water transfer that grossed $1.7 million, 2) a 3% average rate increase went into effect on 
January 1, 2022, which resulted in increased service charge revenue of $1.8 million, and 3) other charges for services 
increased by $0.7 million as a result of resuming collections activities..  

 
Operating Revenues 

(Dollars in Thousands) 

 2023 2022 Change 2021 Change 
Operating Revenues      

Water consumption sales  $    15,575  $     15,545 $       30  $  15,392 $      153 
Water consumption sales – transfers -  1,748 (1,748) - 1,748 
Water service charge  36,087  34,921 1,166 33,167 1,754 
Wheeling water charge  794  7 787 6 1 
Other charges for services  993  1,138 (145) 408 730 

Total operating revenues $     53,449  $     53,359 $       90  $  48,973 $    4,386 

Non-operating revenues consist primarily of rental revenue, interest and investment income, and grant revenue. In 
2023, non-operating revenues increased $4.6 million primarily related to the following: 1) Interest and investment 
revenue increased $3.9 million mostly related to a positive net change in the unrealized gain/loss of the investment 
portfolio ($4.1 million) and 2) increase in other non-operating revenues ($0.7 million) mostly related to non-capital 
grant revenues ($0.2 million) and a write-down in the allowance for doubtful accounts ($0.5 million). The 2022 
decrease in non-operating revenue ($2.5 million) was primarily due to a negative net change in the unrealized 
gain/loss of the investment portfolio ($1.3 million), a decrease in other non-operating revenues ($0.7 million) as no 
additional pandemic related grants were received, and a decrease in pass through grant funds ($0.5 million).  
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Interest and Investment Income – Most of the District’s excess cash is invested in fixed-income marketable 
securities. The yield to maturity (on cost) on the investment portfolio as of December 31, 2023, 2022, and 2021 was 
2.82%, 1.44%, and 1.23%, respectively.  

Capital Contributions – The District receives various types of income from capital contributions, such as capacity 
fees, developer contributions and grant income. The District received $ 1.0 million, $1.7 million, and $1.2 million 
in capacity fees in the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021, respectively. The capacity fee revenue for 
2023, 2022, and 2021 primarily relates to the 473 unit Barret Ranch sub-division which completed in 2023.  

Developer Capital Contributions – The District receives revenue in the form of water system assets donated by 
developers that have been inspected by District staff and meet District standards. The District utilizes such assets 
to meet the needs of certain customers. After a one-year warranty period, the developer is no longer liable to the 
District. All such assets are recorded at estimated acquisition value on the date received. In 2023, the value of such 
donated assets was $2.0 million, compared to $4.2 million in 2022 and $2.5 million in 2021. The 2023, 2022 and 
2021 donated assets primarily related to the Barret Ranch sub-division discussed previously. 
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Operating Expenses 

(Dollars in Thousands) 

 2023 2022 Change 2021 Change 
Operating Expenses      

Source of supply $       3,922  $      2,285 $    1,637  $   753 $   1,532 
Pumping 5,911 5,602 309 6,242 (640) 
Transmission and distribution 5,316 4,920 396 5,226 (306) 
Water conservation 712 637 75 502 135 
Customer accounts 1,827 1,798 29 1,477 321 
Administrative and general 9,155 7,213 1,942 7,639 (426) 

Total operating expenses $     26,843  $    22,455 $       4,388  $   21,839 $   616 

Operating expenses are primarily comprised of purchased treated surface water, electrical and chemical treatment 
costs of producing potable well ground water, ongoing system repairs and maintenance, and employee salaries and 
benefits. The volatility of such expenses from one year to another is primarily driven by the amount of surface water 
purchased in that year compared to the previous year. As shown in the table above, operating expenses increased in 
2023 by $4.4 million (19.5%) from 2022 due primarily to the following: 1) an increase in surface water purchases 
from USBR and PCWA ($1.6 million) as Section 215 water was available in the spring and fall and the full take-
or-pay agreement with PCWA was in effect during all of 2023 both due to the significant amount of runoff from 
the winter and spring storms, 2) an increase in administrative and general expenses ($1.9 million) mostly related to 
GASB Statement No. 68 (GASB 68) true-up expenses ($1.0 million), salary and benefit cost increases ($0.6 
million), and an increase in consulting services ($0.3 million), 3) an increase in pumping costs ($0.3 million) mostly 
related to the net effect of increase in salary and benefit costs ($0.4 million), GASB 68 true-up expenses ($0.2 
million), an increase in contract services ($0.2 million) offset by a decrease in electrical and chemical costs ($0.6 
million), and 4) increase in transmission and distribution expense ($0.4 million) mostly related to GASB 68 true-
up expenses of $0.5 million. Operating expenses increased in 2022 by $0.6 million (2.8%) from 2021 due primarily 
to the following: 1) an increase in surface water purchases from San Juan Water District ($1.0 million) as part of 
the 2022 surface water agreement and water transfer costs ($0.4 million) which is offset by a reduction in pumping 
costs ($0.6 million) as less ground water was produced due to a decrease in demand (3.9%) and the increase in 
surface water purchased, and 2) a decrease in administrative and general expenses ($0.4 million) mostly related to 
staff vacancies..   

Non-operating expenses consist primarily of interest expense, which includes amortization of bond premiums and 
deferred defeasance costs and any debt issuance costs, on the District’s debt, the pass-through of grant revenues to 
sub-recipients on grants where the District was the lead agency in securing the grant, and other non-operating 
expenses which generally includes any gain or loss on asset disposals. Interest expense decreased in 2023 by $0.4 
million primarily related to principal paydowns on the 2018A and 2022B revenue bonds, and 2022A revenue bonds 
having lower effective interest rate than the refinanced 2009A COPs. Interest expense decreased in 2022 by $0.2 
million primarily related to principal paydowns on the 2018A revenue bonds, and the refinancing of the 2009A 
certificates of participation and 2012A revenue bonds with lower interest rate debt obligations and amortization of 
defeasance costs increased by $0.2 million. Other non-operating expense for 2022 of $0.3 million related to assets 
retired before the end of their useful life.   
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Capital Asset Administration 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Changes in capital asset amounts for 2023 were as follows: 

 

Balance 
2022 

Additions/ 
Transfers 

Deletions/ 
Transfers 

Balance 
2023 

Capital assets:     
Non-depreciable assets $       31,012 $      25,361 $    (13,939) $     42,434 
Depreciable & amortizable assets 517,619 2,427 13,218 533,264 
Accumulated depreciation & amortization (224,090) (13,734) 719 (237,105) 

Total capital assets, net $     324,541 $     14,503 $             (2) $   338,593 

 
Changes in capital asset amounts for 2022 were as follows: 

 

Balance 
2021 

Additions/ 
Transfers 

Deletions/ 
Transfers 

Balance 
2022 

Capital assets:     
Non-depreciable assets $       18,464 $        24,956 $   (12,408) $     31,012 
Depreciable & amortizable assets 502,485 4,633 10,500 517,619 
Accumulated depreciation & amortization (211,888) (13,766) 1,564 (224,090) 

Total capital assets, net $     309,062 $        15,823 $        (344) $   324,541 

 
As a water utility, most of the District’s assets and annual expenditures relate to the construction, repair and 
maintenance of its infrastructure. Repair and replacement of aging infrastructure is one of the most significant 
challenges facing the District. The District assesses and manages its infrastructure and other capital asset needs 
through prudent and cost-focused planning taking into consideration both current and future water resource 
availability, consumer peak-demand needs, maximizing the use of existing facilities, consideration for climatic 
changes, and other such assessments that can be used to sustain service to both current and future consumers. 
Infrastructure assessment also includes assessing each asset’s risk of failure and the attendant consequences to 
District operations. For each infrastructure asset group, a long-term asset management plan has been developed. 
Infrastructure plans for all District assets are currently in place. Despite such plans having a long-term focus, 
typically to the end of each asset’s useful service life, each plan is reviewed and reassessed every 5 years. See Note 
6 for more detailed information on capital asset activity. 

Funding for capital projects comes primarily from District customers via a monthly fixed charge levied by the 
District for the payment of basic service, capital projects and debt service costs. In addition to customer charges, 
the District also utilizes state and federal grant funds when available for funding capital projects. In 2023, the 
District recognized $4.9 million in grant revenues, $4.0 million related to the $18.84 million ARTESIAN grant 
mentioned previously and $0.9 million related to completion of Well 79, while no capital grant funds were received 
in 2022. As of December 31, 2023, the District has approximately $4.0 million in financial obligations to contractors 
on its open construction contracts. See Note 17 for more information. 
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Long-Term Debt Administration 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Changes in long-term debt amounts for 2023 were as follows: 

 

Balance 
2022 Additions Retirements 

Balance 
2023 

Long-term debt:     
2018A Revenue bond $          6,915 $               - $     (1,285) $       5,630 
2022A Revenue bond 34,455 - - 34,455 
2022B Revenue bond 6,585 - (3,625) 2,964 

Other (1) 6,961 - (788) 6,173 

Total long-term debt $        54,916   $              -  $     (5,698) $     49,218   

 
Changes in long-term debt amounts for 2022 were as follows: 

 

Balance 
2021 Additions Retirements 

Balance 
2022 

Long-term debt:     
2009A Certificates of participation $        42,000 $               -  $       (42,000) $             - 
2012A Revenue bond 8,670 - (8,670) - 
2018A Revenue bond 9,630 - (2,715) 6,915 
2022A Revenue bond  34,725 (270) 34,455 
2022B Revenue bond  6,585  6,585 
Other (2) 4,976 7,552 (5,567) 6,961 

Total long-term debt $        65,276 $      48,862  $       (59,222) $   54,916 

(1) Consists of unamortized long-term debt premiums and deferred defeasance costs (See Note 8)  
(2) Consists of unamortized long-term debt premiums and deferred defeasance costs and an imputed borrowing of an off-market interest rate 
swap (See Note 8) 

The issuance of long-term debt is a valuable funding resource for the District. Used appropriately and prudently, 
long-term debt can minimize the District’s water system charges and rates over time. The District manages its debt 
portfolio so as to mitigate risks inherent in debt issuances within an acceptable tolerance level. By managing debt 
and its repayment, the District is able to reduce various debt-related risk exposures such as market risk, credit risk, 
renewal risk, basis risk and tax risk, yet still provide the District with financing options to be utilized in future 
periods if needed. The District had considered managing such risks more beneficial than eliminating such risks as 
part of its debt management strategy. As part of this strategy, the District had utilized both fixed-rate debt and 
variable-rate debt.  With the extremely low interest rates available on municipal debt during 2021 and early 2022, 
on March 15, 2022, the District completed the refinancing of its 2009A variable-rate COP and its 2012A fixed-rate 
Bonds. As part of this transaction, the District also terminated the swap agreement with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. 
for a price of $5,642,000 and terminated the Letter of Credit with Sumitomo Mitsui Bank related to the 2009A 
COPs.  See Note 8 for more information. 

The District’s debt covenants require that “Net Revenues” exceed 115% of annual debt service costs. For 
compliance history, please see the “Schedule of Net Revenues” in the Statistical Section of this Annual Report. For 



Sacramento Suburban Water District 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) 
For the Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 

15 

both 2023 and 2022, the District’s credit rating was AA+ and Aa2 as rated by Standard and Poor’s Ratings Services, 
Inc. (S&P) and Moody’s Investor Services, Inc. (Moody’s), respectively. See Note 8 for more information. 

2024 Budget 

Annually, the District adopts non-appropriated budgets for planning and control purposes. The budgets are adopted 
on an accrual basis with adjustments for certain cash and non-cash items. Budgetary controls are set at the 
department level. The General Manager has the discretion of reallocating budgeted funds between accounts or 
projects within each budget with subsequent reporting to the Board of Directors. Amendments to the total amount 
of any budget or transfers between budgets must be approved by the Board of Directors prior to adjustment.  

The District utilizes four primary budgets to manage its activities: Revenue and Sources of Funds Budget, Capital 
Budget, Operating Budget and Debt Service Budget. The Capital Budget is divided into two parts: Intermediate-
Term Capital and Long-Term Capital. The long-term capital budget is intended to cover all District infrastructure 
projects that incorporate significant costs or long lead times and planning to complete. The intermediate-term capital 
budget is intended to incorporate expenditures for operational capital items, such as field equipment, fleet and 
facilities, information technology and operations and maintenance. The Operating budget covers all recurring 
operational costs, such as the purchase and treatment of water, repairs and maintenance, employee salaries and 
benefits and other operating and non-operating expenditures. The Revenue and Sources of Funds Budget covers all 
of the District’s operating and non-operating revenue sources in addition to any reserves utilized to balance with 
the budgeted expenditures.  The Debt Service Budget covers all District principal and interest payments on its 
outstanding debt.  

On October 16, 2023, the Board approved a $71.5 million Revenue and Sources of Funds Budget, a $29.7 million 
Capital Budget ($26.7 million for Long-Term Capital and $3.0 million for Intermediate-Term Capital), a $27.2 
million Operating Budget, and a $7.0 million Debt Service Budget for fiscal year 2024. Upon adoption of the Capital 
Budget, the Board also approved certain capital projects as outlined in the District’s asset-management plans 
developed for specific asset groups. 

Conditions Affecting Current Financial Position 

California continues to face the threat of severe droughts. Although it is not possible to forecast the impact of the 
drought on District surface water supplies or the effect, if any, on its financial position, the District has, and will 
continue to maintain, adequate groundwater supplies to meet water demands in its service area through 2024 and 
beyond.  

The winter of 2022/23 saw near historic snowfall in the mountains that provide the source for the District’s 
contracted surface water supplies during the spring and summer resulting in the District taking additional surface 
water over what was budgeted. As was the case in CY2023, the District is anticipating taking up to 12,000 acre feet 
of PCWA surface water in CY2024. This may lead to a budget amendment of approximately $1.0 million to cover 
the increased cost of surface water over groundwater. The District has reserves set aside for such occurrences, if 
needed.  
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During 2021 and 2022 the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers (CPI-U) for the West – Size Class B/C 
(2.5 million or less) increased 13.1%. The District started to feel the impacts of this increase during CY2023. The 
cost of materials and supplies as well as labor have increased significantly. This has put pressure on the District’s 
Capital and Operating budgets. The debt service and operating budgets are the priority in establishing any annual 
budget with the remaining funds available for capital spending. While the debt service budget is fixed until maturity, 
the operating budget continues to increase. These increases have been met by the implemented rate increases from 
2020 - 2024. These challenges are also being met by a planned rate study in 2024 that may lead to rate increases 
starting in January 2025. 

Operationally, the District is still experiencing supply chain issues with materials and supplies for its capital 
projects. Supply chain issues have improved since 2021, however, shortages are still occurring that are affecting 
the scheduling and completion of several district projects.  This has resulted in underspending both the 2023 and 
2022 capital improvement budgets by approximately $4.1 million and $5.2 million, respectively. These unspent 
funds have been allocated to projects and are available to be spent in subsequent years. Approximately $3.9 million 
of the 2022 unspent budget was spent in 2023 with approximately $1.2 million still allocated to delayed projects.  

Requests for Information 

This report is designed to provide a general overview of the District’s finances. Questions concerning information 
provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to: 

 
Director of Finance and Administration 

Sacramento Suburban Water District 
3701 Marconi Avenue, Suite 100 

Sacramento, CA 95821-5346 



 

 

This page intentionally left blank. 

  



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Basic Financial Statements 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

17 
 

Sacramento Suburban Water District 
Statements of Net Position 

December 31, 2023 and 2022 

Assets 2023 
 

2022 
Current assets:   

Cash and cash equivalents (note 3) $        10,269,668  $         11,743,777 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents (notes 3 and 4) 15,624  2,359 
Receivables, net (note 5) 11,557,706  5,117,274 
Inventory 893,594  947,207 
Prepaids and other current assets  1,448,222  1,290,767 

Total current assets 24,184,814 19,101,383 
Noncurrent assets:   

Investments (note 3) 36,111,153 37,208,892 
Capital assets not being depreciated (note 6)  42,434,637 31,012,320 
Capital assets being depreciated and amortized, net  (note 6) 296,158,671   293,529,151 

Total noncurrent assets 374,704,461 361,750,363 
Total assets  398,889,275 380,851,746 

Deferred outflows of resources   
      Deferred amount on long-term debt refundings (note 1) 3,170,940  4,129,419 
      Pensions (note 13)  4,833,965  4,842,834 
      Other post-employment benefits (OPEB) (note 14)  1,124,093  1,300,500 
      Deferred outflow asset retirement obligation (note 15) 1,258,539 981,340 

Total deferred outflows of resources  10,387,537 11,254,093 
Liabilities   
Current liabilities:   

Accounts payable and accrued expenses  5,333,766  4,827,195 
Accrued interest payable  330,665  347,482 
Unearned revenue and customer deposits 3,734,361  3,801,333 
Compensated absences, current portion (note 7)  1,200,000  1,000,000 
Current portion of long-term debt (note 8) 5,010,000  4,910,000 

Total current liabilities 15,608,792 14,886,010 
Noncurrent liabilities:   

Compensated absences (note 7)  173,378  331,763 
Net pension liability (note 13)  13,884,790  12,721,219 
Net OPEB liability (note 14)  3,077,711  3,139,340 
Long-term debt, net of current portion (note 8)  44,207,532  50,005,515 
Asset retirement obligation (note 15) 5,454,858  5,133,984 

Total noncurrent liabilities 66,798,269 71,331,821 
      Total liabilities 82,407,061 86,217,831 

Deferred inflows of resources   
     Pensions (note 13) 409,458  705,650 
     OPEB (note 14)  2,242,137  2,726,012 
               Total deferred inflows of resources  2,651,595 3,431,662 
Net position   

Net investment in capital assets (note 9) 289,215,353 270,541,612 
Restricted for debt service reserve fund (note 10) 15,624 2,359 
Unrestricted (note 2 and 11) 34,987,179 31,912,375 
Total net position $      324,218,156   $      302,456,346 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements 
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Sacramento Suburban Water District 
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 
 2023 2022 

Operating Revenues:   
Water consumption sales $      15,575,205  $      15,545,075 
Water consumption sales – transfers  -  1,748,400 
Water service charge 36,087,140  34,920,697 
Wheeling water charge 794,004  6,806 
Other charges for services 992,930  1,137,823 

Total operating revenues 53,449,278 53,358,801 
Operating Expenses:   

Source of supply 3,922,463  1,849,669 
Source of supply – transfers  -  435,646 
Pumping 5,911,119  5,602,361 
Transmission and distribution 5,316,476  4,919,967 
Water conservation 711,920  637,057 
Customer accounts 1,826,190  1,797,422 
Administrative and general 9,154,969  7,212,451 

Total operating expenses 26,843,138 22,454,573 
Operating income before depreciation and amortization 26,606,140 30,904,228 

Depreciation and amortization (note 6) (13,734,405) (13,766,157) 
Operating income 12,871,735  17,138,071 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):   
Rental revenue 317,159  314,816 
Interest and investment revenue  2,220,422 (1,663,671) 
Interest expense (2,238,571) (2,640,560) 
Other non-operating revenues 715,648  53,509 
Other non-operating expenses  (20,735) - 
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets, net 75,145 (343,802) 

Total non-operating revenues (expenses), net 1,069,068 (4,279,708) 
Income before capital contributions 13,940,803 12,858,363 

Capital contributions:   
Capacity Fees 954,971  1,680,572 
Developer capital contributions 2,011,835  4,215,855 
Federal, state and local capital grants 4,854,201  - 

Total capital contributions 7,821,007 5,896,427 
Increase in net position 21,761,810 18,754,789 

Net position, beginning of year 302,456,346 283,701,557 

Net position, end of year $    324,218,156 $     302,456,346 

 
See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements 
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Sacramento Suburban Water District 
Statements of Cash Flows 

For The Years End December 31, 2023 and 2022 

 2023 2022 

Cash flows from operating activities:   
Cash receipts from customers $   50,744,251  $   51,439,901 
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services  (16,278,946) (16,502,000) 
Cash paid to employees for services  (8,492,799) (6,773,975) 
Other non-operating receipts  354,356  368,325 

Net cash provided by operating activities 26,326,862 28,532,251 

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:   

Grant Receipts  201,743  - 
Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities 201,743 - 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:   

Acquisition of capital assets (25,054,661) (24,328,128) 
Proceeds from disposal of capital assets 76,760  - 
Principal payments on long-term debt  (4,910,000)  (53,655,00) 
Interest payments on long-term debt  (2,084,892) (2,114,402) 
Proceeds from issuing new long-term debt  -  48,861,502 
Issuance costs incurred on long-term debt  - (323,055) 
Principal payments on interest rate swap borrowing payable - (90,805) 
Cash paid for termination of interest rate swap borrowing payable - (5,642,000) 
Cash paid for asset retirement obligation - - 
Capacity fees received 759,154 1,809,287 
Capital contribution received - 120,083 

Net cash used by capital and related financing activities (31,213,639) (35,362,518) 

Cash flows from investing activities:   

Purchase of investment securities  (13,053,701) (8,618,638) 
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investment securities 15,264,550  10,650,228 
Interest received on investment securities 1,013,342  662,531 

Net cash (used) provided by investing activities 3,224,191 2,694,124 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (1,460,844) (4,136,143) 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 11,746,136 15,882,279 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $   10,285,292  $   11,746,136 

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents to the statements of net position: 
Cash and cash equivalents $   10,269,668  $   11,743,777 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 15,624 2,359 
Total cash and cash equivalents $   10,285,292  $   11,746,136 

 

Continued on next page 
See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements 
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Sacramento Suburban Water District 
Statements of Cash Flows, Continued 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 

 2023 2022 

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities: 
Operating income $  12,871,735  $ 17,138,071  

Adjustments to reconcile operating revenue to net cash provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation and amortization 13,734,405 13,766,157 
Asset retirement obligation amortization 43,675 37,966 
Bad debt expense - (63,682) 

     Other non-operating receipts  354,356  368,325 
Change in pension deferred (outflows)  8,869  (3,122,468) 
Change in pension inflows   (296,192)  (4,742,780) 
Change in OPEB deferred (outflows) 176,407 (721,937) 
Change in OPEB inflows  (483,875)  763,527 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities   
(Increase) decrease in operating assets:   

Accounts receivable  (2,833,872)  (162,009) 
Other receivables  1,797,583  (1,785,933) 
Inventory  53,613 101,313 
Prepaids and other current assets (157,454) (161,142) 

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:   
Accounts payable  240,699  453,465 
Unearned revenue 128,845 59,587 
Accrued compensated absences 41,615 133,030 
Net pension liability 1,163,571 6,941,384 
Net OPEB liability  (61,629) (451,111) 
Accrued expenses (455,489) 7,488 

Total adjustments 13,455,126 11,394,181 

Net cash provided by operating activities $  26,326,862  $ 28,532,251  

Noncash investing, capital and financing transactions: 
  

Receipt of donated capital assets $    2,011,835  $   4,215,855  
Change in fair value of investments  1,726,712 (2,251,020) 
Amortization of premium on long-term debt (787,983) (650,905) 
Amortization of defeasance costs on long-term debt  958,478  884,045 
Change in fair value of interest rate swap  -  (373,563) 
Change in asset retirement obligation  320,874  53,119 
Change in allowance for uncollectible accounts  (455,973)  - 
 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements 
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(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The basic financial statements of the District have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles (GAAP) as applied to government units. The Government Accounting Standards Board is the accepted 
standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more 
significant of the District’s accounting principles are described below. 

A. Reporting Entity 

The Sacramento Suburban Water District (District) provides water to residential, commercial and industrial 
customers with a total estimated population of approximately 194,000 through 47,788 connections within its 
boundaries. The water supply of the District is a combination of both groundwater and surface water. The District 
was formed on February 1, 2002 under the County Water District Law (California Water Code Sections 30000-
33901) by the consolidation of the Northridge Water District and the Arcade Water District.  The consolidation was 
approved and ordered by the Sacramento County Local District Formation Commission under the Cortese-Knox-
Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000 (California Government Code Sections 56000-57550). 
The District is located in Sacramento County, north of the American River and serves a large suburban area 
including portions of Citrus Heights, Carmichael, North Highlands, City of Sacramento, and Antelope, as well as 
McClellan Park (formerly McClellan Air Force Base). The District is currently governed by a five-member Board 
of Directors elected by the voters within the District for staggered four year terms, every two years.  

B. Component Unit 

The Sacramento Suburban Water District Financing Corporation (Corporation), formerly known as the Arcade 
Water District Financing Corporation, was created to provide assistance in the issuance of debt.  The Corporation 
is a nonprofit public benefit corporation organized under the laws of the State of California. The Corporation is 
governed by a five-member Board of Directors, each of whom must be a member of the District’s Board of 
Director’s. Although legally separate from the District, the Corporation is reported as a “blended” component unit 
of the District, because it shares a common Board of Directors with the District, and its sole purpose is to provide 
financing to the District. Debt issued by the Corporation is reflected as debt of the District in the basic financial 
statements. The Corporation has no financial transactions and does not issue financial statements, therefore 
combining information is not presented. 

C. Jointly Governed Organization 

The District is a signatory to the Regional Water Authority’s (RWA) Joint Powers Agreement. The RWA was 
formed to address regional water issues with a mission to serve and represent the regional water supply interests of 
its 21 members in protecting and enhancing the reliability, availability, affordability and quality of water resources. 
RWA does not possess nor exercise governing or regulatory authority over its members. The District does not have 
an ongoing financial responsibility to RWA. The financial transactions between the District and RWA during the 
years ending December 31, 2023 and 2022, primarily involved the payment of annual membership dues and grant 
administration expenses, which were not material to the District’s financial statements.  Copies of RWA’s annual 
financial reports and other pertinent information may be obtained from their office at 5620 Birdcage Street, Suite 
180, Citrus Heights, CA 95610, from their website at www.rwah2o.org, or by calling (916) 967-7692. 
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(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

D. Basis of Accounting and Principles of Presentation 

The District is accounted for as an enterprise fund type of the proprietary fund group and therefore accounts for its 
operations in a manner similar to a private enterprise since it is the intent of the District to recover its cost of 
providing goods and services to the public on a continuing basis primarily through user charges.  

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus. The 
basic financial statements reflect the flow of economic resources measurement focus and the full accrual basis of 
accounting. Under the full accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are 
recorded at the time the liabilities are incurred regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 

The principal operating revenues of the District are charges to customers for water sales and services. Operating 
expenses include the cost to purchase, pump, treat and deliver water, administrative expenses and depreciation on 
capital assets. The District distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from non-operating revenues and 
expenses based on the relationship of the revenue or expense to the production and delivery of water.  

Preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows 
of resources and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the basic financial statements and 
reported changes in net position during the reporting period. Actual results may differ from those estimates. 

E. Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Net Position 

1. Unrestricted and Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 
For the purpose of the Statements of Cash Flows, the District considers commercial paper and all short-term 
debt securities (including those for restricted assets) purchased with an original maturity of three months or less 
at the date of purchase to be cash and cash equivalents.  The District also invests funds with the Local Agency 
Investment Fund (LAIF). Due to the high liquidity of this investment, these funds are classified as cash 
equivalents.  
 
2. Receivables and Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts 
The District extends credit to customers in the normal course of operations. When management deems customer 
accounts uncollectible, the District goes through various steps to collect on the account. If uncollectible, the 
District adjusts its uncollectible accounts using the allowance method. 
 
3. Inventory 
Inventory consists primarily of water meters, pipe, valves and pipefittings for construction and repair of the 
District’s water transmission and distribution system. Inventory is valued at cost using a first-in, first-out 
method. Inventory items are charged to expense at the time individual items are withdrawn from inventory or 
consumed. 
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(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

4. Prepaid Expenses 
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs or deposits applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded 
as prepaid current assets in the basic financial statements. 
 
5. Investments and Investment Policy 
Investments are reported in the accompanying Statements of Net Position at fair value. Changes in fair value 
that occur during the year are recognized as Interest and Investment revenue reported for that year. Interest and 
Investment revenue includes interest earnings, changes in fair value, and any gains or losses realized upon the 
liquidation, maturity or sale of investments. 
 
6. Capital Assets 
Capital assets acquired and/or constructed are capitalized at historical cost. Donated capital assets and 
easements are valued at estimated acquisition value on the date received. Maintenance and repairs are charged 
to operations when incurred. It is the District’s policy to capitalize all capital assets with a cost of more than 
$5,000 individually or for a group of similar items. Costs of capital assets sold or retired (and the related 
amounts of accumulated depreciation or amortization) are eliminated from the Statements of Net Position in 
the year of sale or retirement, and the resulting gain or loss is recognized in non-operating revenues (expenses). 
Depreciation/amortization is recorded on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as 
follows: 
 

 Pipelines      80 years 

 Reservoirs and Wells     20 to 55 years 

 Water Meters     10 to 20 years 

 Building and Building Improvements  10 to 40 years  

 Vehicles and Equipment       5 to 10 years 

 Furniture and Computers        4 to   7 years 

 Construction-In-Progress    None until placed in service 
 
Intangible assets consist primarily of donated permanent property easements and purchased pipeline capacity 
in a transmission pipeline owned and operated by San Juan Water District and purchased pipeline and treatment 
plant capacity in a transmission pipeline and water treatment plant owned and operated by the City of 
Sacramento. 
 
7. Long-Term Debt Refundings 
Unamortized gains and losses resulting from advance debt refundings are classified as deferred outflows of 
resources. 
 

8. Compensated Absences   
Compensated absences are accrued and reported as a liability in the period earned. Amounts payable are 
included in the Statements of Net Position. The District’s policy provides vacation leave to employees at a rate 
of 12 days up to 25 days per year based on the number of years of employment and is considered earned on a 
pro-rata basis as of each payroll period throughout the year. Earned vacation leave is paid to employees upon  
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(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

separation from the District. Employees are paid once a year for all earned vacation leave exceeding 400 hours 
at their current hourly rate of pay. Based upon meeting certain criteria, employees may be paid for earned 
vacation leave at any time. Sick leave accrues at the rate of 96 hours per year and is considered earned on a pro-
rata basis as of each payroll period throughout the year. Earned sick leave is paid to employees who are age 55 
and older upon retirement at their current hourly rate of pay or may be contributed to the District’s deferred 
compensation plan (See Note 12) or the California Public Employee Retirement System (CalPERS) defined 
benefit pension plan provided by the District for additional service credit (See Note 13). Employees under age 
55 are paid once a year for all earned sick leave exceeding 240 hours at one-half of their current hourly rate of 
pay (See Note 7). 

 
9. Long-Term Debt Discounts and Premiums 
Long-term debt discounts and premiums are deferred and amortized over the life of the related debt using the 
straight-line method. Long-term debt is reported net of the applicable discounts or premiums. 
 
10. Pensions  
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Plan and 
additions to/deductions from the Plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they 
are reported by CalPERS Financial Office. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee 
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are 
reported at fair value. 
 
11. Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB) 
For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to OPEB and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the OPEB plan 
and additions to/deductions from the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same 
basis. For this purpose, benefit payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit 
terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 
 
12. Lease and Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements (SBITA) Accounting 
 
A lease or SBITA is defined as a contract that conveys control of the right to use another entity’s nonfinancial 
assets (the underlying asset) as specified in the contract for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like 
transaction.  Examples of nonfinancial assets include buildings, land vehicles, equipment and software.  The 
District’s policy is to evaluate leases and SBITAs annually.  Any material lease or SBITA, defined as having a 
net present value greater than one percent (1.0%) of the five-year average of annual total assets, shall be reported 
in accordance with GASB Statement No. 87 (GASB 87) and GASB Statement No. 96 (GASB 96) as 
appropriate.  As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the District did not have any leases or SBITAs meeting this 
threshold. 
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(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

13. Net Position   
GASB Statement No. 63 requires that net position be reported as the difference between assets, plus 
deferred outflows of resources, less liabilities, and less deferred inflows of resources. Net position is to be 
further classified into three components: net investment in capital assets, restricted, and unrestricted. In 
addition, the impact of deferred outflows or inflows of resources on net position must be explained. 
 

 Net Investment in Capital Assets – This component consists of capital assets, net of accumulated 
depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of long-term debt, other liabilities and deferred 
amounts related to debt refunding used to acquire such assets and the effect of deferring the recognition 
of losses from long-term debt refundings, The deferred outflows from losses on long-term debt 
refundings at December 31, 2023 and 2022, were $3,170,940 and $4,129,419, respectively, and are 
amortized and recognized as a component of interest expense in a systematic and rational manner over 
the remaining life of the old debt or the life of the new debt, whichever is shorter. These investments 
are considered non-expendable. 
 

 Restricted for Debt Service Reserve Fund – This component consists of external legal constraints 
placed on District assets by long-term debt holders. 

 

 Unrestricted – This component of net position consists of the net amount of assets, deferred outflows 
of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources that do not meet the definition of “net 
investment in capital assets” or “restricted for debt service reserve fund.” Amounts included as 
unrestricted are available for designation for specific purposes as established by the District’s Board of 
Directors. When an expense is incurred for which both restricted and unrestricted net position are 
available for use, it is the District’s policy to use restricted resources first then unrestricted resources 
as they are needed. 

 
 Effect on Unrestricted Net Position from Deferred Inflow and Outflow of Resources – The 

unrestricted net position amount of $34,987,179 and $31,912,375 at December 31, 2023 and 2022, 
respectively, includes the net pension and OPEB liability and asset retirement obligation.  
The deferred outflows of resources related to net pension liability of $4,833,965 and $4,842,834 at 
December 31, 2023 and 2022, will be amortized and recognized as pension expense over periods of 
five years or less. The deferred outflows of resources related to net OPEB liability of $1,124,093 and 
$1,300,500 at December 31, 2023 and 2022, will be amortized and recognized as OPEB expense over 
periods of five years or less. The deferred outflow of resources related to asset retirement obligations 
of $1,258,539 and $981,340 at December 31, 2023 and 2022 will be amortized and recognized as an 
operating expense over the remaining estimated useful life of the related assets.  
The deferred inflows of resources related to pensions of $409,458 and $705,650 at December 31, 2023 
and 2022 will be amortized and recognized as pension expense over periods of five years or less. The 
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB of $ 2,242,137 and $2,726,012 at December 31, 2023 
and 2022 will be amortized and recognized as OPEB expense over periods of five years or less. 
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(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

F. Revenues 

1. Water Consumption Sales and Fixed Service Charges (Water Sales)  
The District’s principal source of income is from water sales. Water rates are established by the Board of 
Directors and are supported by cost-of-service studies. Water rates are not subject to regulation by the California 
Public Utilities Commission or by any other local, state or federal agency. Water sales to District customers are 
billed on a monthly basis. Invoices for customers on a flat rate basis are billed in advance, while customers who 
pay based on a consumption basis are billed in arrears. Consumption amounts are determined on a weekly basis 
each comprising a monthly period. Estimated unbilled water sales revenue for consumption are accrued and 
recorded in the period the water was used. Fixed charges, levied for service, capital asset projects and debt 
service payments, are applied to all District customers based on their respective meter or service size 
connection. Wheeling charges are revenues received from neighboring water purveyors who utilize the 
District’s transmission and distribution system. Other charges for services consist of customer related revenues 
for various services provided by the District including penalty charges. All other revenues are considered non-
operating revenues, which comprise primarily investment, rent and grant revenues and capital contributions. 
 
2. Capital Contributions 
 
Capital contributions represent cash, easements, and capital assets contributed to the District by property owners 
or real estate developers desiring services that require capital expenditures or capacity commitment, and federal 
and state grant proceeds for certain capital projects. 
 

G. Budgetary Policies 

The District does not operate under any legal budgeting requirement. However, the District adopts an annual 
non-appropriated operations and maintenance expense budget, capital budget, debt service budget and revenue 
and sources of funds budget for planning, control, and evaluation purposes. The budgets are prepared on an 
accrual basis with adjustments for certain cash and non-cash items. Budgetary control is maintained at various 
levels within the District and evaluation is effectuated by comparisons of actual operating expenses, capital 
costs, debt service costs and revenue with budgeted operating expenses, capital costs, debt service costs and 
revenue during the year. As required by certain debt covenants, the annual operating budget is also evaluated, 
along with budgeted revenues, such that net revenues, as defined by the various debt covenants, are equal to or 
exceed a minimum of 115% of the budgeted debt service costs for the budget year. 

H. Implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Pronouncements 

Management adopted the provisions of the following Governmental Accounting Standards Board statements 
during the year ended December 31, 2023. 

GASB Statement No. 99 – Omnibus 2022 – In April 2022, the GASB issued Statement No. 99, Omnibus 
2022. The objectives of this Statement are to enhance comparability in accounting and financial reporting and 
to improve the consistency of authoritative literature by addressing (1) practice issues that have been identified 
during implementation and application of certain GASB Statements and (2) accounting and financial reporting 
for financial guarantees. 
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(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

GASB Statement No. 100 – Accounting Changes and Error Corrections – In June 2022, the GASB issued 
Statement No. 100, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections. The primary objective of this Statement is to 
enhance accounting and financial reporting requirements for accounting changes and error corrections to 
provide more understandable, reliable, relevant, consistent, and comparable information for making decisions 
or assessing accountability. This Statement defines accounting changes as changes in accounting principles, 
changes in accounting estimates, and changes to or within the financial reporting entity and describes the 
transactions or other events that constitute those changes. As part of those descriptions, for (1) certain changes 
in accounting principles and (2) certain changes in accounting estimates that result from a change in 
measurement methodology, a new principle or methodology should be justified on the basis that it is preferable 
to the principle or methodology used before the change. That preferability should be based on the qualitative 
characteristics of financial reporting—understandability, reliability, relevance, timeliness, consistency, and 
comparability. This Statement also addresses corrections of errors in previously issued financial statements. 
Furthermore, this Statement addresses how information that is affected by a change in accounting principle or 
error correction should be presented in required supplementary information (RSI) and supplementary 
information (SI). For periods that are earlier than those included in the basic financial statements, information 
presented in RSI or SI should be restated for error corrections, if practicable, but not for changes in accounting 
principles. The requirements of this Statement are effective for accounting changes and error corrections made 
in fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2023, and all reporting periods thereafter. Earlier application is 
encouraged. 

I. Future Accounting Pronouncements  

GASB has issued the following statements which may impact the District’s financial reporting requirements in 
the future. The District is currently analyzing the impact of implementing these new statements. 

In June 2022, the GASB issued Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences. The objective of this Statement is 
to better meet the information needs of financial statement users by updating the recognition and measurement 
guidance for compensated absences. That objective is achieved by aligning the recognition and measurement 
guidance under a unified model and by amending certain previously required disclosures. The requirements of 
this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023, and all reporting periods 
thereafter. Earlier application is encouraged. 

In December 2023, the GASB issued Statement No. 102, Certain Risk Disclosures. The objective of this 
Statement is to provide users of government financial statements with essential information about risks related 
to a government’s vulnerabilities due to certain concentrations or constraints. This Statement defines a 
concentration as a lack of diversity related to an aspect of a significant inflow of resources or outflow of 
resources. A constraint is a limitation imposed on a government by an external party or by formal action of the 
government’s highest level of decision-making authority. Concentrations and constraints may limit a 
government’s ability to acquire resources or control spending. This Statement requires a government to assess 
whether a concentration or constraint makes the primary government reporting unit or other reporting units that 
report a liability for revenue debt vulnerable to the risk of a substantial impact. Additionally, this Statement 
requires a government to assess whether an event or events associated with a concentration or constraint that  
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(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

could cause the substantial impact have occurred, have begun to occur, or are more likely than not to begin to 
occur within 12 months of the date the financial statements are issued. If a government determines that those 
criteria for disclosure have been met for a concentration or constraint, it should disclose information in notes to 
financial statements in sufficient detail to enable users of financial statements to understand the nature of the 
circumstances disclosed and the government’s vulnerability to the risk of a substantial impact. The disclosure 
should include descriptions of the following: 1) The concentration or constraint, 2) Each event associated with 
the concentration or constraint that could cause a substantial impact if the event had occurred or had begun to 
occur prior to the issuance of the financial statements, and 3) Actions taken by the government prior to the 
issuance of the financial statements to mitigate the risk. The requirements of this Statement are effective for 
fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2024, and all reporting periods thereafter. Earlier application is encouraged. 

(2) Change in Accounting Principles  

During the year ended December 31, 2023, there were no changes in accounting principles. In addition, the District 
adopted GASB Statement No. 100, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections, but had no accounting changes or 
error corrections to report.  

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the District adopted GASB 87, Leases and GASB 96, Subscription-
Based Information Technology Arrangements. These statements require the District to recognize in its accrual basis 
financial statements a new asset and liability, deferred outflow and inflow of resources, amortization of the related 
assets and deferred outflow of resources, and principal and interest payments of those amounts related to lease and 
SBITA agreements. The District also implemented a new financial policy in fiscal year 2022 that establishes the 
guidelines for reporting leases and SBITAs. Any material lease or SBITA, defined as having a net present value 
greater than one percent (1.0%) of the five-year average of annual total assets, shall be reported in accordance with 
GASB 87 or GASB 96, as appropriate. As of December 31, 2023, and 2022, the District did not have any leases or 
SBITAs meeting this threshold. 
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(3) Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments 

As a public agency, the District’s investment practices are prescribed by various provisions of the California 
Government Code, as well as by Board policy. The District’s investment policy is reviewed annually by the Board 
of Directors and describes the Director of Finance & Administration/District Treasurer’s investment authority, 
practices, and limitations. The basic investment policy objectives of the District, in order of importance, are: safety 
of principal, liquidity, interest rate risk hedging, and return on investments. 

Cash and investments as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 are classified in the Statements of Net Position as follows:  

 2023 2022 
Cash and cash equivalents  $    10,269,668  $    11,743,777  
Restricted cash and cash equivalents* 15,624  2,359 
Investments 36,111,153  37,208,892 
   Total $   46,396,445  $   48,955,028  

* Restricted cash and cash equivalents are amounts established by Trust Agreements per certain long-term debt covenants. See 
Note 4 for further details. 

Cash, cash equivalents and investments as of December 31, 2023, and 2022 by investment type are as follows: 

 2023 2022 

Cash on hand $           3,950  $           3,950  

Deposits with financial institutions  7,554,691  3,232,370 

Cash held by bond trustee 15,624  2,359 

Total cash  7,574,265  3,238,679 

California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 11,754  4,707,305 

Money market mutual funds  2,699,273  3,800,151 

Total cash equivalents  2,711,027  8,507,457 

Negotiable certificates of deposit - 297,103 

U.S. treasury notes/bonds 13,058,812 14,360,465 

Federal agency securities 2,773,683 6,260,972 

Municipal obligations 1,630,150 1,655,104 

Corporate notes 9,873,699 8,998,736 

Mortgage backed and asset backed securities 8,348,957 4,338,961 

Supranationals 425,852 1,297,551 

Total investments  36,111,153 37,208,892 

Total $   46,396,445  $  48,955,028  

Fair Value Measurement 
The District categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally 
accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure fair value of the 
asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets, Level 2 inputs are significant other 
observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. 
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(3)  Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments, continued 

The District has the following recurring fair value measurements as of December 31, 2023: 

  Fair Value Measurements Using 

Investments by fair value level Total 

Quoted Prices 
in Active 

Markets for 
Identical Assets  

(Level 1) 

Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs  

(Level 2) 

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs 
(Level 3) 

U.S. treasury notes/bonds $   13,058,812 $     3,058,812 $                  -   $                  - 

Federal agency securities 2,773,683 - 2,773,683 - 

Municipal obligations 1,630,150 - 1,630,150 - 

Corporate notes 9,873,699 - 9,873,699 - 

Mortgage and asset backed securities 8,348,957 - 8,348,957 - 

Supranationals 425,852 - 425,852 - 

   Total investments by fair value level $   36,111,153 $   13,058,812   $  23,052,341   $                  - 

 

The District has the following recurring fair value measurements as of December 31, 2022: 

  Fair Value Measurements Using 

Investments by fair value level Total 

Quoted Prices 
in Active 

Markets for 
Identical Assets  

(Level 1) 

Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs  

(Level 2) 

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs 
(Level 3) 

Negotiable certificates of deposit $         297,103 $                     - $       297,103   $                  - 

U.S. treasury notes/bonds 14,360,465 14,360,465 -  

Federal agency securities 6,260,972 - 6,260,972 - 

Municipal obligations 1,655,104 - 1,655,104 - 

Corporate notes 8,998,736 - 8,998,736 - 

Mortgage and asset backed securities 4,338,961 - 4,338,961 - 

Supranationals 1,297,551 - 1,297,551 - 

   Total investments by fair value level $   37,208,892 $   14,360,465   $  22,848,427   $                  - 

 
All securities classified in Level 2 are valued using pricing models that are based on market data, such as matrix or 
model pricing, which use standard inputs, that include benchmark yields, reported trades, broker/dealer quotes, 
issue spreads, two sided markets, benchmark securities, bids, offers and reference data including market research 
publications. All securities classified in Level 3 are valued using cost. 
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(3)  Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments, continued  

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the District’s Investment Policy 
The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized in accordance with the California Government 
Code or the District’s investment policy, where more restrictive. The table also identifies certain provisions of the 
California Government Code (or the District’s investment policy, where more restrictive) that address interest rate 
risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk. 

Authorized Investment Type 

Maximum 
Maturity(1) 

Maximum 
Percentage 
Of Portfolio 

Maximum 
Investment 

in One Issuer 

U.S. treasury notes/bonds 5 years None None 

Federal agency securities 5 years None None 

Municipal Obligations 5 years None None 

Repurchase agreements 1 year 50% None 

Bankers acceptances 180 days 40% 5% 

Commercial paper (2) 270 days 25% 5% 

Negotiable certificates of deposit 5 years 30% 5% 

Medium-term notes 5 years 30% 5% 

Time deposits 1 year 50% None 

Mortgage backed and asset backed securities 5 years 20% 5% 

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)(3) N/A (3) None 

Money market mutual funds N/A 20% 10% 

Local Government Investment Pools N/A None None 

Supranationals 5 years 30% 10% 

(1) The California Government Code provides authority to the Board to permit maturities beyond 5 years for certain investments. Current 
Board policy provides for maturities longer than 5 years for funds established by Indentures of Trust. 

(2) Limited to funds invested in California Government Code authorized instruments. 
(3) California Government Code limits the District’s investment for operating and reserve funds in LAIF to $75 million. There is no ceiling 

on bond proceeds invested in LAIF. Transactions are limited to 15 per month with a 24 hour notice for withdrawals in excess of $10 
million. Maximum withdrawal amounts are $75 million and LAIF funds are not eligible for borrowing. 

 

Investment in LAIF 
The District is a voluntary participant in LAIF that is regulated by California Government Code Section 16429 
under the oversight of the Local Investment Advisory Board, which consists of five members, with the Treasurer 
of the State of California serving as chairman. The fair value of the District’s investment in the LAIF pool is reported 
in the Statements of Net Position as a cash equivalent based upon the District’s pro-rata share of the fair value 
provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance 
available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an 
amortized cost and current value basis. The total fair value of all public agencies invested in LAIF at December 31, 
2023 and 2022 was $21.0 billion and $27.7 billion, respectively.  
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(3)  Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments, continued 

Cash equivalents and investments contain certain risks. The District has implemented various provisions to address 
the following risks: interest rate risk, credit risk, concentration of credit risk, and custodial credit risk. 
 

Interest Rate Risk  
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates on investments with or without embedded options 
will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. The District manages this risk by holding investments to 
maturity or by adjusting the effective duration (a measure of the responsiveness of a bond's price to interest rate 
changes) of the investment portfolio against a nationally recognized benchmark index that most closely relates to 
the District’s investment objectives. The District selected the “Bank of America Merrill Lynch 0-5 Year U.S. 
Treasury Index” as its benchmark index. The District’s duration targets are reviewed quarterly and, dependent on 
the evaluation of various markets and non-market factors (such as cash-flow needs of the District), a duration goal 
is set. As of December 31, 2023, and 2022, the effective duration of the “Bank of America Merrill Lynch 0-5 Year 
U.S. Treasury Index” was 2.02 and 1.97, respectively. 

Duration of cash and investments for 2023 were as follows: 
 

  Maturities 

 Fair Value 12 Months or Less 13 to 24 Months 
25 to 60 
Months 

Cash  $        7,574,265   $        7,574,265   $                    - $                    - 

LAIF 11,754 11,754 - - 

Money market funds 2,699,273 2,699,273 - - 

   Total Cash and Cash Equivalent 10,285,292 10,285,292 - - 

U.S. treasury notes/bonds      13,058,812 97,047 926,875 12,034,890 

Federal agency securities 2,773,683  2,773,684  

Municipal obligations 1,630,150 293,070 1,253,092 83,988 

Corporate notes 9,873,699 3,429,795 2,374,129 4,069,774 
Mortgage backed and asset backed 
securities 8,348,957 283,143 721,197 7,344,617 

Supranationals 425,852 425,852   

   Total Investments 36,111,153 4,528,907 8,048,977 23,533,269 
Total cash and investments by 
fair value level $      46,396,445  $       14,814,199   $      8,048,977  $   23,533,269  
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(3)  Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments, continued 

Duration of cash and investments for 2022 were as follows: 
 

  Maturities 

 Fair Value 12 Months or Less 13 to 24 Months 
25 to 60 
Months 

Cash  $       3,238,679  $         3,238,679  $                    - $                    - 

LAIF  4,707,305   4,707,305                      -                     - 

Money market funds  3,800,151   3,800,151                     -                     - 

   Total Cash and Cash Equivalent     11,746,136 11,746,136 - - 

Negotiable certificates of deposit            297,103   297,103 -                     - 

U.S. treasury notes/bonds 14,360,465 1,856,391 5,424,320 7,079,754 

Federal agency securities 6,260,972 - 3,588,864 2,672,108 

Municipal obligations 1,655,104 83,573 283,978 1,287,544 

Corporate notes 8,998,736 96,595 3,430,953 5,471,187 
Mortgage backed and asset backed 
securities 4,338,961 - 487,268 3,851,693 

Supranationals 1,297,551 887,548 410,003 - 

   Total Investments 37,208,892 3,221,210 13,625,395 20,362,286 
Total investments by fair value 
level $     48,955,028   $      14,967,346   $   13,625,395   $   20,362,286   

 
Credit Risk 
Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment. 
The District manages such risk by purchasing investments with nationally recognized credit ratings that meet or 
exceed District credit rating requirements at the time of purchase. Credit ratings utilized are those provided by 
Standard and Poor’s or Moody’s Ratings Services, where applicable. Additionally, regular monitoring of the credit 
ratings of purchased securities held in the portfolio is performed to evaluate individual securities for potential sale. 

Cash equivalents credit ratings as of December 31, 2023, were as follows: 

Cash Equivalent Type 
Minimum 

Legal Rating 

Ratings as of Year-End 

Not Rated AAA/AA A-1+/A-1 
LAIF  $       11,754  - $           11,754   $                  -   $                 -   

Money market funds 2,699,273 AAA  2,699,273  

Total cash equivalents $  2,711,027   $           11,754   $   2,699,273   $                 -   
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(3)  Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments, continued 

Investment credit ratings as of December 31, 2023, were as follows: 

Investment Type 

Minimu
m Legal 
Rating  

 Ratings as of Year-End 

Not Rated AAA AA+/AA- 
A+/A/A-/ 
A-1/A-3 

U.S. treasury notes/bonds $  13,058,812 - $               - $               - $ 13,058,812 $                   - 

Federal agency securities 2,773,683 - - - 2,773,683 - 

Municipal obligations 1,630,150 - 598,089 122,207 909,854 - 

Corporate notes 9,873,699 A - - 2,661,628 7,212,071 
Mortgage backed and asset 
backed securities 8,348,957 AA 576,751 2,566,732 5,205,474 - 

Supranationals 425,852 AA - 425,852 - - 

Total investments $    36,111,153  $ 1,174,840 $ 3,114,791 $ 24,609,451 $   7,212,071 

Cash equivalents credit ratings as of December 31, 2022, were as follows: 

Cash Equivalent Type 

Minimum 
Legal 
Rating 

Ratings as of Year-End 

Not Rated AAA/AA A-1+/A-1 
LAIF  $   4,707,305  - $    4,707,305   $                  -   $                 -   

Money market funds 3,800,151 AAA - 3,800,151 - 

Total cash equivalents $   8,507,456  - $    4,707,305   $   3,800,151   $                 -   

Investment credit ratings as of December 31, 2022, were as follows: 

Investment Type 

Minimum 
Legal 
Rating  

 Ratings as of Year-End 

Not Rated AAA AA+/AA- 

A+/A/A-/ 
A-1/A-

1+/A1-A3 
Negotiable certificates of 
deposit $     297,103   A $              -   $              -   $                 - $    297,103   

U.S. treasury notes/bonds 14,360,465 - - - 14,360,465 - 

Federal agency securities 6,260,972 - - - 6,260,972 - 

Municipal obligations 1,655,104 -  271,457   117,530  1,266,117 - 

Corporate notes 8,998,736 A - - 2,295,044 6,703,692 
Mortgage backed and asset 
backed securities 4,338,961 AA  616,993   3,455,550  266,418 - 

Supranationals 1,297,551 AA - 1,297,551 - - 

Total investments $  37,208,892     $   888,450  $ 4,870,631  $ 24,449,016   $ 7,700,795  

 
Concentration of Credit Risk  
At December 31, 2023 and 2022 the District had no investments (obligations of the U.S. government, obligations 
explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government or external investment pools (LAIF) not included) representing five 
percent or more of its investments. 
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(3)  Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments, continued 

Custodial Credit Risk 
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, the 
District will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the 
possession of an outside party. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, $8,341,674 and $3,316,931, respectively, of the 
District’s deposits were in excess of federal depository insurance (FDIC) limit of $250,000. The custodial credit 
risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to a transaction, the District will 
not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. 
The California Government Code and the District’s investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements 
that would limit exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, other than the following provision: 
the California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or local 
governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state 
law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The fair value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must 
equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows financial 
institutions to secure public agency deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of 
the secured public deposits. 

(4)  Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents  

Restricted cash and cash equivalents are amounts established by debt covenants on certain long-term debt issuances. 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents as of December 31 were as follows: 

 2023 2022 

2012A Revenue bond interest payment fund $                 -  $              10 

2018A Revenue bond interest payment fund 3,694 1,687 

2022A Revenue bond interest payment fund 2,187  626 

2022B Revenue bond interest payment fund 9,743 36 

Total $       15,624 $         2,359 

(5)  Receivables, Net and Restricted Receivable 

Receivables as of December 31 consist of the following: 

 2023 2022 

Water sales and services receivable $    6,492,454  $    3,658,582 

Allowance for doubtful accounts  (-) (455,973) 

Accrued interest receivable  211,050  117,081 

Receivable from City of Sacramento - 1,793,188 

Receivable, grants from RWA  4,854,201  4,395 

Total $  11,557,706 $    5,117,274 
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(6)  Capital Assets 

Changes in capital assets for the year ended December 31, 2023, were as follows: 

 Balance 2022 Additions Deletions Transfers Balance 2023 

Non-depreciable assets:      
Land  $    2,851,278 $                     -   $                 -   $          74,609    $    2,925,887  

Permanent easements 5,460,810  422,775  - -  5,883,585  

Construction-in-progress 22,700,232 24,938,498   - (14,013,565)  33,625,165  

Total non-depreciable assets 31,012,320 25,361,273 - (13,938,956)  42,434,637  

Depreciable and amortizable assets:      

Land improvements 1,918,663  15,748  -  587,239   2,521,650  

Pumping and wells 69,511,899 6,027  -  6,614,761   76,132,687  

Hydrants, PRV stations, valves 150,774,679  1,115,590   (31,892)  2,059,167   153,917,544  

Purchased trans & dist pipelines 199,742,522  473,470   -  3,440,180   203,656,172  

Capacity entitlement 20,680,032 12,398 -  -   20,692,430  

Storage facilities – reservoirs 14,544,783 58,073 -  -    14,602,856  

Water meters 44,817,732 29,214 (4,716) 598,126 45,440,356 

Buildings 3,150,040 - - 547,610  3,697,650  

Buildings improvements 3,897,974  131,248  - 21,415  4,050,637  

Machinery and equipment 1,591,087  -   - -  1,591,087  

Fleet equipment 2,190,460  380,942  (285,001) -  2,286,401  

Office equipment  137,993  - -  137,993  

Computer software 3,116,972  33,310   (32,035) -  3,118,247  

Computer hardware & equipment 1,543,854 170,564  (366,868) 70,458  1,418,008  

Total depreciable & amort. Assets 517,618,690 2,426,584 (720,512) 13,938,956  533,263,718  

Accumulated depreciation and amortization:     

Land improvements (996,687)  (79,302) - -  (1,075,989) 

Pumping and wells (38,856,489)  (2,397,794)  -  -   (41,254,283) 

Hydrants, PRV stations, valves (88,808,845)  (4,054,734) 31,892  -  (92,831,687) 

Purchased trans & dist pipelines (34,159,602)  (2,496,345)  -  -  (36,655,947) 

Capacity entitlement (14,201,078)  (789,714) - -  (14,990,792) 

Storage facilities – reservoirs (6,071,608)  (361,768) - -  (6,433,376) 

Water meters (28,757,523)  (1,963,735)  3,101  - (31,531,224) 

Buildings (1,776,136)  (813,067) - -  (1,853,910) 

Buildings improvements (3,142,801)  (77,774) - -  (3,297,503) 

Machinery and equipment (1,308,510)  (154,702)  -  -  (1,466,677) 

Fleet equipment (1,732,665)  (158,167) 285,001  -  (1,626,829) 

Office equipment (117,425)  (179,165)  -  -  (121,882) 

Computer software (2,832,857)  (4,457)  32,035  -  (2,827,029) 

Computer hardware & equipment (1,327,313)  (26,207) 366,868 -  (1,137,919) 

Total accumulated depr. & amort. (224,089,539)  (13,734,405) 718,897 -  (237,105,047) 

Total depr. & amort. assets, net 293,529,151  (11,307,821) (1,615) 13,938,956 296,158,671  

Total capital assets, net $ 324,541,471  $      14,053,452   $       (1,615)   $                   -   $  338,593,308 
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(6)  Capital Assets, continued 

Changes in capital assets for the year ended December 31, 2022, were as follows: 

 Balance 2021 Additions Deletions Transfers Balance 2022 
Non-depreciable assets:      
     Land  $        2,143,602 $                 - $                   - $        707,676 $    2,851,278 
     Permanent easements 5,435,315 25,495 - - 5,460,810 
     Construction-in-progress 10,885,419 24,930,385 - (13,775,572) 22,700,232 

           Total non-depreciable assets 18,464,336 24,955,880 - (12,407,896) 31,012,320 

Depreciable and amortizable assets:      
     Land improvements 1,259,637 262,035 - 396,991 1,918,663 
     Pumping and wells 80,253,476 - - (10,741,577) 69,511,899 
     Hydrants, PRV stations, valves 146,529,853 1,245,805 (64,241) 3,063,262 150,774,679 
     Purchased trans & dist pipelines 194,256,275 2,944,554 (7,780) 2,549,473 199,742,522 
     Capacity entitlement 5,282,728 - - 15,397,304 20,680,032 
     Storage facilities – reservoirs 14,544,783 - - - 14,544,783 
     Water meters 45,371,275 - (1,835,986) 1,282,443 44,817,732 
     Buildings 2,690,040 - - 460,000 3,150,040 
     Buildings improvements 3,987,974 - - - 3,897,974 
     Machinery and equipment 1,591,087 - - - 1,591,087 
     Fleet equipment 2,123,964 66,496 - - 2,190,460 
     Office equipment  137,993 - - - 137,993 
     Computer software 3,070,067 46,905 - - 3,116,972 
     Computer hardware & equipment 1,476,283 67,571 - - 1,543,854 

           Total depreciable & amort. assets 502,485,435 4,633,366 (1,908,007) 12,407,896 517,618,690 

Accumulated depreciation and amortization:   
 

 
     Land improvements (961,287) (30,400) - - (996,687) 
     Pumping and wells (45,759,684) (2,335,861) - 9,239,056 (38,856,489) 
     Hydrants, PRV stations, valves (84,940,974) (3,932,112) 64,241 - (88,808,845) 
     Purchased trans & dist pipelines (31,733,588) (2,430,051) 4,037 - (34,159,602) 
     Capacity entitlement (4,172,340) (789,682) - (9,239,056) (14,201,078) 
     Storage facilities – reservoirs (5,709,840) (361,768) - - (6,071,608) 
     Water meters (27,246,691) (3,006,759) 1,495,927 - (28,757,523) 
     Buildings (1,709,854) (66,282) - - (1,776,136) 
     Buildings improvements (2,975,851) (166,950) - - (3,142,801) 
     Machinery and equipment (1,125,735) (182,775) - - (1,308,510) 
     Fleet equipment (1,512,262) (220,403) - - (1,732,665) 
     Office equipment (109,761) (7,664) - - (117,425) 
     Computer software (2,808,373) (24,484) -                   -   (2,832,857) 
     Computer hardware & equipment (1,121,346) (205,967) -                   -   (1,327,313) 
          Total accumulated depr. & amort. (211,887,586) (13,766,158) -   -   (224,089,539) 

          Total depr. & amort. assets, net 290,597,849  (9,132,792)                 -                   -   293,529,151  

          Total capital assets, net $    309,062,185  $ 15,823,088 $     (343,802) $                 - $ 324,541,471 
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(6)  Capital Assets, continued 

Major capital asset additions during 2023 and 2022 include construction and major upgrades to wells, the 
transmission and distribution system, and SCADA and Electrical. A significant portion of these additions were 
constructed by the District and transferred out of construction-in-progress upon completion of these various 
projects. 

Construction-In-Progress 
The District has been involved in various construction projects throughout the year. The balances of the various 
construction projects that comprise the construction-in-progress balances at December 31 are as follows: 

 2023     2022 

Butano/Cottage well/pump construction $                 - $   4,139,625 

Walnut/Auburn well construction 7,369,897 3,776,753 

Antelope North/Poker 3 wells construction 12,236,272 5,530,867 

Antelope/Don Julio well construction  6,544,964 1,053,460 

Well rehabilitation/pump improvements 2,985,778  2,465,885 

Q Street main replacements 962,145  907,658 

Watt main extension   -  1,432,913 

SCADA & Electrical Improvement  1,572,330  1,286,517 

Various other distribution main replacements  271,092 624,057 

Various reservoir & tank improvement  531,098  404,085 

Various other minor projects  786,412  752,369 

MBP Easements    365,179 326,044 

Total Construction-in-progress $  33,625,165 $  22,700,233 

There was no impairment of District assets as defined by GASB Statement No. 42, “Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Impairment of Capital Assets and for Insurance Recoveries” as of December 31, 2023 and 2022. 
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(7)  Compensated Absences 

Compensated absences are comprised of unpaid vacation and sick leave, which is accrued as earned, and 
accumulated unpaid overtime. The District’s liability for compensated absences is determined annually. The current 
portion of the compensated absences is estimated based on amounts used in the current year. 
 

The changes to compensated absences balances at December 31 are as follows: 

Balance 2022 Earned Taken Balance 2023 
Due Within One 

Year  

$ 1,331,763 $    1,261,477 $   (1,219,862) $   1,373,378 $    1,200,000  

Balance 2021 Earned Taken Balance 2022 
Due Within One 

Year  

$ 1,198,732 $  1,111,527 $     (978,496) $  1,331,763 $     1,000,000 

(8)  Long-Term Debt 

Description of the District’s Long-Term Debt 
The District’s long-term debt consists of Refunding Revenue Bonds (bonds) issued for the purpose of refunding 
debt originally issued to fund portions of the District’s capital improvement program (CIP). The bonds are secured 
by a pledge of the District’s net revenues. Such bonds contain certain restrictive covenants, with which the District 
has complied.  
 
Long-term debt activities for the year ended December 31, 2023, are as follows: 
 

 

Balance 
2022 Additions Retirements 

Balance 
2023 

Current 
Portion 

2018A Revenue bond $    6,915,000 $                  - $   (1,285,000) $    5,630,000  $ 1,330,000  

2022A Revenue bond     34,455,000 -  -   34,455,000   720,000  

2022B Revenue bond      6,585,000 -  (3,625,000)  2,960,000   2,960,000  

Total principal     47,955.000 - (4,910,000)  43,045,000  $ 5,010,000  

Unamortized bond premium 6,960,515  - (787,983) 6,172,532  

Total long-term debt $  54,915,515 $                  - $   (5,697,983)  $  49,217,532  
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(8)  Long-Term Debt, continued 

Long-term debt activities for the year ended December 31, 2022, are as follows: 
 

 

Balance 
2021 Additions Retirements 

Balance 
2022 

Current 
Portion 

2009A Certificates of 
participation $  42,000,000 $                   -  $  (42,000,000) $                  - $               -  

2012A Revenue bond 8,670,000 -  (8,670,000) - - 

2018A Revenue bond 9,630,000 - (2,715,000) 6,915,000 1,285,000 

2022A Revenue bond - 34,725,000 (270,000) 34,455,000 - 

2022B Revenue bond - 6,585,000 - 6,585,000 3,625,000 

Total principal 60,300,000 41,310,000  (53,655,000) 47,955,000 $4,910,000 

Unamortized bond premium 1,398,085 7,551,502  (1,989,072) 6,960,515 
Imputed borrowing - off-market 
swap 3,578,214  -  (3,578,214) - 

Total long-term debt $  65,276,299 $  48,861,502  $  (59,222,286) $  54,915,515 

The future debt service schedule of all long-term debt as of December 31, 2023, is as follows:  

Year Principal Interest Total 

2024 $            5,010,000  $     1,983,992  $    6,993,992  

2025  5,145,000   1,848,428   6,993,428  

2026  5,385,000   1,610,084   6,995,084  

2027  5,635,000   1,358,300   6,993,300  

2028  5,900,000   1,093,500   6,993,500  

2029-2031  15,970,000   1,450,250   17,420,250  

Total 43,045,000 $    9,344,554 $  52,389,554 

Less current portion (5,010,000) 

Unamortized bond premium 6,172,532 

Total non-current long-term debt $          44,207,532 
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(8) Long-Term Debt, continued 

2009 Series A COP  
In June 2009, the District issued a $42,000,000 COP obligation, Series 2009A at a variable interest rate, to current 
refund the $41,275,000 COP obligation, Series 2004. This COP obligation was issued with an irrevocable direct-
pay letter-of-credit (LOC) which would have expired on June 30, 2023.  

In addition, subsequent to its issuance, a swap was issued to hedge this COP obligation which itself was amended 
and restructured in 2012 to proportionately match the terms of this COP obligation. The swap has been determined 
to serve as an effective cash flow hedge in accordance with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 53 as amended 
by GASB Statement Nos. 59 and 64, even though the swap terms did not completely match those of this COP 
obligation. 

This variable rate COP obligation was fully refunded in the amount of its currently outstanding balance of 
$42,000,000 on March 16, 2022, with proceeds received from the issuance of the Series 2022A revenue refunding 
bond. In addition, on March 16, 2022, the LOC between the District and Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation 
was terminated and on March 10, 2022, the District entered into an agreement with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. to 
terminate the swap agreement. 

2012 Series A Bond 
On April 19, 2012, the District issued $29,200,000 of Refunding Revenue Bonds Series 2012A at a true interest 
cost of 3.66%, to current refund the Series 2008A-2 COP obligation with an outstanding balance of $33,300,000. 
This serial bond’s maturity extended to November 1, 2027, and was subject to optional and extraordinary 
redemption provisions, without premium. Proceeds of the bonds, less $417,002 to pay the costs of issuing the bonds, 
were placed in escrow to immediately pay the outstanding principal plus accrued interest on the Series 2008A-2 
COP obligation, without premium. This fixed-rate bond obligation was fully refunded in the amount of its currently 
outstanding balance of $8,670,000 plus accrued interest on November 1, 2022, with proceeds received from the 
issuance of the Series 2022B revenue refunding bond ($6,532,398) and District cash ($2,462,119). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Sacramento Suburban Water District 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued 
For the Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 

42 

(8) Long-Term Debt, continued 

2018 Series A Revenue Refunding Bond (Taxable) 
On May 2, 2018, the District issued $19,615,000 of Refunding Revenue Bonds Series 2018A with an average 
coupon rate of 3.40%, to advance refund $22,065,000 of outstanding Series 2009B COP Obligations with an 
average coupon rate of 5.27%. This serial bond’s maturity extends to November 1, 2027, and is subject to optional 
and extraordinary redemption provisions, without premium. The net proceeds of $19,403,895 (after payment of 
$211,105 in underwriting fees and other cost of issuance expenses) plus an additional $3,533,324 of Series 2009B 
restricted debt service reserve funds were used to purchase U.S. government securities. Those securities were 
deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent and the Series 2009B COP has been repaid in full.  
The advanced refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the 
old debt of $1,732,759. This difference, reported in the accompanying financial statements as a deferred outflow of 
resources, is being charged to operations through the year 2027 using the effective-interest rate method. The District 
completed the advance refunding to reduce its total debt service payments over the next nine years by $1,571,900 
and to obtain economic gain (difference between the present values of the old and new debt) of $1,360,137. 

The loan agreement defines events of default as 1) default in principal payments; 2) default in interest payments; 3) 
default by the District of any of the covenants, agreements, or conditions; 4) the filing by the District of a petition 
or answer seeking reorganization or arrangement under the federal bankruptcy laws or any other applicable law of 
the United States of America or any state therein; 5) the accelerated payment of principal of any bond or contract ( 
as defined) in accordance with its terms. Upon the occurrence of an event of default, the principal of the bonds 
could be declared immediately due and payable. 

As of December 31, 2023, the future debt service schedule of the 2018 Series A Bond is as follows: 

Year Principal Interest  Total  

2024 $          1,330,000 $         207,962 $    1,537,962  

2025 1,380,000 161,678  1,541,678  

2026 1,420,000 111,584  1,531,584  

2027 1,500,000 58,050  1,558,050  

Total 5,630,000 $        539,274 $    6,169,274 

Less current portion (1,330,000) 

Total non-current bond obligation $          4,300,000 
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(8) Long-Term Debt, continued 

2022 Series A Revenue Refunding Bond 
On March 16, 2022, the District issued $34,725,000 of Revenue Refunding Bonds Series 2022A (Series 2022A 
Bond) with a coupon rate of 5.0% and a true interest cost of 1.57% to current refund the $42,000,000 of outstanding 
2009 Series A COP that bore interest at a variable rate. This serial bond’s maturity extends to November 1, 2031, 
and is subject only to extraordinary redemption provisions, without premium. The net proceeds of $42,000,562 
(after payment of $275,941 in underwriting fees and other cost of issuance expense) plus an additional $3,230 of 
District cash was placed with an escrow agent and the 2009 Series A COP has been repaid in full. 
The refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the old debt 
of $337,321. This difference, reported in the accompanying financial statements as a deferred outflow of resources, 
is being charged to operations through the year 2031 using the effective-interest rate method. The District completed 
the advance refunding to reduce its total debt service payments over the next nine years by $8,068,074 and to obtain 
economic gain (difference between the present values of the old and new debt) of $5,902,459. 

In addition, together with the advanced refunding, the swap issued to hedge a portion of the 2009 Series A COP 
was also terminated resulting in a difference between the current market’s swap fair value and the District’s swap’s 
negative fair value of $2,154,591. This difference, reported in the accompanying financial statements as a deferred 
outflow of resources, is being charged to operations through the year 2031 using the effective-interest rate method.    

The loan agreement defines events of default as 1) default in principal payments; 2) default in interest payments; 3) 
default by the District of any of the covenants, agreements, or conditions; 4) the filing by the District of a petition 
or answer seeking reorganization or arrangement under the federal bankruptcy laws or any other applicable law of 
the United States of America or any state therein; 5) the accelerated payment of principal of any bond or contract ( 
as defined) in accordance with its terms. Upon the occurrence of an event of default, the principal of the bonds 
could be declared immediately due and payable. 

As of December 31, 2023, the future debt service schedule of the 2022 Series A Revenue Bond is as follows: 

Year Principal Interest  Total  

2024 $         720,000 $         1,722,750  $     2,442,750 

2025 3,765,000 1,686,750 5,451,750 

2026 3,965,000 1,498,500 5,463,500 

2027 4,135,000 1,300,250 5,435,250 

2028 5,900,000 1,093,500 6,993,500 

2029-2031 15,970,000 1,450,250 17,420,250 

Total 34,455,000 $       8,752,000  $    43,207,000  

                                                  Less current portion (720,000) 

Unamortized bond premium 6,172,532 

Total non-current bond obligation $  39,907,532  
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(8) Long-Term Debt, continued 
 
2022 Series B Revenue Refunding Bond (Taxable) 
On March 16, 2022, the District issued $6,585,000 of Revenue Refunding Bonds Series 2022B (Series 2022B Bond) 
with an average coupon rate of 1.86% to advance refund $6,265,000 of outstanding Series 2012A Revenue 
Refunding Bonds (2012A Bonds) with an average coupon rate of 4.67%. This serial bond’s maturity extends to 
November 1, 2024, and is subject to optional (with make-whole payment) and extraordinary redemption provisions, 
without premium. The net proceeds of $6,532,398 (after payment of $52,327 in underwriting fees and other cost of 
issuance expense) were used to purchase U.S. government securities. Those securities were deposited in an 
irrevocable trust with an escrow agent and the 2012 Series A Bond has been repaid in full. 

The advanced refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the 
old debt of $1,328,978. This difference, reported in the accompanying financial statements as a deferred outflow of 
resources, is being charged to operations through the year 2024 using the effective-interest rate method. The District 
completed the advance refunding to reduce its debt service payments over the next five years by $641,767 and to 
obtain economic gain (difference between the present values of the old and new debt) of $470,118. 

The loan agreement defines events of default as 1) default in principal payments; 2) default in interest payments; 3) 
default by the District of any of the covenants, agreements, or conditions; 4) the filing by the District of a petition 
or answer seeking reorganization or arrangement under the federal bankruptcy laws or any other applicable law of 
the United States of America or any state therein; 5) the accelerated payment of principal of any bond or contract ( 
as defined) in accordance with its terms. Upon the occurrence of an event of default, the principal of the bonds 
could be declared immediately due and payable. 

As of December 31, 2023, the future debt service schedule of the 2022 Series B Bond is as follows: 

Year Principal Interest  Total  

2024 2,960,000 53,280 3,013,280 

Total $           2,960,000 $            53,280  $     3,013,280  

Less current portion (2,960,000)  

Total non-current bond obligation $                          -  

Arbitrage Rebate Requirement 
The federal Tax Reform Act of 1986 imposes an arbitrage rebate requirement that affects all tax-exempt debt issued 
by the District. The term arbitrage refers to the required payment to the U.S. Treasury of excess interest earnings 
received on applicable tax-exempt debt obligation proceeds which, for the District, is solely made up of debt service 
reserve funds (restricted cash, cash equivalents, and investments) that are invested in a higher yield than the yield 
of the tax-exempt debt obligation issue. The District’s ultimate rebate of arbitrage earnings on these issues is  
contingent on various factors, including future yields on invested proceeds. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the 
District has no arbitrage rebate liability. 
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(8) Long-Term Debt, continued 
 
Interest Rate Swap  
The District entered into a pay-fixed, receive-variable interest rate swap agreement (swap) with Citibank, N.A. upon 
issuance of the Series 2005A COP obligation at a cost that was less than what otherwise the District would have 
paid to issue fixed-rate debt. In April 2012, the swap agreement was subsequently amended and restructured with 
Citibank, N.A. to match the terms of the Series 2009A COP obligation, albeit at a reduced notional amount, after 
which the swap was novated to Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. The swap’s notional amount amortized in proportionately 
like amounts to the Series 2009A COP. The swap was intended to hedge interest rate risk on a portion of the 
District’s outstanding Series 2009A COP, which bore interest at a variable rate. The swap agreement required that 
the District pay Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. a series of future fixed-rate payments monthly based on an annual rate of 
3.283%; Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., in turn, was required to pay the District a series of future variable-rate payments 
equal to 60% of the 1-Month London Inter-bank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus 0.18% monthly. At the time of 
restructuring the swap in 2012, the negative fair value of the swap was determined to be $6,745,000, the unamortized 
amount of which is reported as an “imputed borrowing,” a component of long-term debt in the Statements of Net 
Position. 

On March 10, 2022, the District entered into an agreement with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. to terminate the swap 
agreement with a settlement price of $5,642,000 that was paid out of District cash contingent upon the completed 
refinancing of the 2009A COP, which occurred on March 16, 2022.  At the time of terminating the swap, the 
unamortized imputed borrowing amount was $3,487,409.  The difference between settlement amount and 
unamortized negative fair value of the district’s swap, imputed amount, is $2,154,591.  This difference, as 
mentioned in the 2022 Series A Refunding Revenue Bonds, is reported in the accompanying financial statements 
as a deferred outflow of resources.      

(9) Net Investment in Capital Assets  

The District’s net investment in capital assets, net of related debt, at December 31, consists of the following: 

 2023 2022 

Capital assets not being depreciated $      42,434,637  $    31,012,320 

Capital assets being depreciated and amortized, net  296,158,671  293,529,151 

Deferred outflows on long-term debt refundings  3,170,940  4,129,419 

Long term debt  (49,217,532) (54,915,515) 

Other capital-related liabilities  (3,331,364) (3,213,763) 

Net investment in capital assets, considered non-expendable $   289,215,352 $  270,541,612 
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(10) Restricted Net Position 

Restricted net position balance as of December 31, consists of the following:  

 2023 2022 

2012A Revenue bond interest payment fund $                 - $              10 

2018A Revenue bond interest payment fund 3,694 1,687 

2022A Revenue bond interest payment fund 2,187 626 

2022B Revenue bond interest payment fund 9,743 36 

Total $       15,624 $         2,359 

This component of net position consists of external constraints placed by creditors. 

(11) Unrestricted Net Position 

Designations of unrestricted net position may be imposed by the Board of Directors to reflect future spending plans 
or concerns about the availability of future resources.  Designations may be modified, amended or removed by 
Board action at any time. Currently, the District’s Reserve Policy calls for three fund classifications that collectively 
comprise the District’s unrestricted net position: Committed funds, Assigned funds and remaining funds not 
otherwise restricted, committed or assigned. Committed funds are those financial assets set aside by the Board for 
specific purposes as determined by Board resolution or ordinance. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022 the District 
has one committed fund with a zero balance for both years. The committed fund is for developers required to install 
extension facilities (up-sized line or the extension of facilities beyond the frontage of a parcel) as a requirement for 
obtaining water service. This fund is utilized to reimburse the developer, in whole or in part, for the extension 
facility based on the proportion of funds collected from all developers for that fiscal year. Assigned funds are those 
financial assets determined necessary to be retained for specific risk-mitigation purposes as determined by the Board 
annually or as needs arise. The Board has several classes of such assigned funds but is not bound legally or 
contractually on the retention of such funds and, as such, amounts in assigned funds are available to meet the general 
obligations of the District. 

(12)  Deferred Compensation Plan  

For the benefit of its employees, the District participates in a 457 Deferred Compensation Program (Program).  The 
purpose of this Program is to provide employees, who elect to participate, the opportunity to defer receipt of a 
portion of their compensation until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency. Until the funds are 
paid or otherwise made available to the employee, the employee is not obligated to report the deferred compensation 
for income tax purposes. Federal law requires deferred compensation assets to be held in trust for the exclusive 
benefit of the participants or their beneficiaries. Therefore, these assets are not the legal property of the District and 
are not subject to claims of the District’s general creditors. The fair value of all plan assets held in trust by the 
District for its deferred compensation program at December 31, 2023 and 2022, amounted to $5,852,023 and 
$5,327,366, respectively. The District’s Program is not considered a Pension Plan as defined under GASB Statement 
No. 97.  
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(13) Defined Benefit Pension Plan 

A. General Information about the Pension Plan: 
 

Plan Descriptions: 
All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the District’s Cost-Sharing 
Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan (the Plan or PERF C) administered by the California Public 
Employees’ Retirement System (the System or CalPERS). The Board has established a single “Cost-Sharing 
Miscellaneous” pension plan with CalPERS that is comprised of the following Rate Plans (the Plans): 

 Miscellaneous Plan – 3.0% at 60 (Classic Tier I) 
 Miscellaneous Plan – 2.0% at 55 (Classic Tier II) 
 Miscellaneous Plan – 2.0% at 62 (PEPRA) 

Benefit provisions under the Plans are established by State statute and Board resolution. CalPERS issues publicly 
available reports that include a full description of the pension plans regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and 
membership information that can be found on the CalPERS website at https://www.calpers.ca.gov/. 

 

Benefits Provided: 
CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and death benefits 
to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of credited service, 
equal to one year of full-time employment. Members with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 
(52 for PEPRA members) with statutorily reduced benefits. All members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits 
after 10 years of service. The death benefit is one of the following: the 1957 Survivor Benefit or the Optional 
Settlement 2W Death Benefit. The cost-of-living adjustments for each plan are applied as specified by the Public 
Employees’ Retirement Law.  
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(13) Defined Benefit Pension Plan, continued 

The Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect at December 31, 2023 and 2022, are summarized as follows: 
 

 Miscellaneous 

Hire date 

Classic Tier I  

 

Prior to 
09/25/2006 

 

Classic Tier II  

 
After 9/25/2006 

and Prior to 
01/01/2013 

 

PEPRA  

 

On or after 
01/01/2013 

Benefit formula 3.0% at 60  2.0% at 55  2.0% at 62 

Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service  5 years service  5 years service 

Benefit payments monthly for life  monthly for life  monthly for life 

Retirement age 50 - 60  50 – 63  52 - 67 

Monthly benefits as a % of eligible compensation 2.0% to 3.0%  1.4% to 2.4%  1.0% to 2.5% 

Required employee contribution rates 8.00%  7.00%  
8.25% 2023 
7.25% 2022 

Required employer contribution rates  
18.24% 2023 
16.15% 2022 

12.63% 2023 
11.06% 2022 7.76% 

Open or Closed to New Entrants Closed  Open*  Open 
 

*  Open only to new employees who were CalPERS eligible prior to 01/01/2013 and meet certain other 
requirements 

 
In addition to the contribution rates above, the District was also required to make a payment of $867,099 and 
$913,542 toward its unfunded actuarial liability of all Plans during the year ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, 
respectively. 
 
Contributions: 
CalPERS Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law (PERL) requires that the employer 
contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by an actuary and shall be effective on 
July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. Funding contributions for all Plans are determined annually on an 
actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to 
finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any 
unfunded accrued liability. The District is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined 
rate and the contribution rate of employees.  
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(13) Defined Benefit Pension Plan, continued 

For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 (measurement date June 30, 2022 and 2021), the active employee 
contribution rates and average employer contribution rates were as follows: 

 2023 2022 
 Employee 

Contribution Rate 
Employer 

Contribution Rate 
Employee 

Contribution Rate 
Employer 

Contribution Rate 

Classic Tier I 8.00%* 18.24% 8.00%* 16.17% 

Classic Tier II 7.00%** 12.63% 7.00%** 11.06% 

PEPRA 8.25% 8.00% 7.25% 7.76% 
(*    Paid by District on behalf of employees) 
(**  Paid by District on behalf of employees for those hired before August 18, 2020) 
 

The District’s employer contributions were $1,675,527 and $1,537,685 for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 
2022, respectively. Of those amounts, the District’s pickup of the employee’s 8.0% and 7.0% share was $227,801 
and $234,363, respectively.  

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions: 
As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the District reported a net pension liability for its proportionate share of the net 
pension liability of the Plans of $13,884,790 and $12,721,219, respectively. 
The District’s net pension liability is measured as the proportionate share of the Pool’s net pension liability. The 
net pension liability is measured as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, and the total pension liability used to calculate the 
net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2022 and 2021 rolled forward to June 
30, 2023 and 2022 using standard update procedures. For June 30, 2023 and 2022, the District’s proportion of the 
Net Pension Liability was based on its proportion of the Total Pension Liability less its proportion of the Fiduciary 
Net Position.  

The District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for the Plan as of June 30, 2023 and 2022 was as 
follows: 

Proportion - June 30, 2023  0.27767% 

Proportion - June 30, 2022  0.27187% 

Change - Increase (Decrease)  .0058% 
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(13) Defined Benefit Pension Plan, continued 

For the year ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the District recognized pension expense of $2,551,776 and 
$586,820, respectively. At December 31, 2023 and 2022, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to all Plans combined from the following sources: 

 
Deferred Outflows of 

Resources  
Deferred Inflows of 

Resources 

 2023 2022  2023 2022 

Pension contributions subsequent to measurement 
date $   842,933 $    799,285  $             - $               - 
 
Changes in assumptions 838,287 1,303,555  - - 

Net differences between projected and actual 
earnings on plan investments 2,248,072 2,330,189   -  - 

Differences between expected and actual  
experience 709,310 255,467  110,031 171,101 

Differences between the employer’s contribution 
and the employer’s proportionate share of 
contributions - -  299,427 534,549 

Change in  employer’s proportion 195,363 
  

154,338  -        - 

   Total $  4,833,965 $ 4,842,834   $  409,458  $   705,650 

 

The $842,933 and $799,285 reported as deferred outflows of resources as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 related 
to contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability 
in the following year, December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows 
(inflows) of resources related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows: 

Year Ended  Deferred  
December 31  Outflow/(Inflow) 

2024  $       1,055,668 

2025  726,341 

2026  1,735,059 

2027  64,506 

Thereafter  - 

Total  $       3,581,574 
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(13) Defined Benefit Pension Plan, continued 
 

B. Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Total Pension Liability: 
 
The collective total pension liability for the June 30, 2023 and 2022 measurement period was determined by an 
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, with update procedures used to roll forward the total pension 
liability to June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. The collective total pension liability was based on the following 
assumptions: 

 
2023 

Miscellaneous 
2022 

Miscellaneous 

Valuation Date June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021 
Measurement Date June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022 
Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal Entry-Age Normal 
Actuarial Assumptions:   
    Discount Rate 6.90% 6.90% 
    Inflation 2.30% 2.30% 

    Projected Salary Increase 
Varies by Entry Age 
and Service  

Varies by Entry Age 
and Service  

    Post-retirement benefit increase (1) (1) 
    Long-Term Rate of Return (2) (2) 
(1) Contract COLA up to 2.30% until Purchasing Power Protection Allowance Floor on Purchasing Power 

applies. 
(2) See Long-Term Expected Rate of Return section below. 

The underlying mortality assumptions and all other actuarial assumptions used for June 30, 2023 valuations were 
derived using CalPERS’ Membership Data for all Funds. The mortality table was developed based on CalPERS 
specific data. The rates incorporate Generational Mortality to capture on-going mortality improvement using 80% 
of Scale MP 2020 published by the Society of Actuaries. For more details refer to the 2021 CalPERS’ experience 
study report that can be found at the CalPERS website at www.calpers.ca.gov. 

The underlying mortality assumptions and all other actuarial assumptions used for June 30, 2022 valuations were 
derived using CalPERS’ Membership Data for all Funds. The mortality table was developed based on CalPERS 
specific data. The rates incorporate Generational Mortality to capture on-going mortality improvement using 80% 
of Scale MP 2020 published by the Society of Actuaries. For more details refer to the 2021 CalPERS’ experience 
study report that can be found at the CalPERS website at www.calpers.ca.gov. 

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return: 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method 
in which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) 
are developed for each major asset class. 
In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account long-term market return 
expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Projected returns for all asset classes are estimated 
and, combined with risk estimates, are used to project compound (geometric) returns over the long term. The 
discount rate used to discount liabilities was informed by the long-term projected portfolio return. 
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(13) Defined Benefit Pension Plan, continued 

The expected real rates of return by asset class for December 31, 2023, are as follows: 

Asset Class 
Assumed 

Allocation  
Real Return 

Years 1 – 10 1,2  
 

Global Equity (cap-weighted) 30.0%  4.54%   
Global Equity (non-cap-weighted) 12.0%  3.84%   
Private Equity 13.0%  7.28%   
Treasury 5.00%  0.27%   
Mortgage-backed Securities 5.00%  0.50%   
Investment Grade Corporates 10.0%  1.56%   
High Yield 5.00%  2.27%   
Emerging Market Debt 5.00%  2.48%   
Private Debt 5.00%  3.57%   
Real assets 15.0%  3.21%   
Leverage -5.00%  -0.59%   

   Total 100.0%     
 

1 An expected inflation rate of 2.30% used for this period. 
2 Figures are based on the 2021-22 Asset Liability Management Study. 
 
 
Discount Rate: 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for the Plan was 6.90%. The projection of cash flows 
used the determine the discount rate for the Plan assumed that contributions from all plan members in the Public 
Employees Retirement Fund (PERF) will be made at the current member contribution rates and that the 
contributions from employers will be made at the statutorily required rates, actuarially determined. Based on those 
assumptions, the Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit 
payments of the current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was 
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.  
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(13) Defined Benefit Pension Plan, continued 

C. Changes in the Net Pension Liability: 
 
Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate: 
The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for the Plan, calculated using 
the discount rate for the Plans, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would 
be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the 
current rate:  

 

2023 
Sensitivity to 1-
Percent Change 

2022 
Sensitivity to 1-
Percent Change 

1% Decrease 5.90% 5.90% 

Net Pension Liability  $         21,194,028  $         19,603,749   

 

Current Discount Rate 6.90% 6.90% 

Net Pension Liability  $         13,884,790  $        12,721,219   

 

1% Increase 7.90% 7.90% 

Net Pension Liability  $           7,868,660  $           7,058,605 
 
 
Plan Fiduciary Net Position: 
Detailed information about each pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued CalPERS 
financial reports, which can be found at the CalPERS website at www.calpers.ca.gov 

 
Payable to the Pension Plan: 
At December 31, 2023 and 2022, the District had no outstanding payable to the pension plans. 
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(14) Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB) 

Description of the Plan: The District’s defined benefit OPEB plan (Plan) is a single-employer defined benefit plan 
that provides healthcare, dental and vision benefits for retired employees, certain former Northridge Water District 
directors, and their survivor dependents, subject to certain conditions. Substantially all of the District’s full-time 
employees may become eligible for postemployment health benefits after age fifty and after working for the District 
for five years if hired before January 1, 2003. If hired after January 1, 2003, eligibility for such benefits is based on 
a minimum of ten years of qualifying service working with an employer that is a CalPERS healthcare provider. 
Retirement from the District is also a condition of eligibility for postemployment health benefits (the District must 
be the last employer prior to retirement). In addition, eligible retirees are required to pay a portion of the cost of 
certain medical insurance plans offered by CalPERS above a minimum amount established annually by the District. 
Eligible retirees hired after January 1, 2003, not fully-vested in postemployment health benefits, are required to pay 
a portion of health insurance costs up to the extent they are not fully vested. Certain former Northridge Water 
District directors with twelve years of service are also eligible for postemployment benefits. 

Benefit provisions are established and may be amended by the District and/or the CalPERS and California 
Employers’ Retiree Benefit Trust (CERBT), a tax-qualified irrevocable trust organized under Internal Revenue 
Code Section 115. The Trust is administered by CalPERS as an agent multiple-employer plan. CalPERS issues a 
publicly available financial report for the CERBT that can be obtained at www.calpers.ca.gov under Forms and 
Publications. 

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms:  At June 30, the following current and former employees were covered by 
the benefit terms: 

                      2023  2022 

 Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments    39     41 
 Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits       3       4 
 Active employees          69     65 
    Total number of participants       111   110 

Contributions:  The contribution requirements of plan members and the District are established and may be amended 
by the District.  The District funds the plan by contributing at least 100% of actuarially determined contributions.  
During the year ended December 31, 2023, the District’s contribution was $648,304, comprised of a cash 
contribution to the trust of $66,804, benefit payments of $504,338, an estimated implicit subsidy of $75,728 and 
administrative expenses of $1,434. During the year ended December 31, 2022, the District’s cash contribution was 
$843,975, comprised of a cash contribution to the trust, of $313,928, benefit payments of $453,600, an estimated 
implicit subsidy of $75,344 and administrative expenses of $1,103.  

Net OPEB Liability:  The District's net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, and the total 
OPEB liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 
2022. Update procedures are used to roll forward the Total OPEB Liability from the valuation date (June 30, 2022) 
to the measurement date (June 30, 2023).  
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(14) Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB), continued 

Actuarial Assumptions:  The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2022 actuarial valuation was determined using the 
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified: 

Valuation date June 30, 2022 
Measurement date June 30, 2023 and 2022 
Contribution Policy District contributes full ADC with CERBT Trust 
Actuarial assumptions:  

Investment rate of return 6.25% 2023; 6.25% 2022 
Discount rate 6.25% 2023; 6.25% 2022 
General Inflation 2.50% 2023; 2.50% 2022 
Salary increases Aggregate - 2.75% annually 

Merit - CalPERS 2000-2019 Experience Study 
Mortality, Retirement, 
Disability, Termination CalPERS 2000-2109 Experience Study 
Mortality improvement Mortality projected fully generational with Scale MP-2021 
Medical Trend Non-Medicare - 6.50% for 2023, decreasing to an ultimate rate of 3.75% 

in 2076 
Medicare (Non-Kaiser) - 5.65% for 2023, decreasing to an ultimate rate 
of 3.75% in 2076 
Medicare (Kaiser) - 4.60% for 2023, decreasing to an ultimate rate of 
3.75% in 2076 

Dental/Vision trend rate 3.50% annually 
Cap Increases 100/90 Formula Rates – Non-Medicare trend 
Medicare Part B&D Medicare (Non-Kaiser) trend 
Healthcare, dental and vision 
participation  

Actives - 90% 
Retirees - based on current coverage 

Spouse Coverage Covered - based on current coverage 
Waived - 80% elect spouse coverage at retirement 

Family Coverage 20% of actives have family coverage at age 65 
Terminated Actives Assumed to collect benefits at age 60 if 20+ years service 
Surviving Spouse Participation 100% if eligible 
Spouse Age Actives - males 3 years older than females 

Retirees - males 3 years older than females if spouse birthday unknown 
Waived Retiree Re-election None 
Medicare Eligibility All participants assumed to be Medicare eligible and elect Medicare 

plans at age 65 
 

There were no changes of assumptions or benefit terms since the June 30, 2022 Measurement Date. 
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(14) Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, continued  

The assumed gross return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a building-block method in which best-
estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of OPEB plan investment expense and 
inflation) are developed for each major asset class as geometric means.  These ranges are combined to produce the 
long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation 
percentage and by adding expected inflation.  The target allocation and best estimates of expected real rates of return 
for each major asset class for December 31, 2023 are as follows: 
 
 

Asset Class 
Trust Target 

Allocation 
Expected Real 
Rate of Return 

Global Equity 49.0% 4.56% 

Fixed Income 23.0% 1.56% 

Treasury Inflation Protected Securities   5.0% (0.08%) 

Commodities   3.0% 1.22% 

Real Estate Investment Trusts 20.0% 4.06% 

  100.0%  

Assumed Long-Term Rate of Inflation 2.50% 

Expected Long-Term Net Rate of Return, Rounded 6.25% 
 
 
Discount Rate:  The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 6.25% and 6.25% as of June 30, 2023 
and 2022, the measurement date, respectively.  The discount rate was updated based on new capital market 
assumption. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that District contributions will 
be made at rates equal to the actuarially determined contribution rates.  Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan's 
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments. 

OPEB payments for current active and inactive employees.  Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on 
OPEB plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB liability. 
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(14) Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, continued 
 
Change in Net OPEB Liability:  The change in the net OPEB liability for the plan as of December 31, 2023, is as 
follows: 

 Increase (Decrease) 

 Total OPEB 
Liability 

Plan Fiduciary 
Net Position 

Net OPEB 
Liability 

Balance at December 31, 2022 $           11,419,024 $          8,279,684 $      3,139,340 

Changes for the Year:    

   Service Cost 367,548 - 367,548 

   Interest 719,375 - 719,375 

   Actual vs. expected experience - - - 

   Assumption Changes - - - 

   Contributions – employer - 621,286 (621,286) 

   Net investment income - 532,757 (532,757) 

   Benefit payments (553,139) (553,139) - 

   Administrative expenses   -  (5,491)  5,491 

Net Changes       533,784             595,413    (61,629) 

Balance at December 31, 2023 (measurement date 
June 30, 2023) $           11,952,808 $          8,875,097 $      3,077,711 

 
The change in the net OPEB liability for the plan as of December 31, 2022, is as follows: 

 Increase (Decrease) 

 Total OPEB 
Liability 

Plan Fiduciary 
Net Position 

Net OPEB 
Liability 

Balance at December 31, 2021 $           12,844,127 $          9,253,676 $      3,590,451 

Changes for the Year: - - - 

   Service Cost 486,063 - 486,063 

   Interest 850,612 - 850,612 

   Actual vs. expected experience (1,565,446) - (1,565,446) 

   Assumption Changes (708,650) - (708,650) 

   Contributions – employer - 802,499 (802,499) 

   Net investment income - (1,283,365) 1,283,365 

   Benefit payments (487,682) (487,682) - 

   Administrative expenses   -  (5,444)  5,444 

Net Changes       (1,425,103)             (973,992)    (451,111) 

Balance at December 31, 2022 (measurement date 
June 30, 2022) $           11,419,024 $          8,279,684 $      3,139,340 
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(14) Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, continued 
 

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate:  The following presents the net OPEB 
liability of the District, as well as what the District’s net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a 
discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current discount rate: 

 

2023 
Sensitivity to 1-
Percent Change 

2022 
Sensitivity to 1-
Percent Change 

1% Decrease 5.25% 5.25% 
Net OPEB Liability  $         4,601,656  $         4,606,434 
   
Current Discount Rate 6.25% 6.25% 
Net OPEB Liability  $          3,077,711  $           3,139,340 
   
1% Increase 7.25% 7.25% 
Net OPEB Liability  $           1,809,441  $           1,773,007 

 

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates:  The following presents the 
net OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the District's net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated 
using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current 
healthcare cost trend rates: 
 

 

2023 
Sensitivity to 1-
Percent Change 

2022 
Sensitivity to 1-
Percent Change 

1% Decrease   
Net OPEB Liability  $           1,554,460  $           1,773,007 
 
Current Healthcare Trend   
Net OPEB Liability  $           3,077,711  $           3,139,340 
 
1% Increase   
Net OPEB Liability  $           4,958,463  $           4,820,490 

 
OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position:  Detailed information about the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position is available 
in the separately issued CERBT financial report at www.calpers.ca.gov. 
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(14) Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, continued 
 
OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB:  For the 
year ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the District recognized OPEB expense of $279,207and $434,454, 
respectively.  At December 31, 2023 and 2022, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources: 

 
Deferred Outflows of 

Resources  
Deferred Inflows of 

Resources 
 2023 2022  2023 2022 
Net difference between projected and actual 
experience $               - $                -   $ 1,611,911 

  
$1,965,748 

Changes in assumptions 243,127 298,383  630,226 760,264  
Net difference between projected and actual 
earnings in plan investments * 587,548 735,717  -  -  
Employer contributions made subsequent to the 
measurement date 293,418 266,400  -  -  

Total $  1,124,093 $  1,300,500   $ 2,242,137  $ 2,726,012 

*Deferred Inflows and Outflows combined for footnote disclosure. 

The $293,418 and $266,400 reported as deferred outflows of resources as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 related to 
contributions after the measurement date, consisted of the following: 

 2023  2022 
Trust contributions $                    -  $                   - 
Benefit payments paid 

outside of trust         292,703  265,776 
Administrative expenses 715                 624 
Total $         293,418  $      266,400 

 

These amounts will be recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB liability in the subsequent year. Other amounts 
reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in 
OPEB expense as follows: 

Year Ended  
December 31 

Deferred  
Outflow/(Inflow)  

2024 $          (295,927) 

2025 (346,933) 

2026 (52,725) 

2027 (307,750) 

2028 (285,208) 

Thereafter (122,919) 

Total $       (1,411,462) 
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(14) Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, continued  

 
Recognition of Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources:  Gains and losses related to changes in total 
OPEB liability and fiduciary net position are recognized in OPEB expense systematically over time.  Amounts are 
first recognized in OPEB expense for the year the gain or loss occurs.  The remaining amounts are categorized as 
deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB and are to be recognized in future OPEB 
expense. 

 
The recognition period differs depending on the source of the gain or loss.  The net difference between projected 
and actual earnings on OPEB plan investments is recognized over 5 years.  All other amounts are recognized over 
the expected average remaining service lifetime (EARSL), which was 7.4 years as of July 1, 2022 (beginning of 
measurement period). Participants with no liability excluded for the purpose of calculating the average. 

Payable to the OPEB Plan:  At December 31, 2023 and 2022, the District had no outstanding payable to the 
OPEB plan. 

(15)  Asset Retirement Obligations 

The District owns and operates 104 water wells as its primary source of water for sale to its customers. As required 
by Sacramento County Code 06.28.040, section B, the District is required to properly destroy inactive wells. Of the 
104 wells, 76 are active, 28 are inactive. The District is actively engaged in destroying the inactive wells and as 
such has accurate and relevant costing data. The average cost to destroy each well in 2020 was approximately 
$53,479. GASB Statement No. 83 requires amortizing portions of the deferred outflow of resources related to asset 
retirement obligations (AROs) over the estimate remaining useful life of the asset. While components of the well 
have lives between 25 and 40 years, the well shaft may last through several refurbishments. The District estimates 
that the well shaft has a life of 60 years. The average remaining useful life of the District’s active wells is 19 years. 
There are no legal requirements to provide funding or financial assurances for the performance of AROs. The 
District has no restricted assets reserved for the payment of AROs. All AROs are funded through current year 
budgets as inactive wells are scheduled to be properly destroyed. 

(16)  Risk Management 

The District is a member of the Association of California Water Agencies Joint Powers Insurance Authority (JPIA).  

Description of JPIA: JPIA is an intergovernmental risk-pooling self-insurance authority, created under provisions 
of California Government Code Sections 6500 et. seq.  The purpose of JPIA is to arrange and administer programs 
of insurance for the pooling of self-insured losses and to purchase excess insurance coverage. 

Self-Insurance Programs of JPIA: At December 31, 2022, the District’s participation in the self-insurance programs 
of JPIA is as follows: 

General, Automobile, Employment Practices & Public Officials’ Liability.  Broad coverage against third-party 
claims for the District, its directors, employees and volunteers.  Covered up to the following limits:  the JPIA pools  
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(16)  Risk Management, continued 

for first $5 million and purchases excess coverage with limit up to $55 million with aggregated policy limits and 
the following sub-limits, $5 million – Terrorism, $10 million – Communicable Disease, $45 million – Subsidence, 
Lead, and Mold.  

Property Loss: Insured up to replacement value with a $10,000 deductible per occurrence on scheduled buildings, 
fixed equipment and contents, actual cash value on scheduled mobile equipment with a $1,000 deductible per 
occurrence and actual cash value on scheduled vehicles with a $1,000 deductible per occurrence.  JPIA is 
self-insured up to $10,000,000 per loss and has purchased re-insurance coverage up to a $500,000,000 limit per 
occurrence. Scheduled fixed equipment is covered for Accidental Mechanical Breakdown up to sub-limit of 
$100,000,000 with deductible of $25,000 to $50,000 depending on type of equipment, earthquake is covered up to 
sub-limit of $2,500,000 aggregate and flood is covered up to sub-limit of $25,000,000. 

Workers’ Compensation: Insured for California statutory limits, and Employer’s Liability is insured up to 
$4,000,000 program aggregate.  JPIA pools for the first $2,000,000 and purchases excess insurance coverage for 
California Statutory Limits with a $4,000,000 program aggregate limit for Employers Liability coverage.  

Cyber Loss and Liability: Policy member aggregate limit of $3,000,000 and Aggregate limit of $5,000,000 with the 
following sub-limit: Funds transfer fraud up to $250,000. Cyber Liability Deductible varies from $50,000 to 
$100,000 depending on Total Insured Values on file. 

Employee Dishonesty/Crime Supplement: Insured up to $100,000 per occurrence with a $1,000 deductible for 
employee dishonesty, forgery or alteration and computer fraud.  The program covers all employees, the Board of 
Directors, and the Treasurer.   

Separate financial statements of JPIA can be obtained at 2100 Professional Drive, Roseville, CA 95661 or at  
http://www.acwajpia.com/FinancialStatements.aspx. 

(17) Commitments and Contingencies 

Sacramento Regional County Sanitation District – Riverwalk Well Field Lease 
The District is leasing a 5.5 acre parcel from the Sacramento Regional County Sanitation District for its Riverwalk 
Well Field. The effective date of the lease was from June 1, 1987 to May 31, 2012. In 2012, the District exercised 
its option upon expiration of the initial term of the lease and extended the lease term to May 31, 2037. The original 
lease amount of $12,750, paid in advance each year, is adjusted annually on the anniversary date of the lease to 
reflect any increase or decrease of the National Consumer Price Index of the preceding year. The annual lease costs 
for fiscal years 2023 and 2022 were $32,837 and $30,779, respectively. Future estimated lease commitment costs 
for the period January 1, 2024, to May 31, 2037, are estimated to be $471,636 as of December 31, 2023. 

 
Walnut Industrial Center Lease 
The District is leasing a 0.43 acre parcel from the Walnut Industrial Center, LLC, for additional parking at the 
District’s Walnut Ave facility. The effective date of the lease is from June 1, 2022 to October 31, 2026. The annual 
lease costs for fiscal years 2023 and 2022 were $24,540 and $14,000, respectively. Future estimated lease 
commitment costs for the period January 1, 2024, to October 31, 2026, are estimated to be $73,624 as of December 
31, 2023. 
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(17) Commitments and Contingencies, continued 

Placer County Water District – Take-or-Pay Contract 
In 1995 (and amended in 2000, 2008, 2016* and 2020**), the District and the Placer County Water Agency 
(Agency) entered into a 45-year take-or-pay agreement whereby the Agency agreed to make available to the District, 
subject to water shortage provisions, the following amounts of untreated water at escalating water prices per year. 

Year Contract Requirement Option to Buy Up to   
2000 to 2007 7,000 to 22,000 - acre feet 

2008 16,000 29,000 acre feet 
2009 12,000 24,000 acre feet 
2010 12,000 25,000 acre feet 
2011 12,000 26,000 acre feet 
2012 12,000 27,000 acre feet 
2013 12,000 28,000 acre feet 

2014 to 2019* 12,000 29,000 acre feet 
2020  to 2045**   8,000 29,000 acre feet 

 
* Contract renegotiated in 2016, extended term of agreement to December 31, 2045. 
** Contract renegotiated in 2020, minimum requirement for 2020 through term of agreement decreased from 12,000 to 8,000 acre feet. 

Each year the District is required to pay for its annual entitlement or surrender a portion of its rights so that the 
Agency will be free to put the water to use elsewhere. In order to do this, if the District does not take-or-pay for its 
annual entitlement for any year, the District’s annual entitlement for each year thereafter is reduced by 50% of the 
amount which the District did not take-or-pay for during the year. The District’s annual entitlement is subject to 
certain temporary or permanent reduction or elimination whenever the Agency notifies the District that the Agency 
has determined that it will not have sufficient water under certain provisions of the contract. In this situation, the 
District is relieved of its take-or-pay obligation.  The most common event that would trigger the Agency providing 
notification to the District would be a projection of unimpaired inflow to Folsom Lake reservoir dropping below 
1.6 million acre-feet. Each year the District is to pay the Agency for each acre-foot of the District’s annual 
entitlement made available for use in the District’s service area in order of the highest of the following three rates: 
(1) Thirty-five dollars ($35.00); (2) One hundred seventy-five percent (175%) of the acre-foot price the Agency 
charges the City of Roseville and the San Juan Water District that year for water made available to them in the 
Folsom Lake reservoir for use within Placer County; or (3) One hundred fifty percent (150%) of the total amount, 
per acre-foot, including any restoration and other fees and charges, which the Agency is required to pay that year 
to the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation (Reclamation) for water to be used within the Agency pursuant to the Agency’s 
September 18, 1970 contract with Reclamation as amended, supplemented or renewed. 

Grant Awards 
The District has received state and federal funds for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit by the 
grantor agencies. Although such reviews or audits could generate expenditure disallowances under the terms of the 
grants, it is management’s opinion that any required reimbursements would not be material. 

 



Sacramento Suburban Water District 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued 
For the Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 

63 

(17) Commitments and Contingencies, continued 

Litigation 
In the ordinary course of operations, the District is subject to claims and litigation from outside parties. After 
consultation with legal counsel, the District believes the ultimate outcome of such matters, if any, will not materially 
affect its financial condition as of December 31, 2023. 
 
Construction Contracts 
The District has a variety of agreements with private parties relating to the installation, improvement or modification 
of water facilities and distribution systems within its service area. The financing of such construction contracts is 
provided primarily by District’s customers via a fixed charge based on connection size included in their monthly 
invoice. As of December 31, 2023, the District’s commitment on open construction contracts is approximately $4.0 
million:  

Project Name 
Approved 
Contract 

Spent To 
Date 

Remaining 
Commitment 

New Well Construction - Well 80 Watt/Auburn $   7,381,576  $     5,922,153  $     1,459,423  

New Well Construction - Well 81/82/83 Antelope N./Poker   12,424,334      12,053,811           370,523  

New Well Construction - Well 84 Antelope/Don Julio     7,680,925        6,763,963           916,963  

Well Rehabilitation     2,400,000        2,022,737           377,263  

Well N35 Antelope North PCE Treatment        259,394             99,498           159,896  

Well N32A-C Wells Blending        173,894             21,386           152,508  

Fluoride Pump Replacement - 14 Facilities         65,000                      -             65,000  

SCADA Network Improvement         57,840                      -             57,840  

Reservoir Improvement - Enterprise/Northrop         120,600             51,460             69,140  

Property Acquisition - Walerga/Antelope Property        435,600           100,000           335,600  

Total $ 30,999,163  $   27,035,008  $     3,964,155  
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Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan 

Schedule of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 
Last 10 Years  

(Dollars in thousands) 

 
  Measurement Date June 30, 
 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 

Proportion of the net 
pension liability 0.23815% 0.27187% 0.30582% 0.25130% 0.24219% 0.23383% 0.22825% 0.22033% 0.20857% 0.20480% 

Proportionate share of 
the net pension 
liability $ 13,885 $ 12,721 $ 5,807 $ 10,600 $ 9,698 $ 8,812 $ 8,998 $7,654 $ 5,722 $ 5,062 

Covered payroll – 
measurement period $   6,603 $   5,930 $ 5,733 $   5,591 $ 5,089 $ 4,491 $ 4,198 $ 4,272 $ 4,212 $ 4,020 

Proportionate share of 
net pension liability as 
a % of covered payroll 210.27% 214.52% 101.29% 189.58% 190.58% 196.22% 214.34% 179.17% 135.84% 125.91% 

Plan fiduciary net 
position as a 
percentage of the total 
pension liability 76.21% 76.68% 88.29% 75.10% 75.26% 75.26% 73.31% 74.06% 78.40% 83.03% 

 

Notes to Schedule: 
(1) Change in Benefit Terms: The figures above do not include any liability that may have resulted from plan 

changes which occurred after the June 30, 2016 valuation date. No plan changes have occurred. 
(2) Changes in Assumptions: In 2017, the accounting discount rate reduced from 7.65% to 7.15%. 
(3) For more information on CalPERS investment returns please visit the CalPERS website and refer to the 

“Annual Investment Report” for each year: https://www.calpers.ca.gov/page/forms-publications 
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Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan 

Schedule of Contributions 
Last 10 Years  

(Dollars in Thousands) 

 
 December 31 

 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 

Contractually required contribution 
(actuarially determined) $ 1,676 $ 1,538 $ 1,409 $ 1,298 $ 1,089 $   797 $   879 $   800 $   835 $   620 

Contributions in relation to the 
actuarially determined contributions (1,676) (1,538) (1,409) (1,298) (1,089) (797) (879) (800) (835) (620) 

Contribution deficiency (excess) $        - $        - $        - $        - $        - $        - $        - $        - $        - $        - 

           

Covered payroll – calendar year $ 7,080 $ 6,163 $ 5,767 $ 5,979 $ 4,929 $ 4,879 $ 4,494 $ 4,292 $ 4,276 $ 4,063 

Contributions as a percentage of 
covered payroll 23.67% 24.95% 24.43% 21.72% 22.09% 16.35% 19.56% 18.64% 19.52% 15.26% 

Valuation Date (June 30,) 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 
 
 

 December 31 

Methods and assumptions used to 
determine contribution rates: 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 

    Actuarial cost method Entry-Age Normal 

    Amortization method Level percentage of payroll, direct rate smoothing 

    Remaining amortization period Varies, not more than 30 years  

    Asset valuation method Market value of assets 

    Inflation 2.3% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.625% 2.75% 2.75% 2.75% 2.75% 2.75% 

    Salary increases Varies by Entry Age and Service 

    Discount rate (1) 6.80% 7.00%) 7.00%  7.00% 7.25%  7.50%  7.50%  7.50%  7.50%  7.50% 

    Retirement age and mortality (6) (5) (5) (5) (5) (4) (3) (2) (2) (2) 

 

Notes to Schedule: 

Please note, the discount rate used for Actuarially Determined Contributions is different from the one used for Total Pension 
Liability. 
(1) Net of pension plan investment and administrative expenses. 
(2) Probabilities of retirement and mortality are based on CalPERS’ 2010 Experience Study for the period from 1997 to 2007. 
(3) Probabilities of retirement and mortality are based on CalPERS’ 2014 Experience Study for the period from 1997 to 2011. 
(4) Probabilities of retirement and mortality are based on CalPERS’ 2017 Experience Study for the period from 1997 to 2015. 
(5) Derived using CalPERS’ Membership Data for all Funds. The post-retirement mortality rates include 15 years of projected 

on-going mortality improvement using 90% of the Scale MP 2016 published by the Society of Actuaries. 
(6) Derived using CalPERS’ Membership Data for all Funds. The post-retirement mortality rates include 15 years of projected 

on-going mortality improvement using 80% of the Society of Actuaries’ Scale MP-2020. 
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Single-Employer Defined Benefit OPEB Plan 
Schedule of Contributions 

Last 10 Years(1) 
 

December 31, 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 

Actuarially determined contribution 
(ADC) $     634,954 $     836,685 $    811,996  $    975,498 $    946,596 $  603,457 

Contributions in relation to the ADC 648,304   843,975    946,836 996,502 947,699 603,457 

Contribution deficiency (excess) $    (13,350) $      (7,290)  $   (134,840) $   (21,004) $     (1,103) $              - 

       

Covered-employee payroll $  7,678,858 $  6,676,905 $ 6,405,487  $ 6,497,090 $ 5,738,672 $ 5,286,650 

       

Contributions as a percentage of 
covered-employee payroll 8.4% 12.6% 14.8% 15.3% 16.5% 11.4% 

Valuation Date 6/30/2022 6/30/2020 6/30/2020 6/30/2018 6/30/2018 6/30/2017 

       

Methods and assumptions used to 
determine contribution rates:       

Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal, Level % of pay 

Amortization method Level % of pay 

Amortization period 16 year fixed Varies, not more than 20 years 

Asset valuation method Assets valued at market value 

Discount rate 6.25% 6.75% 6.75% 6.75% 6.75% 6.75% 

General inflation 2.50% 2.75% 2.75% 2.75% 2.75% 2.75% 

Medical trend (6) (3) (3) (2) (2) (2) 

Mortality & mortality 
improvement (7) (5) (5) (4) (4) (4) 

Notes to Schedule: 
(1) Historical information is required only for measurement periods for which GASB 75 is applicable. Future years’ 

information will be displayed up to 10 years as information becomes available. 
(2) Non-Medicare – 7.5%, decreasing to 4.0% in 2076 and later. Medicare – 6.5%, decreasing to 4% by 2076 and later. 
(3) Non-Medicare – 7.25%, decreasing to 4.0% in 2076 and later. Medicare – 6.3%, decreasing to 4% by 2076 and later. 
(4) Probabilities of retirement and mortality are based on CalPERS’ 2017 Experience Study for the period from 1997 to 

2015. Mortality improvement projected fully generational with scale MP-17 for post-retirement. 
(5) Probabilities of retirement and mortality are based on CalPERS’ 2017 Experience Study for the period from 1997 to 

2015. Mortality improvement projected fully generational with scale MP-2019 for post-retirement. 
(6) Non-Medicare – 6.50%, decreasing to 3.75% in 2076 and later. Medicare (Non-Kaiser) – 5.65%, decreasing to 3.75% by 

2076. Medicare (Kaiser) – 4.60%, decreasing to 3.75% by 2076. 
(7) Probabilities of retirement and mortality are based on CalPERS’ 2000-2019 Experience Study. Mortality improvement 

projected fully generational with scale MP-2021. 
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Single-Employer Defined Benefit OPEB Plan 

Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios 
For the Measurement Periods Ended June 30(1) 

 
Measurement Period 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 

       

Changes in Total OPEB Liability:       

Service cost $       367,548 $      486,063  $      445,831  $      474,204 $     460,392 $     446,983 

Interest 719,375 850,612  801,128  832,623 775,457 719,279 
Actual vs. expected experience - (1,565,446)  -  (1,038,719) - - 

Assumption changes - (708,650)  408,895  (250,200) - - 

Benefit payments (553,139) (487,682) (468,898) (443,356) (362,199) (332,597) 

Net change in total OPEB liability 533,784 (1,425,103) 1,186,956  (425,448) 873,650 833,665 

Total OPEB liability – beginning 11,419,024 12,844,127 11,657,171  12,082,619 11,208,969 10,375,304 

       

Total OPEB liability – ending(a) $ 11,952,808 $ 11,419,024  $ 12,844,127  $ 11,657,171 $ 12,082,619 $ 11,208,969 

       

Changes in Plan Fiduciary Net Position:       

Contributions – employer $      621,286 $      802,499  $   765,582  $   1,296,059 $      628,922 $    600,779 

Net investment income(2) 532,757 (1,283,365)  1,946,853  185,150 363,678 363,740 

Benefit payments (553,139) (487,682) (468,898) (443,356) (362,199) (332,597) 

Administrative expenses (5,491) (5,444) (4,804) (4,117) (1,823) (9,675) 

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 595,413 (973,992) 2,238,733  1,033,736 628,578 622,247 

Plan fiduciary net position – beginning 8,279,684 9,253,676 7,014,943  5,981,207 5,352,629 4,730,382 

       

Plan Fiduciary Net position – ending(b) $   8,875,097 $   8,279,684 $   9,253,676  $   7,014,943 $   5,981,207 $   5,352,629 

       

Net OPEB Liability – ending (a)-(b) $   3,077,711 $   3,139,340 $   3,590,451  $   4,642,228 $   6,101,412 $   5,856,340 

       
Fiduciary Net Position as a percentage 
of the Total OPEB Liability 74.3% 72.5% 72.0% 60.2% 49.5% 47.8% 

       

Covered-employee payroll $   7,209,945 $   6,775,275  $   6,280,368  $   6,048,339 $   5,608,583 $   5,032,984 

       
Net OPEB Liability as a percentage of 
covered-employee payroll 42.7% 46.3% 57.2% 76.8% 108.8% 116.4% 

Notes to Schedule: 
(1) Historical information is required only for measurement periods for which GASB 75 is applicable. Future years’ 

information will be displayed up to 10 years as information becomes available. 
(2) The District OPEB funds are invested in the California Employers’ Retiree Benefit Trust (CERBT) Strategy 1 fund. 

The performance history for the CERBT funds can be found on the CalPERS website : 
https://www.calpers.ca.gov/page/employers/benefit-programs/cerbt/cerbt-fund-values 
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This part of the District’s annual comprehensive financial report presents detailed information as a context for 
understanding what the information in the basic financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary 
information says about the District’s overall financial health. 
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Financial Trends           69 - 70 
These schedules contain information to help the reader understand how the District’s 
financial performance and well-being have changed over time. 
 
Revenue Capacity           71 - 75 
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the District’s most 
significant local revenue-sources: retail water sales. 
 
Debt Capacity            76 - 77 
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the District’s 
current levels of outstanding debt and the District’s ability to issue additional debt in the future. 
 
Demographic and Economic Information        78 - 79 
This schedule offers demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand 
the environment within which the District’s financial activities take place. 
 
Operating Information           80 - 83 
This schedule contains service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the 
information in the District’s financial report relates to the service the District provides and 
activities it performs. 
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Sacramento Suburban Water District 
Statistical Information (Unaudited) 

Statements of Net Position 
Last Ten Years  

(Dollars in Thousands)  

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 

Assets 

Current assets $  4,611 $  7,258 $  7,944 $  11,061 $  11,061 $  13,382 $  14,796 $  21,270 $  19,101 $  24,185

Noncurrent assets 43,456 40,702 38,165 39,875 37,934 39,097 41,212 41,956 37,209 36,111

Capital assets:   

Nondepreciable assets 9,754 10,179 9,761 16,784 10,941 9,779 10,737 18,464 31,012 42,435

Depreciable assets 396,906 416,875 435,906 441,705 466,401 483,875 493,229 502,486 517,649 533,264

Accumulated depreciation (136,477) (147,676) (158,960) (168,222) (180,222) (190,327) (199,117) (211,888) (224,089) (237,105)

Capital assets, net 270,183 279,378 286,707 290,267 286,179 293,547 304,849 309,062 324,542 338,593

Total assets 318,250 327,338 332,816 341,203 348,071 355,805 360,856 372,289 380,852 398,889

Deferred outflows of resources 9,743 9,276 9,400 9,485 8,272 8,809 9,072 7,307 11,254 10,388

 

Liabilities 

Current liabilities 7,935 8,583 9,314 9,256 11,212 15,719 12,578 13,276 14,886 15,609

Noncurrent liabilities 101,940 98,484 94,866 91,524 87,552 92,953 87,833 74,833 71,332 66,798

Total liabilities 113,728 110,523 107,798 104,122 102,736 108,672 100,411 88,110 86,218 82,407

Deferred inflows of resources 1,819 799 558 1,134 2,333 839 1,594 7,784 3,432 2,652

Net position 

Net investment in capital assets 175,262 188,248 199,526 207,156 221,715 232,469 238,712 247,828 270,542 289,215

Restricted 3,540 3,523 3,540 3,548 10 2 - - 2 16

Unrestricted 33,644 33,521 30,794 34,727 29,549 22,632 29,212 35,874 31,912 34,987

Total net position $ 212,446 $ 225,292 $ 233,860 $ 245,431 $ 251,274 $ 255,103 $ 267,923 $ 283,702 $ 302,4556 $ 324,218 
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Sacramento Suburban Water District 
Statistical Information (Unaudited) 

Changes in Net Position 
Last Ten Years 

(Dollars in Thousands)  

 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 

Operating Revenues          
Water sales $ 10,827 $ 9,644 $ 11,053 $ 12,544 $ 13,272 $ 13,251 $ 15,948 $ 15,392 $ 15,545 $ 15,575 

Water transfers - - - - 1,761 43 979 - 1,748 - 

Water service charge 6,306 6,402 6,349 6,366 6,371 6,197 31,694 33,167 34,921 36,087 

Capital facilities charge 20,678 21,646 22,575 23,499 24,499 24,454 - - - - 

Wheeling water charge 6 6 167 676 510 644 83 6 7 794 

Other charges 1,113 992 939 1,077 1,054 1,133 524 408 1,138 993 
Total operating 
revenues 38,930 38690 41,083 44,162 47,417 45,722 49,228 48,973 53,359 53,449 

Operating Expenses          

Source of supply 67 57 2,471 2,980 3,789 3,525 1,861 753 2,285 3,922 

Pumping 4,631 5,124 4,852 4,516 4,946 5,331 5,227 6,242 5,602 5,911 
Transmission and 
distribution 3,643 3,621 3,973 4,016 4,193 7,034 4,761 5,226 4,920 4,705 

Water conservation 399 773 587 452 441 490 534 502 637 712 

Customer accounts 1,122 1,159 1,145 1,305 1,301 1,373 1,279 1,477 1,797 1,826 
Administrative and 
general 6,100 6,120 6,818 7,600 7,791 8,612 8,644 7,639 7,212 9,766 

Total operating 
expenses 15,962 16,854 19,846 20,870 22,461 26,365 22,307 21,839 22,455 26,843 

Operating income 
before depreciation 22,968 21,836 21,237 23,292 24,956 19,357 26,921 27,134 30,904 26,606 

Depreciation (10,812) (11,229) (11,808) (12,182) (12,460) (12,993) (13,715) (13,588) (13,766) (13,734) 

Operating income 12,156 10,607 9,429 11,110 12,496 6,363 13,206 13,546 17,138 12,872 

Non-operating revenues 920 816 834 938 1,195 2,826 1,974 783 (1,295) 3,253 

Interest expense (3,802) (3,633) (3,561) (3,450) (3,112) (2,632) (2,552) (2,271) (2,641) (2,238) 
Other non-operating 
expenses - - - (3) - - (5) - - (21) 

Gain (loss) on disposal of 
capital assets, net 21 6 (13) 12 (7) (24) (1,348) (132) (344) 75 

Income before capital 
contributions 9,295 7,796 6,689 8,608 10,572 6,534 11,275 11,927 12,858 13,941 

Capital contributions 2,455 5,049 1,879 2,963 894 1,648 1,546 3,851 5,896 7,821 

Increase in net position 11,750 12,845 8,568 11,571 11,466 8,182 12,821 15,778 18,755 21,762 
Net position, beginning 
of year 201,169 212,447 225,292 233,860 245,431 251,274 255,103 267,923 283,702 302,456 

Adjustment (472) - - - (5,623) (4,353) - - - - 

Net position, end of year $212,447 $ 225,929 $ 233,860 $ 245,431 $ 251,274 $ 255,103 $ 267,923 $ 283,702 $ 302,456 $ 324,218 
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Sacramento Suburban Water District 
Statistical Information (Unaudited) 

Operating Revenues by Source 
Last Ten Years 

 

 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 

Water Sales (Dollars in Thousands):       
  

Retail $37,811 $37,692 $39,977 $42,409 $44,092 $43,902 $47,642 $48,559 $50,466 $51,662 

Wheeling 6 6 167 676 510 644 83 6 7 794 

Water Transfers - - - - 1,761 43 979 - 1,748 - 

Total Water Sales $37,817 $37,698 $40,144 $43,085 $46,363 $44,589 $48,704 $48,565 $52,221 $52,456 

           

           

           

Water Production (Acre Feet):         

Retail 32,561 27,502 29,312 31,254 30,874 30,610 33,087 32,154 30,963 30,018 

Wheeling 115 51 264 1,984 1,704 1,539 160 585 12 1,802 

Water Transfers - - - - 3,875 - 6,667 - 3,842 - 

Total Water 
Production 32,676 27,553 29,576 33,238 36,453 32,149 39,914 32,739 34,817 31,819 

           
  
  

Water Sales/Acre Foot (Whole Dollars):        

Retail $  1,161 $    1,371 $  1,364 $  1,357 $  1,428 $  1,428 $  1,440 $  1,510 $  1,630 $  1,721 

Wheeling 52 118 633 341 299 418 519 10 389 441   

Water Transfers - - - - 454 - 146 - 455 - 
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  Sacramento Suburban Water District 
Statistical Information (Unaudited) 

Retail Water Rates 
Last Ten Years 

 

 

2009 – 
 2014 2015 2016 2017 

2018 - 
  2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 

Flat Accounts:    
  

    
Consumption Charge ($/1,000 sq. 

feet) $ 0.91 $ 0.95 $ 0.98 $ 1.02 $ 1.06  $ 2.35  $ 2.44  $ 2.52 $ 2.59 

Flat Service Charge (single unit)          

¾” connection 14.89 15.49 16.11 16.75 17.42 44.40 46.18 47.56 48.99 

1” connection 21.55 22.41 23.31 24.24 25.21 69.16 71.96 74.12 76.34 

1 ½” connection 40.69 42.32 44.01 45.77 47.60 131.17 136.42 140.51 144.72 

2” connection 40.19 41.80 43.47 45.21 47.02 205.53 213.75 220.16 226.77 

Metered Accounts:          

Consumption Charge ($/100 cubic feet (ccf))        

Single Family Residential – 1st 

Tier  0.80 0.83 0.87 0.90 0.94 0.88 0.92 0.95 0.98 

Single Family Residential – 2nd 

Tier  1.00 1.04 1.08 1.12 1.17 1.15 1.20   1.24 1.28 

Multi-Family Residential  - - - - - 1.26 1.31 1.35 1.39 

Non-Resid–Off-Peak Rate (Nov-

Apr) 0.81 0.84 0.88 0.91 0.95 1.33 1.38 1.42 1.47 

Non-Resid.–Peak Rate (May-Oct) 
(eliminated as of 2020) 1.01 1.05 1.09 1.14 1.18 - - - - 

Service Charge         

5/8” meter 3.60 3.74 3.89 4.05 4.21 32.01 33.29 34.29 35.32 

¾” meter  5.25 5.46 5.68 5.91 6.14 44.40 46.18 47.56 48.99 

1” meter  8.50 8.84 9.19 9.56 9.94 69.19 71.96 74.12 76.34 

1 ½” meter  16.60 17.26 17.95 18.67 19.42 131.17 136.42 140.51 144.72 

2” meter  24.60 27.46 28.55 29.70 30.88 205.53 213.75 220.16 226.77 

3” meter 49.20 51.17 53.21 55.34 57.56 403.85 420.00 432.60 445.58 

4” meter 81.75 85.02 88.42 91.96 95.64 626.95 652.03 671.59 691.74 

6” meter 163.15 169.68 176.46 183.52 190.86 1,246.68 1,296.55 1,335.44 1,375.51 

8” meter 293.40 305.14 317.34 330.04 343.24 2,238.25 2,327.78 2,397.61 2,369.54 

10” meter 472.50 491.40 511.06 531.50 552.76 2,981.93 3,101.21 3,194.24 3,290.07 

12” meter 700.40 728.42 757.55 787.85 819.37 4,190.40 4,358.02  4,488.76 4,623.42 

Flat and Metered Accounts:          
Capital Facilities Charge (combined with service charge as of 

2020)    
 

  
5/8” meter 19.25 20.02 20.82 21.65 22.52 - - - - 

¾” meter or connection 28.70 29.85 31.04 32.28 33.57 - - - - 
1” meter or connection 48.00 49.92 51.92 53.99 56.15 - - - - 

1 ½” meter or connection 95.65 99.48 103.46 107.59 111.90 - - - - 
2” meter or connection 153.10 159.22 165.59 172.22 179.11 - - - - 

3” meter 287.30 298.79 310.74 323.17 336.10 - - - - 
4” meter 478.95 498.11 518.03 538.75 560.30 - - - - 
6” meter 957.60 995.90 1,035.74 1,077.17 1,120.66 - - - - 
8” meter 1,723.80 1,792.75 1,864.46 1,939.04 2,016.60 - - - - 

10” meter 2,777.45 2,888.55 3,004.09 3,124.25 3,249.22 - - - - 
12” meter 4,117.65 4,282.36 4,453.65 4,631.80 4,817.07 - - - - 
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Sacramento Suburban Water District 
Statistical Information (Unaudited) 

Capacity Fees (Connection Fees) 
Last Ten Years  

 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 

5/8” service $   2,762 $   3,130 $   3,168 $   3,228 $   3,418 $    3,524 $    4,056 $    4,143   $    4,252    $   4,463 

¾” service 4,122 4,672 4,728 4,817 5,102 5,260 6,085 6,216 6,379 6,695 

1” service 6,884 7,802 7,896 8,045 8,519 8,785  10,141 10,359 10,631 11,158 

1 ½” service 13,726 15,558 15,745 16,041 16,989 17,518 20,282 20,719 21,262 22,315 

2” service 31,970 24,902 25,202 25,676 27,192 28,039 32,452 33,151 34,020 35,704 

3” service 41,220 46,720 47,282 48,172 51,016 52,605  64,903 66,300 68,040 71,409 

4” service 68,714 77,882 78,820 80,304 85,044 87,692  101,411 103,594 106,312 111,576 

6” service 137,386 155,718 157,952 160,559 170,038 175,332 202,823 207,189 212,625 223,152 

8” service 219,826 249,158 252,157 256,904 272,071 280,541  365,081 372,940 382,725 401,674 

10” service 316,034 358,202 362,514 369,339 391,143 403,320 486,775 497,254 510,300 535,565 

12” service 463,725 525,600 531,927 541,941 573,935 591,803  684,527 699,263 717,609 753,138 

 
Source: District. 
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Sacramento Suburban Water District 
Statistical Information (Unaudited) 

Principal Retail Rate Payers 
Current Year and Ten Years Prior 

 December 31, 2023 December 31, 2014 

       

       
 Principal Retail Rate Payers  

Rank 

Percent of 
Retail 
Sales 

Revenue 

 

Rank 

Percent of 
Retail 
Sales 

Revenue 

 Revenues Revenues 

  Collected Collected 

McClellan Business Park $      577,673  1 1.19% $      384,395  1 1.02% 

San Juan Unified School District 377,396 2 0.78% 223,228 2 0.59% 

Carmel Partners MS#3 243,889 3 0.47% 145,547 4 0.38% 

Woodside Assoc Inc 196,616 4 0.41% 184,397 3 0.49% 

KW Fund VI Autumn Ridge LLC 195,441 5 0.41% 96,468 6 0.26% 

Fulton-El Camino Rec/Park District 171,420 6 0.33% - - - 

Twin Rivers Unified School District 157,182 7 0.32% 79,942 7 0.21% 

Eskaton Village 150,954 8 0.33% 73,775 9 0.20% 

Logan Park Apt LP 149,121 9 0.31% - - - 

The Homes at McClellan Park 139,150 10 0.31% - - - 

Henson Gardens Eskaton - - - 98,703 5 0.26% 

Sunrise Recreation/Park District - - - 79,548 8 0.21% 

Sacramento County (AFS/SCRSD) - - - 72,965 10 0.19% 

Total Principal Retail Rate Payers $   2,358,843  - 4.87% $   2,133,512  - 5.37% 

Total Annual Retail Water Sales 
Revenue $ 50,465,772  - - $ 39,751,047  - - 

 

Source: District 
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Sacramento Suburban Water District 
Statistical Information (Unaudited) 

Delinquent Amounts Transferred to Tax Roll 
Last Ten Years 

Fiscal Year ending  
December 31 Water Sales Revenues (1) Transferred to Tax Roll 

2023 $   52,456,348 $      391,187 

2022 50,472,578 - 

2021 48,565,271 - 

2020 47,724,962 - 

2019 44,545,600 - 

2018 44,601,655 - 

2017 43,084,389 - 

2016 40,143,786 - 

2015 37,698,578 - 

2014 37,816,244 - 
 

(1)Retail water sales and wheeling water only. 

Source: the District 
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(1) Includes domestic, irrigation and fire connections (excludes temporary and District owned) 

Source: District 

  

Sacramento Suburban Water District 
Statistical Information (Unaudited) 

Outstanding Debt by Type and Number of Connections 
Last Ten Years 

 

 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 

Long-Term Debt: 
(Dollars in Thousands)    

Series 2009A $ 47,939 $ 47,623 $ 47,299 $ 46,969 $ 46,632 $ 46,288 $ 45,937 $ 45,578 $          - $           - 

Series 2009B 29,074 27,120 25,056 22,973 - - - - - - 

Series 2012A 26,516 24,351 22,117 19,847 17,502 15,102 12,628 10,068 - - 

Series 2018A - - - - 17,295 14,830 12,275 9,630 6,915 5,630 

Series 2022A - - - - - - - - 41,416 40,628 

Series 2022B - - - - - - - - 6,585 2,960 

Total Debt 103,529 99,094 94,472 89,789 81,429 76,220 70,840 65,276 54,916 49,218 

           

           
No. of Connections(1) 46,696 47,016 47,031 47,062 47,104 47,132 47,176 47,402 47,680 47,788- 

           
Debt Per Connection 
(Whole Dollars) $  2,217  $  2,108  $  2,009  $  1,908  $  1,729  $  1,617  $  1,502 $  1,377  $  1,152  $  1,030  
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Sacramento Suburban Water District 
Statistical Information (Unaudited) 

Schedule of Net Revenues 
Last Ten Years 

(Dollars in Thousands)  

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 
Revenues           

Water sales  $ 37,811 $ 37,692 $ 39,977 $ 42,408 $ 44,092 $ 43,902 $ 47,643 $ 48,559   $ 50,466   $ 51,662   

Water transfers - - - - 1,761 43 979 - 1,748 - 
Wheeling 
charge 6 6 167 676 510 644 83 6 7 794 

Water services 1,113 992 939 1,077 1,054 1,133 524 408 1,138 993 

Capacity Fees 561 543 264 135 158 287 470 1,213 1,681 955 
Investment 
income  547 271 613 572 767 1,076 1,077 649 652 405 

Other  373 358 279 444 449 1,064 374 1,104 368 577 

Total revenues  40,410 39,863 42,239 45,312 48,791 48,149 51,150 51,939 56,060 55,386 

Operating Expenses          
Transmission 
and distribution 3,642 3,621 3,973 4,016 4,193 6,721 4,548 5,100 5,235 4,445 
Administrative 
and general* 6,100 6,120 6,822 7,603 7,791 8,191 8,601 8,026 8,160 9,668 

Pumping 4,632 5,124 4,852 4,516 4,946 5,195 5,304 6,252 5,666 5,777 

Water purchases 67 57 2,471 2,980 3,789 3,525 1,861 754 2,285 3,922 
Customer 
accounts 1,122 1,159 1,145 1,305 1,301 1,320 1,250 1,460 1,829 1,806 
Water 
conservation 400 773 587 452 441 472 523 495 653 696 

Total expenses 15,963 16,854 19,850 20,873 22,461 25,424 22,088 22,087 23,828 26,313 

Net revenue 24,447 23,008 22,389 24,439 26,330 22,724 29,061 29,852 32,232 29,073 

Debt service 7,484 7,443 7,471 7,559 7,462 7,150 7,238 7,121 7,165 6,995 

Coverage ratio 3.26 3.09 2.99 3.23 3.53 3.18 4.02 4.19 4.50 4.16 

Revenues 
available for 
capital projects 
and other 
purposes $ 16,963 $ 15,565 $ 14,918 $ 16,880 $ 18,868 $ 15,574 $  21,823 $  22,730 $  25,066   $  22,078  
 

* Administrative and general operating expenses include “other non-operating expenses” as reported on the Statements of Revenues, 
Expenses and Changes in Net Position. 

Source: District 
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Sacramento Suburban Water District 
Statistical Information (Unaudited) 
Demographic and Economic Statistics 

Sacramento County* 
Last Ten Years  

Year Population 

Personal 
Income 

($ in 000s) 
Per Capita 

Income Labor Force 
Number 

Employed 
Number 

Unemployed 
Unemployment 

Rate 

2023 Information Not Currently Available 731,900 697,100 34,700 4.7% 

2022 1,584,169 $  97,517,936 $  61,558 728,300 699,800 28,500 3.9% 

2021 1,588,921n $  98,241,828 $  61,829 719,700 669,900 49,900 6.9% 

2020 1,586,241 $  91,842,584 $  57,991 712,200 644,800 67,400 9.5% 

2019 1,575,602 $  83,515,309 $  53,005 711,700 685,300 26,400 3.7% 

2018 1,560,721 $  78,819.492 $  50,502 704,200 676,900 27,300 3.9% 

2017 1,546,422 $  75,107,692 $  48,569 696,500 663,700 32,700 4.7% 

2016 1,527,104 $  72,142,550 $  47,241 694,000 656,400 37,600 5.4% 

2015 1,506,558 $  69,706,561 $  46,269 684,600 643,300 41,300 6.0% 

2014 1,485,221 $  65,106,762 $  43,836 677,700 627,600 50,100 7.4% 

 
 
* Information for Demographic and Economic Statistics is provided for the County of Sacramento since the District is located solely 
within the County and such information is not available specifically for the District’s service area. 
 
Source: 
Population and Income: U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis (CAINC4_CA). 
Labor Force and Employment Data: Report 400C - Annual Averages; State of California, Employment Development Department. 
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Sacramento Suburban Water District 
Statistical Information (Unaudited) 

Principal Employers – Sacramento County* 
Current Year and Ten Years Prior  

 December 31, 2023 December 31, 2014  

Principal Employers Employees Rank 

Percentage 
of Total 

Labor Force Employees Rank 

Percentage 
of Total 

Labor Force 

State of California 107,876 1 14.74% 72,220 1 10.62% 

UC Davis Health System 16,075 2 2.20% 9,905 4 1.46% 

Sacramento County 13,252 3 1.81% 10,700 2 1.57% 

Kaiser Permanente 10,934 4 1.49% 5,421 8 0.80% 

U.S. Government 10,507 5 1.44% 9,906 3 1.46% 
Sutter Health Sacramento Sierra 
Region  9,350 6 1.28% 7,352 5 1.08% 

Dignity Health 7,353 7 1.00% 6,212 6 0.91% 

Intel Corp. 5,000 8 0.68% 6,000 7 0.88% 

San Juan Unified School District 4,801 9 0.66% 4,200 10 0.62% 

Los Rios Community College Dist. 3,049 10 0.42% - - - 

Elk Grove Unified School District ** - - 5,410 9 0.80% 

Total 188,197  25.71% 137,326  20.20% 

Total Labor Force 731,900   679,700   
 
* Information for Employers in Sacramento County, ranked by number of employees, is provided for the County of Sacramento since 
the District is located within the County and such information is not available solely for the District’s service area. 

** Not listed for 2023 

Source: 
Employers – Sacramento County: Sacramento Business Journal, Book of Lists 2023, Vol. 40, No. 46, p.69. 
Total Labor Force: Annual Averages; State of California, Employment Development Department. 
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Sacramento Suburban Water District 
Statistical Information (Unaudited) 

Annual Retail Water Production 
Last Ten Years 

(Reported in Acre Feet) 

Year 

North Service Area South Service Area 
Total  

Production Surface Ground Sub Total Surface Ground Sub Total 

2023 11,299 5,670 16,969 7,471 5,578 13,049 30,018 

2022 6,098 11,145 17,243 - 13,720 13,720 30,963 

2021 2,228 15,704 17,932 - 14,222 14,222 32,154 

2020 3,627 14,958 18,585 388 14,114 14,502 33,087 

2019 10,843 6,283 17,126 6,404 7,080 13,484 30,610 

2018 10,450 7,085 17,535 - 13,339 13,339 30,874 

2017 10,162 7,364 17,526 1,301 12,427 13,728 31,254 

2016 11,025 5,679 16,704 423 12,185 12,608 29,312 

2015 80 15,702 15,782 - 11,720 11,720 27,502 

2014 - 18,790 18,790 - 13,771 13,771 32,561 

 

        Source: District. 
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        Source: District. 

  

Sacramento Suburban Water District 
Statistical Information (Unaudited) 

Wheeling Water Deliveries 
Last Ten Years 

(Reported in Acre Feet) 
 

Year 

California 
American 

Water 
Company 

Citrus Heights  
Water District 

Rio Linda / 
Elverta  
Water 

District 
City of 

Sacramento 

Del Paso 
Manor 
Water 

District 

San Juan 
Water 
District 

Total 
Deliveries 

2023 1,802 - - - 0.4 - 1,802 

2022 - 12 - - - 6 18 

2021 - 1 - 562 - 22 585 

2020 152 - - - - 8 160 

2019 1,539 - - - - - 1,539 

2018 1,551 - - 153 - - 1,704 

2017 1,983 - 1 - - - 1,984 

2016 251 - - - - 13 264 

2015 - - - - - 51 51 

2014 - - 11 104 - - 115 
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Sacramento Suburban Water District 
Statistical Information (Unaudited) 

Operating Activity 
Last Ten Years  

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 
Production Department  

      
 

 
 

Water Quality           
     Complaints 30 1 13 51 14 16 8 12 37 16 
      Inquiries 110 159 197 119 159 129 163 130 180 103 
           
Distribution Department           
Service Orders           

Main Leaks 61 70 66 52 40 53 51 47 52 73 
Service Line Leaks 125 101 75 105 72 65 69 67 76 63 
Locate & Expose 353 253 208 172 165 97 57 51 56 69 
Determine Responsibility 839 630 654 621 681 621 729 827 984 606 
Water Main Shutdown:           
-- Emergency 86 27 29 29 16 34 31 44 64 57 
-- Scheduled 100 32 13 6 9 13 56 44 56 59 

Preventive Maintenance Program          
Fire Hydrants Inspected 1,255 1,597 251 28 200 873 931 1,277 1,231 1,298 
Fire Hydrant Valves 
Inspected 1,202 1,508 247 51 235 845 896 1,388 1,242 1,174 
Fire Hydrant Valves 
Exercised 975 1,385 225 49 234 768 794 1,205 1,170 1,099 
Valves Inspected 898 434 880 708 1,758 1,900 1,757 3,116 5,572 2,251 
Valves Exercised - - - 641 1,536 1,414 1,289 2,356 3,726 1,932 

After Hours Activity           
Calls Received 1,024 1,145 741 553 496 704 553 901 892 852 
Calls Responded 338 605 442 342 332 417 321 385 419 368 
            

Field Services Department            
Meters            

Preventive Maintenance – 
Meters Tested 57 32 128 135 114 125 122 123 122 120 
Preventive Maintenance – 
Meters Replaced 143 117 1,159 279 941 929 797 1,200 1,029 832 
Preventive Maintenance – 
Meter Re-Builds 67 43 240 232 245 245 253 264 264 245 

Customer Service            
Shut Off (non-payment)(1) 2,561 2,051 1,804 1,772 1,861 1,949 312 - 1,277 - 
Restore Service 2,100 1,801 1,742 1,772 1,723 1,795 450 92 1,183 107 
Customer Pressure 
Inquiries 121 113 143 118 125 132 132 117 86 99 

Service Requests/Work Orders            
     Service Requests Generated 22,736 24,204 16,092 17,858 18,957 24,483 16,951 14,570 17,008 9,458 

Work Orders Generated 11,939 10,898 12,417 14,257 14,722 15,870 16,414 20,038 13,148 13,932 
Source: District. 
Notes: 

(1) As of January 1, 2023, the District discontinued Shut-Offs as the primary means of delinquent account collections.  



 

83 

Sacramento Suburban Water District 
Statistical Information (Unaudited) 

Authorized Full-Time Equivalent Employees 
Last Ten Years 

 

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 

Administration 13 13 14 14 15 15 16 16 17 17 

Conservation 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 

Customer Service 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 

Distribution 20 21 22 22 23 23 23 22 22 22 

Engineering 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 
Production and Water 
Treatment 12 12 13 13 14 14 14 15 16 16 

       Total 62 63 67 67 70 70 70 71 73 73 

 
 
 
Source: District. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
 
 
 
Board of Directors of the  
Sacramento Suburban Water District 
Sacramento, California 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the basic financial statements of 
the Sacramento Suburban Water District (District), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2023, 
and have issued our report thereon dated April 3, 2024.  
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District's 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's 
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's 
internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the District's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance.  
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.  
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion 
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not 
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other 
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
We have also issued a separate Memorandum on Internal Control dated April 3, 2024, which is an 
integral part of our audit and should be read in conjunction with this report. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
District's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District's internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 

 
Pleasant Hill, California  
April 3, 2024 
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MEMORANDUM ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

Board of Directors of the  
Sacramento Suburban Water District 
Sacramento, California 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the Sacramento Suburban Water 
District (District) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2023, in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the District’s internal control over 
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing our auditing procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we 
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.  

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the District’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.   

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and was 
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses. In addition, 
because of inherent limitations in internal control, including the possibility of management override of 
controls, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected by such controls. Given these 
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be 
material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, Board of Directors, 
others within the organization, and agencies and pass-through entities requiring compliance with 
Government Auditing Standards, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than 
these specified parties. 

Pleasant Hill, California 
April 3, 2024 
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REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS 

Board of Directors of the  
Sacramento Suburban Water District 
Sacramento, California 

We have audited the basic financial statements of the Sacramento Suburban Water District (District) for 
the year ended December 31, 2023. Professional standards require that we provide you with information 
about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing 
Standards as well as certain information related to the planning scope and timing of our audit.  We have 
communicated such information in our letter to you dated September 21, 2023.  Professional standards 
also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit.   

Significant Audit Matters 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Accounting Policies - Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting 
policies. The significant accounting policies used by the District are described in Note 1 to the financial 
statements. No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not 
changed during the year.  

Unusual Transactions, Controversial or Emerging Areas - We noted no transactions entered into by the 
District during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant 
transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.  

Accounting Estimates - Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by 
management and are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events 
and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of 
their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting 
them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the District’s 
financial statements were: 

Estimated Net Pension Liabilities and Pension-Related Deferred Outflows and Inflows of 
Resources: Management’s estimate of the net pension liabilities and deferred outflows/inflows of 
resources are disclosed in Note 13 to the financial statements and are based on actuarial studies 
determined by a consultant, which are based on the experience of the District.  We evaluated the 
key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimate and determined that it is reasonable in 
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

Estimated Net Other Post-Employment Benefit Plan (OPEB) Liability and OPEB-Related 
Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources: Management’s estimate of the net OPEB liability 
and deferred outflows/inflows of resources are disclosed in Note 14 to the financial statements 
and are based on actuarial studies determined by a consultant, which is based on the experience of 
the District. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimate and 
determined that it is reasonable in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 
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Estimated Fair Value of Investments: As of December 31, 2023, the District held approximately 
$46.4 million of cash and investments as measured by fair value as disclosed in Note 3 to the 
financial statements. Fair value is essentially market pricing in effect as of December 31, 2023. 
These fair values are not required to be adjusted for changes in general market conditions 
occurring subsequent to December 31, 2023. 

Estimate of Depreciation: Management’s estimate of the depreciation is based on useful lives 
determined by management. These lives have been determined by management based on the 
expected useful life of assets as disclosed in Note 1 section E6 to the financial statements.  We 
evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the depreciation estimate and 
determined that it is reasonable in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

Disclosures 

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.  

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our 
audit.  

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the 
audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of 
management. We did not propose any audit adjustments that, in our judgement, could have a significant 
effect, either individually or in the aggregate, on the District’s financial reporting process. 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely uncorrected misstatements identified 
during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of 
management. We have no such misstatements to report to the Board of Directors. 

Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or 
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial 
statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the 
course of our audit. 

Management Representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in a management 
representation letter dated April 3, 2024. 
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Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters, similar to obtaining a "second opinion" on certain situations. If a consultation involves 
application of an accounting principle to the District’s financial statements or a determination of the type 
of auditor's opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the 
consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our 
knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. 

Other Audit Findings or Issues 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the District's auditors. However, these 
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a 
condition to our retention. 

Other Matters 

We applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information that accompanies and 
supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management 
regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained 
during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We did not audit the required supplementary information 
and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the required supplementary information.  

We were not engaged to report on the Introductory and Statistical Sections which accompany the 
financial statements, but are not required supplementary information.  Such information has not been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and 
accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them. 

Additional Procedures 

The District requested us to increase the sample size of transactions reviewed as part of our internal 
control testing. Under generally accepted auditing standards, the auditor selects sample sizes based on 
their judgment to obtain reasonable assurance the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 
The requested procedures by the District resulted in the selection of additional transactions to be tested 
over the amounts required, in our judgment, for the audit. Our sample sizes, including the additional 
testing, included: 

Cash Disbursements – We selected 10 transactions randomly from all disbursements made during 
the year. We traced these samples to original approved purchase orders, invoices and agreements. 
Furthermore, we tested these transactions to ensure compliance with the purchasing policy. In 
addition, we reviewed the petty cash reconciliations forms for 2 selected month and reviewed 
those transactions. 

Wire and Bank Transfers – We selected 8 wire and bank transfers during the year and tested the 
bank reconciliation for two months. 

Credit Card Transactions – We reviewed all transactions charged to the District’s credit cards for 
10 transactions. We traced those charges to supporting documents and verified they follow the 
District’s policy and were properly approved. 
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Board and Employee Reimbursements – We scanned the listings of all Board and employee 
reimbursements made during the year. We selected one employee and tested one months’ worth 
of transaction for proper authorization and approval. 

 
Payroll Disbursements – We randomly selected 10 employees for payroll disbursement testing. 
Our sample included 2 senior management, finance staff and staff involved in the processing of 
payroll. 

 
****** 

 
This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors and management and is not 
intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 

 
 
Pleasant Hill, California 
April 3, 2024 
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Agenda Item: 8 

Date: May 20, 2024

Subject: Transmission Main Asset Management Plan – Status Update

Staff Contact: Tommy Moulton, Senior Project Manager 

Recommended Board Action:
Receive presentation and direct staff as appropriate. 

Background: 
The Board adopted a Water Transmission Main Asset Management Plan (Plan) on July 18, 2011. 
It was anticipated that the Plan would be amended periodically as it was recognized that new 
information would be made available that might influence the ranking of the transmission mains 
and alter priorities. The Plan was updated most recently in 2020 and renamed the Transmission 
Main Asset Management Plan.  

Discussion: 
Summary 

Implementation Status:  On-Track 
Last Update: 2020 
Planned Update:  2026 

The Plan can be accessed here: 
https://www.sswd.org/home/showpublisheddocument/9617/637368897371370000

Implementation 
Implementation is on-track.   

The need for transmission main replacement projects is being assessed through a two-step process:  
a desktop analysis (also known as the Indirect Method) and when needed a follow-up physical (the 
Direct Method) Condition Assessment (CA) based on the prioritization order of the Indirect 
Method of risk assessment provided in the Plan’s Appendix A.  The following bullets provide 
summary information on implementation efforts to date:   

 Yearly monitoring of corrosion protection system utilizing existing test stations. 

 Maintaining appurtenances (e.g., air release valves, combination air release valves, and 
blow-offs) in accordance with industry standards. 
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As recommended in the Plan, which is supported by current conditions, the Direct Method of CA 
is not recommended or anticipated for another 5-10 years based on pipe leak history and age.  

Next Update 
This Plan is on a 4 to 6 year update cycle and the next update is scheduled for 2026.  As discussed 
at the June 19, 2023, regular Board meeting, staff was considering combining the Distribution 
Main Asset Management Plan (AMP) and the Transmission Main AMP into a single AMP at the 
next update cycle.  However, due to the many AMPs due for update in this time period, staff now 
plans to update the Plan as a stand-alone document – as it is currently.  The Plan’s update project 
is scheduled to be initiated in CY2026. 

Fiscal Impact:
As stated in the Plan, the Plan does not represent a financial commitment by the Board.  The Plan 
will be used as a planning tool during annual budget discussions with the Board.   

Strategic Plan Alignment:
Goal B:  Optimize Operational and Organizational Efficiencies 

Goal C:  Ensure Fiscal Responsibility and Affordable Rates 



Agenda Item: 9 

Date: May 20, 2024

Subject: Sacramento Local Agency Formation Commission – Public Hearing on Del 
Paso Manor Water District

Staff Contact: Dan York, General Manager

Recommended Board Action: 
Receive update on the result of the Public Hearing held on May 1, 2024, by the Sacramento Local 
Agency Formation Commission on the intent to initiate dissolution of Del Paso Manor Water 
District. 

Discussion:
The Sacramento Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCo) held a Public Hearing on May 
1, 2024, with a staff recommendation to approve the following: 

1. Adopts CEQA Statutory Exemption §15061(b)(3) for the following two actions 
2. Adopts the Addendum to the Municipal Service Review for Del Paso Manor Water 
    District (LAFCo Project #2022-01); and 
3. Serves as a Resolution of Intent to Initiate Dissolution of Del Paso Manor Water 
    District. This resolution gives Del Paso Manor Water District a 12-month remediation period 
    during which the district may take steps to remedy the specified deficiencies. At the end of that  

12-month period, the Commission may either approve the dissolution of the Del Paso Manor 
Water District in May 2025, or rescind the Resolution of Intent to Initiate Dissolution, and no 
further action will be taken. 

LAFCo staff’s recommendation to initiate dissolution of the Del Paso Manor Water District 
(DPMWD) is based on a preponderance of evidence that DPMWD’s service is not meeting 
industry standards, or government regulations, and is based on the 2021 Grand Jury Report, the 
adopted LAFCo Municipal Service Review (MSR), including the recommended MSR Addendum, 
and independent studies and information provided by DPMWD related to the current 
infrastructure. The recommendation is based on the further determination that DPMWD’s Board 
is not actively engaged in efforts to remediate the documented service deficiencies. 
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LAFCo Commission Chair Rich Desmond began the meeting by reading a statement on the 
purpose and responsibility of LAFCo. 

Jose Henriquez, LAFCo Executive Officer, conducted the presentation providing all of the 
necessary information to support the recommendation to adopt the subject resolution.   

DPMWD Directors Dolk, Mattioli, Pratt, Ross, and General Manager Coyan were present at the 
meeting and provided comments during the Public Comment period.     

During Public Comment, DPMWD Directors Ross and Mattioli requested that the LAFCo 
Commission delay considering adopting the resolution so the Board and constituents can review 
and respond to the LAFCo report.  Directors Dolk, Pratt, and DPMWD GM Coyan commented 
that they supported LAFCo’s recommendation to adopt the resolution.  

Each Commission Member made it very clear that they were not going to delay a decision that 
evening.  They also made it clear to the DPMWD Board that by adopting the resolution doesn’t 
restrict that Board from doing their due diligence as Board members by choosing their path 
going forward.  The Commission Members were very adamant on making the point that their 
major concern for DPMWD customers is their health, safety, and affordability of water, now and 
into the future.   

Once the Public Comment period concluded, the LAFCo Commission, by a 7-0 vote, adopted 
LAFCo staff’s recommendation, which adopts the Addendum to the Municipal Service Review 
for DPMWD and a Resolution of Intent to Initiate Dissolution of DPMWD. 



Agenda Item: 10 

Date: May 20, 2024

Subject: General Manager’s Report

Staff Contact: Dan York, General Manager

a. Grant of Easement and Right of Way 
Pursuant to Resolution 16-21, the General Manager has accepted a Grant of Easement 
and Right of Way for the below listed properties for the purposes of operation and 
maintenance of new distribution main pipeline and related appurtenances:

 3338 El Camino Avenue, Carmichael, California 
 3348 El Camini Avenue, Carmichael, California 

b. Groundwater Well Asset Management Plan Implementation Update  
As previously reported at the February 26, 2024, regular Board Meeting, the 
Groundwater Well Asset Management Plan (GWAMP) Team continues to meet bi-
weekly to work on completing the implementation Goals. The following is a status 
update: 

Q3 2024 Goals 

IM-2: GWAMP annual maintenance, including review and updates.

 Staff identified implementation changes and presented a revised Implementation 
Schedule to the Board at their February 26, 2024, regular Board meeting.  

 Staff is developing a GWAMP maintenance change log that will be used to track 
the changes made to schedules, inspections, and forms. 

CA-2: Condition Assessment, develop and implement a plan to visually inspect the 
remaining 66 wells whose condition was not assessed during development of the 
GWAMP.

 Staff is inspecting the remaining 66 wells using the District’s newly developed 
mobile data collection tool. 

 Staff is simultaneously making refinements to the inspection form. 

Q4 2024 Goals 

 CA-1: Create standardized data collection framework, reports, and tools.

 While developing the mobile data collection tool software, and the well inspection 
framework discussed above, staff is also working on this Goal.  
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Date: 

Agenda Item: 11 

May 20, 2024

Subject: Groundwater Well Status Report

Staff Contact: Tommy Moulton, Senior Project Manager 

This report summarizes off-line Active sources, their project status, and when they are expected 
to be operational (on-line).  Additionally, the report includes a list of on-line sources that have 
been identified for future proactive projects.  This information is categorized by the following 
sections: A) Capacity Status Summary; B) Off-Line Capacity Detail; and C) Proactive Projects.   

Note: Work has been initiated on numerous facilities and steady progress is underway as indicated 
below in Section B.  Unless specified differently, Kirby’s Pump and Mechanical, Inc. (KPM) is 
the contractor for a project. 

Definitions 
Active – A well is defined as an Active source within the District’s Drinking Water Permit.  

On-line – A well is considered on-line when it is Active and available for operation into the 
distribution system. 

Off-line – A well is considered off-line when it is Active and locked-out and tagged-out.  As a 
result, it cannot and will not be used as a source of supply.  There are various reasons why a well 
may be off-line, such as maintenance, power supply, water quality, among others. 

A. CAPACITY STATUS SUMMARY 

Table 1 below lists the District’s groundwater supply capacity for Active wells.  It includes the 
On-Line amount and percentage, the current month’s projected daily demand based on a 3-
year rolling average (Average Day), and the year’s projected highest day demand incorporating 
a factor of 1.5 on the year’s highest Average Day demand (Highest Day).   
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Table 1. Status Summary of Groundwater Supply Capacity by Service Area 

Area 

Groundwater Supply Capacity  
Demand Projection 

(MGD)

Active  
(MGD)

On-Line 
(MGD)

On-Line 
(%) 

Average 
Day 

(Month)

Highest 
Day 

(Year)
NSA 56.5 44.0 78% 17.4 37.6 

SSA 56.0 39.8 71% 14.5 30.4 

Total 112.5 83.8 75% 31.9 66.6 

MGD = Million Gallons per Day 

Figure 1 below presents the Table 1 data graphically. 

Figure 1. Capacity vs. Demand by Service Area 

SSA

71%
Online Capacity

NSA

78%
Online Capacity

Average Day 
Demand (Month) 

On-Line 
Capacity

Capacity 
Reserve

Highest Day 
Demand (Year) 
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B. OFF-LINE CAPACITY DETAIL 

The District generally has numerous wells undergoing some type of typical lifecycle activity 
– from preventive maintenance to component repair/replacement. Current off-line wells are 
listed below:   

NORTH SERVICE AREA

Total Active capacity off-line for listed projects:  8,700 gpm / 12.4 MGD 
(9,500 gpm last report) 

Summary of Change in Well Status 
Well Status Capacity (gpm)
56A Fairbairn/Karl On 2,000
N9 Cameron Off (1,200)
N23A Freeway On 1,100
N24 Don Julio Off (1,100)

Net Change in Capacity: 800

CONDITION ASSESSMENT AND INVESTIGATIVE PROJECTS 

Listed below are Condition Assessment (CA) and preliminary investigative projects for 
off-line sources.  A CA is the initial step in assessing a well’s physical condition necessary 
to monitor the well’s health and is used in planning any further work efforts.   

Projects in this category frequently move to the Repair and Rehabilitation Projects or the 
Water Quality category following completion of the CA and/or investigative project before 
moving to the Completed category.   

In-Progress Projects: 1,600 gpm 

N38 Coyle
Capacity / Status: 400 gpm / Off-line 3/28/2024
Reason: Pump breaking suction
Project Phase: Pump removed. Condition Assessment in progress.
Expected Completion: Depending on the outcome of the Condition Assessment, a 

decision will be made on the future course of action needed 
to return the well to service.

N9 Cameron
Capacity / Status: 1,200 gpm / Off-line 4/4/2024
Reason: Submersible motor failure
Project Phase: Pump and motor removed.  Condition Assessment in 

progress.
Expected Completion: February 2025 (pending motor availability)
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Planned Projects: 0 gpm 

None 

REPAIR AND REHABILITATION PROJECTS 

Listed below are current projects of well casing repair / rehabilitation, pump repair / 
replacement, and other significant activities.   

In-Progress Projects: 0 gpm 

None 

Planned Projects: 0 gpm 

None. See Section C for proactive projects. 

HYDRO-PNEUMATIC TANK PROJECTS 

Background 
In 2012, the District’s insurance carrier, ACWA/JPIA, alerted its member agencies of the 
hazards concerning aging hydro-pneumatic (HP) tanks and the potential for catastrophic 
failure (with potential for major damage, injury, and death).  They recommended regular 
preventive maintenance and inspections be conducted.  

The process of performing HP tank inspections involves the following.  The well and tank 
are isolated from the distribution system and the tank is drained.  The tank is then cleaned 
and an inspection is performed which consists of visual inspection and metal thickness 
measurements.  If needed, appurtenances like safety relief valves are replaced and coating 
repairs are completed.   

Tanks are returned to service if the inspection shows that it is in serviceable condition.  
However, a tank may need to be recoated and/or repaired, or even replaced.  

Projects 
Listed below are current HP tank projects and inspections.  An inspection is the initial step 
in assessing a tank’s coating and physical condition and is used in planning work efforts.   

In-Progress Projects: 2,000 gpm 
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N3 Engle
Capacity / Status: 900 gpm / Off-line 1/13/2023
Reason: HP tank structural deficiencies.  (Off-line due to safety 

concerns).  Pump failure.  HP tank and pump were replaced.  
Project Phase: HP tank and pump were replaced. Scheduling disinfection of 

well and HP tank.
Expected Completion: May 2024 

N24 Don Julio
Capacity / Status: 1,100 gpm / Off-line 4/18/2024
Reason: HP tank inspection.
Contractor: Superior Tank Solutions
Project Phase: Investigation (waiting for report)
Expected Completion: June 2024

Planned Projects: 0 gpm 

None. See Section C for proactive projects. 

WATER QUALITY PROJECTS 

Listed below are current water quality investigation and remediation projects.  

 Wells in this category have significant uncertainty as to successful outcome. As 
such, the probability of inactivation is higher for wells in this category. 

 Wells in this category tend to require significant downhole modifications, 
chemical rehabilitation, and/or treatment plants.  As a result, in almost all cases 
these projects have a much greater duration. 

In-Progress Projects: 4,000 gpm 

N6A Palm
Capacity / Status: 1,700 gpm / Off-line 3/4/2020
Reason: Bacteriological
Project Phase: Operational testing to distribution system
Expected Completion: May 2024

N8 Field
Capacity / Status: 1,200 gpm / Off-line 5/2/2023
Reason: Bacteriological (initially) and Manganese (recently)
Project Phase: Bacteriological issue resolved. Additional water quality 

testing being scheduled.
Expected Completion: June 2024 
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N20 Cypress
Capacity / Status: 1,100 gpm / Off-line 8/23/2018
Reason: Manganese
Project Phase: Waiting for water quality testing results from packer testing.
Expected Completion: June 2024 (for well rehabilitation). Depending on the 

outcome of the rehabilitation, a decision will be made on the 
future course of action needed to return the well to service.

Planned Projects: 1,100 gpm 

N1 Evergreen
Capacity / Status: 1,100 gpm / Off-line 6/1/2021
Reason: PFAS
Contractor: Roadrunner
Project Phase: Project is well modification in an attempt to mitigate PFAS 

contamination.  Ready for construction; waiting for well 
contractor availability.

Tentative Start: August 2024
Expected Completion: October 2024

COMPLETED PROJECTS

Restored Capacity: 1,100 gpm 

56A Fairbairn/Karl
Capacity / Status: 2,000 gpm / Off-line 3/14/2024
Reason: Bacteriological
Resolution: Well disinfected

N23A Freeway
Capacity / Status: 1,100 gpm / Off-line 7/6/2023
Reason: Bacteriological
Resolution: Well disinfected and pump to waste piping modifications.

SOUTH SERVICE AREA 

Total Active capacity off-line for listed projects:  11,300 gpm / 16.2 MGD 
(10,700 gpm last report) 

Summary of Change in Well Status 
Well Status Capacity (gpm)
24 Becerra/Woodcrest Off (600)

Net Change in Capacity: (600)

CONDITION ASSESSMENT AND INVESTIGATIVE PROJECTS 

In-Progress Projects: 2,600 gpm 
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32A Eden/Root
Capacity / Status: 1,400 gpm / Off-line 12/21/2023
Reason: Failed treatment plant valve 
Project Phase: Replacement parts on order. Treatment vessel conditioning 

will be required after the parts are replaced.
Expected Completion: July 2024

47 Copenhagen/Arden
Capacity / Status: 1,200 gpm / Off-line 3/13/2024
Reason: Water hammer at well start-up 
Project Phase: Field testing for pump control valve operation
Expected Completion: June 2024

Planned Projects: 0 gpm 

None. See Section C for proactive projects. 

REPAIR AND REHABILITATION PROJECTS 

In-Progress Projects: 2,900 gpm 

20A Watt/Arden
Capacity / Status: 1,100 gpm / Off-line 3/1/2022
Reason: Electrical service failure.  Upgrading service from 3- to 4-

wire.   
Since this project has made significant progress towards 
upgrading to a 4-wire service, staff has decided to stay on 
this path rather than changing to a simpler 3-wire 
reactivation project.  This is in keeping with the strategy to 
proactively upgrade existing 3-wire services to 4-wire 
services when practical to do so.  

Project Phase: Demolition of obsolete electrical equipment.
Expected Completion: September 2024 (based on anticipated SMUD schedule)

35 Ulysses/Mercury
Capacity / Status: 800 gpm / Off-line 6/7/2023
Reason: Electrical service failure
Contractor: Frisch Engineering (design); KPM (construction)
Project Phase: Coordinating necessary repairs with SMUD for reactivation 

of service. 
Expected Completion: September 2024 
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41 Albatross/Iris
Capacity / Status: 500 gpm / Off-line 11/5/2018
Reason: Electrical power supply line replacement
Contractor: Auburn Constructors
Project Phase: Waiting for SMUD to connect secondary line to new power 

pole and install new meter. Operational testing to follow. 
Expected Completion: September 2024 (based on SMUD anticipated schedule to 

install meter, and Tesco’s subsequent field testing)

60 Whitney/Concetta
Capacity / Status: 500 gpm / Off-line 5/13/2021
Reason: Motor failure and pump worn out, and pump 

station improvements.
Project Phase: VFD wiring and PLC programming
Expected Completion: June 2024

Planned Projects: 1,300 gpm 

13 Calderwood/Marconi
Capacity / Status: 700 gpm / Off-line 7/16/2020
Reason: Capacity loss (pump breaking suction)
Project Phase: Condition assessment completed 

In work queue for well cleaning
Tentative Start: July 2024
Expected Completion: September 2024

70 Sierra/Blackmer 
Capacity / Status: 600 gpm / Off-line 5/10/2019
Reason: Capacity loss (total) 

Additionally, HP tank has structural deficiencies (off-line 
due to safety concerns)

Project Status: Well Condition Assessment completed.  Casing is intact but 
screens are totally plugged.  In work queue for well cleaning

Tentative Start: October 2024
Expected Completion: November 2024 (for cleaning)

HYDRO-PNEUMATIC TANK PROJECTS 

In-Progress Projects: 600 gpm 

24 Becerra/Woodcrest
Capacity / Status: 600 gpm / Off-line 4/10/2024
Reason: HP tank inspection.  
Contractor: Superior Tank Solutions
Project Phase: Scheduling HP tank disinfection
Expected Completion: May 2024
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Planned Projects: 1,100 gpm 

18 Riding Club/Ladino
Capacity / Status: 900 gpm / Off-line 4/8/2022
Reason: HP tank inspection (off-line due to safety concerns). 

Additionally, fluoride injection system is malfunctioning
Project Phase: Coordination with adjacent property owner (for easement 

access) to remove the HP Tank.
Tentative Start: July 2024
Expected Completion: November 2024

77 Larch/Northrop
Capacity / Status: 200 gpm / Off-line 12/21/2022
Reason: HP tank inspection (off-line due to safety concerns)
Project Phase: Pump testing to assess well condition
Tentative Start: July 2024 (for well condition assessment)
Expected Completion: August 2024

WATER QUALITY PROJECTS 

In-Progress Projects: 0 gpm 

None 

Planned Projects: 2,800 gpm 

46 Jonas/Sierra
Capacity / Status: 700 gpm / Off-line 7/16/2018
Reason: PFAS
Contractor: N/A. District Environmental Compliance staff is conducting 

the evaluation.
Project Phase: Evaluation for inactivation
Tentative Start: N/A
Expected Completion: June 2024

68 Northrop/Dornajo
Capacity / Status: 1,600 gpm / Off-line 11/3/2021
Reason: Entrained gas; manganese

Project Phase: 
Condition assessment completed.  In work queue for well 
cleaning.  

Tentative Start: October 2024
Expected Completion: November 2024
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69 Hilldale/Cooper
Capacity / Status: 500 gpm / Off-line 1/25/2017
Reason: Bacteriological
Contractor: N/A. District Environmental Compliance staff is conducting 

the evaluation.
Project Phase: Evaluation for inactivation    
Tentative Start: N/A
Expected Completion: June 2024

COMPLETED PROJECTS 

Restored Capacity: 1,900 gpm 

55A Stewart/Lynndale
Capacity / Status: 1,900 gpm / Off-line 2/26/2024
Reason: Failed main breaker and motor saver.
Contractor: A.I. Electric
Resolution: Replaced main breaker and motor saver.

C. PROACTIVE PROJECTS 

Listed below are on-line groundwater facilities selected for proactive work.  Wells in this 
category are showing signs of declining health or have not been evaluated in a significant 
amount of time.  When the project begins it is moved to the Condition Assessment or 
Investigative Projects in Section B. 

NORTH SERVICE AREA 

Planned Projects: 3,500 gpm 

56A Fairbairn/Karl
Capacity 2,000 gpm

N5 Hillsdale
Capacity 700 gpm

N22 River College
Capacity 800 gpm

SOUTH SERVICE AREA 

Planned Projects: 4,800 gpm 

25 Thor/Mercury
Capacity 400 gpm

33A Auburn/Norris
Capacity 2,100 gpm
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74 Riverwalk/NETP South
Capacity 2,300 gpm



Date: 

Agenda Item: 12 

May 20, 2024

Subject: Engineering Report

Staff Contact: Dana Dean, P.E., Engineering Manager 

Summarized below are Engineering Department activities. The report is separated into the 
following sections: A) Major Capital Improvement Program (CIP) Projects; B) Planning 
Documents; and C) Other Projects. 

A. MAJOR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM PROJECTS 

Below are major CIP projects consistent with the Board’s approved funding program.   

SUPPLY – NEW WELLS 
The table below shows the stages of the current projects.  

Note 1. The facility is fully operational and has been pumping into the distribution 
system since early December 2023.  A Notice of Completion was filed on 
May 6, 2024.   

Well 
78 

Butano / Cottage

DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION

Approximate Completion Change in 
Completion Status 
Since Last Report Design Construction 

Production Well 

Complete Complete n/a

Pump Station

Complete Complete n/a 

FACILITY COMMISSIONING

Start End Notes

Complete Complete See Note 1 
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Well 
80 

Walnut / Auburn

DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION

Approximate Completion Change in 
Completion Status 
Since Last Report Design Construction 

Production Well 

Complete Complete n/a

Pump Station

Complete July 2024  No Change 

FACILITY COMMISSIONING

Start End Notes

July 2024
August 2024 No Change 

Wells 
81, 82, and 83 

Antelope North / 
Poker

DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION

Approximate Completion Change in 
Completion Status 
Since Last Report Design Construction 

Production Wells 

Complete Complete  n/a 

Pump Station

Complete March 2026 No Change 

FACILITY COMMISSIONING

Start End Notes

March 2026 May 2026 No Change 

Well 
84 

Antelope / Don Julio

DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION

Approximate Completion Change in 
Completion Status 
Since Last Report Design Construction 

Production Well 

Complete Complete n/a

Pump Station

Complete July 2025 No Change 

FACILITY COMMISSIONING

Start End Notes

July 2025 September 2025 No Change 
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Progressive Design-Build Projects Milestones

Milestone Updates 

Wells 81, 82, and 83 
Foundation  On-track 
Underground  On-track.    
Paving  On-track 
Building  On-track 

Well 84 
Foundation Completed ahead of schedule.  
Underground  On-track 
Paving  On-track 
Building On-track 
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DISTRIBUTION 

MAIN REPLACEMENT PROGRAM 

The table below shows stages of the current major main replacement/improvement 
projects.   

Project 
Approximate Completion Change in 

Completion Status 
Since Last Report Design Construction 

Auburn Blvd. Bridge 
Main Replacement 

(See Note 1) 

March 
2024 

See Note 2 Construction schedule 
under review by City 

MBP Dudley 
Peacekeeper 

Main Replacement 

September 
2024

2025 No Change 

MBP Dudley Dudley 
Main Replacement 

 October 
2024

2025 No Change 

Note 1.  This is a City of Sacramento (City) project to replace an Auburn Boulevard 
bridge over Arcade Creek.  Design for the water line was contracted by the District 
with City’s consultant and is managed by the District.  Construction of the entire 
project, including the District’s water line, is contracted with and managed by the City.  
The District will be reimbursing the City for costs related to the water line replacement.   

Note 2.  Construction was originally planned to occur in 2024.  The City has informed 
the District that construction will likely occur in 2025, however, no schedule has been 
developed to date.   
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PLANNING DOCUMENTS 

The District has planning documents (e.g., Asset Management Plans (AMPs) and Master Plans 
(MPs)) for all of its infrastructure categories.  AMPs are generally updated on a staggered 
schedule and the update frequencies range from 4 to 6 years.   

The table below lists all of the District’s AMPs and MPs and their update status.   

Plan 
Last 

Update 
Next 

Update 
Comment 

Buildings and Structures AMP 2020 2026
Distribution Main AMP 2019 2024
Fleet AMP 2020 2025
Groundwater Well AMP 2020 2026
Meter AMP 2023 2028
Reservoir and Booster Pump Station AMP 2011 2025 Note 1
SCADA AMP 2021 2026
Transmission Main AMP 2020 2026 Note 2
Water System MP 2017 2025 Note 3
Urban Water Management Plan 2021 2026 Note 4

Note 1. Update planned to be initiated in CY2025.  

Note 2. Update planned to be initiated in CY2026 as recommended in AMP.  

Note 3. Update planned to be initiated in CY2025. 

Note 4. Update planned to be initiated in CY2025 to meet 2026 State deadline. 

B. OTHER PROJECTS 

Enterprise Reservoir and Booster Pump Station – Operational Upgrades 
This project will allow turnover of the reservoir during groundwater deliveries to City of 
Sacramento, and optimized energy efficiency during peak-hour demand periods.   

Based on information gained during field testing with the integrator and District Operations 
staff in October 2023, programming modifications were requested by the District to enhance 
operational flexibility.  As a result of the District’s request, estimated project completion was 
extended from October 2023 into March 2024. 

On the scheduled day for work in late April 2024, staff received notification from the integrator 
that they had not completed the programming modifications and cancelled the work.  The 
integrator has not provided a new schedule for this work.  Staff is in frequent communication 
with the integrator to move the project forward.   



Date: 

Agenda Item:  13 

May 20, 2024

Subject: Financial Report

Staff Contact: Jeffery S. Ott, Director of Finance and Administration

Summary: 

This staff report contains summarized Draft information on the District’s financial condition for 
the period ended March 31, 2024. 

 Draft - Financial Statements – March 2024 
 Draft - Budget to Actual Reports – March 2024 

DRAFT - Financial Statements  

These Financial Statements and certain other reports noted above are presented in Draft form and 
should not be relied upon for investment or other decision-making purposes. As December 31 is 
the District’s year-end for financial reporting purposes, amounts presented in this report will 
remain “Draft” until the external auditor’s financial audit is complete and the Board accepts the 
2023 audited annual comprehensive financial report (ACFR). The 2023 annual audit and the 
ACFR have been completed and are brought to the Board for approval at this Board meeting. 

DRAFT - Financial Statement Highlights – March 2024 

Financial Highlights from the Statements of Net Position and Statements of Revenues, Expenses, 
and Changes in Net Position are presented in the following tables. They are gleaned from the 
financial statements attached to this report. 

Statement of Net Position

Year-To-Date Year-To-Date Variance

3/31/2024 3/31/2023

LIQUIDITY $12,751,710.08 $14,436,585.37 ($1,684,875.29)

CUSTOMER RECEIVABLES 6,591,143.33 3,186,639.94 3,404,503.39

INVESTMENT 35,636,902.42 36,744,275.43 ($1,107,373.01)

CAPITAL ASSETS 337,850,287.21 322,994,897.30 $14,855,389.91

DEBT 49,020,536.54 54,718,519.42 ($5,697,982.88)

NET POSITION 327,206,247.24 305,439,566.42 $21,766,680.82
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Key information from this table indicates that combined the District’s cash balance is $1.7 million 
less, and investments are $1.1 million less than on March 31, 2023; long-term debt has decreased 
by $5.7 million; and net position has increased by $21.8 million in the last 12 months as the District 
continues to invest in capital infrastructure replacements while decreasing its outstanding debt. 
Cash balances are lower pending receipt of $4.9 million in grant funds and a $3.4 million increase 
in outstanding customer receivables. Investments are lower as a result of not reinvesting matured 
securities and holding in cash reserves (approximately $2.0 million) and a decrease in the negative 
fair market value of the investment portfolio (approximately $1.0 million).  

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Year-To-Date Year-To-Date Variance

3/31/2024 3/31/2023

Operating Revenue $11,927,849.92 $10,890,799.24 $1,037,050.68 

Operating Expense (5,162,163.43) (4,695,686.39) (466,477.04)

Other, Net (3,777,595.18) (3,211,892.31) (565,702.87)

NET INCOME 2,988,091.31 2,983,220.54 4,870.77 

Operating revenues increased $1.0 million, operating expenses increased $0.5 million and other, 
net expenses increased $0.5 million, year to date compared to the same period a year ago.  Increase 
in operating revenues primarily due to the 3% rate increase that occurred on January 1 of this year 
and the change in monthly billing method. Starting January 1, 2024, all accounts are billed on or 
around the 5th day of the month for the previous month instead of billing four billing cycles 
throughout the month. Previously, one billing cycle was billed in the following month. The year-
over-year operating expense increase of $0.5 million is primarily due to increased surface water 
purchases over last year, overall cost increases, and timing differences. Other, net expenses 
increased $0.5 million net from 2023 primarily related to the net decrease in investment income 
and a decrease in unrealized gains of the investment portfolio from the previous year. 

Budgets: 

Budget Item 
 Actual Amount

YTD  

 Adjusted Budget 
Amount 

YTD  
 Variance  

YTD  

Revenues and Sources of Funds 12,215,786 12,123,850 91,936 

Operations and Maintenance 5,162,183 5,793,905 (631,721)

Capital Expenditures * 2,763,481 8,169,361 (5,405,880)

Debt Service - Interest 495,998 496,250 (252)
 *Capital budget includes rollover budget from previous years.  

The District’s revenues for March 2024 came in more than the approved budget by $0.1 million 
primarily related to the increase in wheeling water revenue due to the availability of PCWA’s 
surface water to California American Water.  
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The District’s operating and maintenance expenditures as of March 31, 2024, came in less than 
the approved budget by $0.6 million. Most of this positive variance is due to timing differences. 
The District’s Capital Improvement Program budget for 2024 is $25.5 million plus $3.4 million in 
rollover funds from previous years’ budgets for a total of $28.9 million. As of March 31, 2024, 
$2.7 million has been spent while an additional $19.6 million is under commitment.  Expenditures 
continue to be primarily in new well construction, well rehabilitation, and distribution system 
replacements. 

The District’s Operating Capital Program budget for 2024 is $3.1 million plus $0.7 million in 
rollover funds from previous years’ budgets for a total of $3.8 million.  As of March 31, 2024, 
$111,111 has been spent while an additional $1.0 million is under commitment.  

Scheduled 2024 principal payments of $5.0 million are not due until the end of October 2024. 
Total principal outstanding as of March 31, 2024, is $49.2 million. The District’s debt service 
budget for 2024 is $7.0 million consisting of $5.0 million for principal and $2.0 for interest 
payments. Interest payments are in line with the 2024 budget.   

Attachments: 
1. Draft Financial Statements – March 31, 2024 
2. Draft Budget to Actual Reports – March 31, 2024 
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Month End Month End
3/31/2024 3/31/2023

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
     Cash and cash equivalents $12,736,085.94 $14,434,236.50 
     Restricted Cash and cash equivalents                     15,624.14                      2,348.87 
     Accounts receivable, net of allowance for uncollectible accounts                 6,591,143.33               3,186,639.94 
     Interest receivable                    177,183.40                  187,287.84 
     Grants receivables                 4,854,201.17 
     Other receivables               1,793,188.29 
     Inventory                    972,207.53                  841,857.47 
     Prepaid expenses and other assets                    966,950.47                  878,088.69 
               TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS               26,313,395.98             21,323,647.60 

NONCURRENT ASSETS
     Investments               35,636,902.42             36,744,275.43 
               TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS               35,636,902.42             36,744,275.43 

     Property, plant and equipment 578,464,797.18 550,520,378.08 
     Accumulated depreciation (240,614,509.97) (227,525,480.78)
               TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS 337,850,287.21 322,994,897.30 
TOTAL ASSETS             399,800,585.61            381,062,820.33 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
     Deferred amount on long-term debt refunding                 2,931,320.67               3,889,799.07 
     Pension contribution subsequent to measurement date                 4,833,965.00               4,842,834.00 
     Other post-employment benefits                 1,124,093.00               1,300,500.00 
     Deferred outflow of Asset Obligation                 1,258,538.87                  981,339.87 

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES             409,948,503.15            392,077,293.27 

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES
     Current portion of long-term debt and capital leases                 5,010,000.00               4,910,000.00 
     Current portion of Compensated Absences                 1,200,000.00               1,000,000.00 
     Accounts payable                 2,210,389.36                  740,527.85 
     Accrued interest                    826,663.35                  868,705.06 
     Deferred revenue and other liabilities                 3,727,611.10               4,321,457.65 
     Accrued expenses                    527,673.06                  212,205.19 
               TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 13,502,336.87 12,052,895.75 

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
     Long-term debt               44,010,536.54             49,808,519.42 
     Compensated absences                    160,428.50                  350,106.68 
     Net pension liability               13,884,790.00             12,721,219.00 
     Net other post-employment benefits liability                 3,077,711.00               3,139,340.00 
     Asset Retirement Obligation                 5,454,858.00               5,133,984.00 
               TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 66,588,324.04 71,153,169.10 
TOTAL LIABILITIES               80,090,660.91             83,206,064.85 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
     Employee pensions                    409,458.00                  705,650.00 
     Other post-employment benefits                 2,242,137.00               2,726,012.00 

NET POSITION
     Invested in capital assets, net of related debt             289,215,352.54            270,541,612.06 
     Restricted                     15,624.14                      2,358.84 
     Unrestricted               37,975,270.56             34,895,595.52 
TOTAL NET POSITION             327,206,247.24            305,439,566.42 
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND NET POSITION             409,948,503.15            392,077,293.27 

Sacramento Suburban Water District
Statements of Net Position

As Of

DRAFT

Attachment 1
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Sacramento Suburban Water District

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Period Ended

Year-To-Date Year-To-Date
3/31/2024 3/31/2023

OPERATING REVENUES
     Water consumption sales  $            2,243,911.67  $     2,286,779.76 
     Water service charge                9,294,760.83         8,409,656.29 
     Wheeling water charge                   174,562.49                   828.51 
     Other charges for services                   214,614.93            193,534.68 

          TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES              11,927,849.92       10,890,799.24 

OPERATING EXPENSES
     Source of supply                   451,234.84            183,945.03 
     Pumping                1,103,766.73         1,094,617.50 
     Transmission and distribution                   972,817.78         1,155,797.87 
     Water conservation                   146,363.09            124,452.52 
     Customer accounts                   390,074.44            310,683.02 
     Administrative and general                2,097,906.55         1,826,190.45 

          TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES                5,162,163.43         4,695,686.39 
          Operating income before depreciation                6,765,686.49         6,195,112.85 
            Depreciation and amortization              (3,509,463.85)       (3,435,941.73)

OPERATING INCOME                3,256,222.64         2,759,171.12 

NON-OPERATING REV. (EXP.)
     Rental income                     70,786.57              81,124.51 
     Interest and investment income                   149,878.75            689,993.29 
     Interest expense and debt related costs                 (538,621.89)          (563,846.88)
     Other non-operating revenues                     49,935.09              16,769.45 
     Other non-operating expenses                        (109.85)                       9.05 

          NON-OPERATING REV. (EXP.)                 (268,131.33)            224,049.42 

NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CAPITAL                2,988,091.31         2,983,220.54 

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS                                 -                            -   

CHANGE IN NET POSITION                2,988,091.31         2,983,220.54 

Net position at beginning of year            324,218,155.93     302,456,345.88 

NET POSITION AT END OF PERIOD  $        327,206,247.24  $ 305,439,566.42 

DRAFT
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Draft - Budget to Actual Reports 
 March 31, 2024 
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Sacramento Suburban Water District

Budget to Actual As Of

Period Ended

2024
Actual Budget Variance Annual Budget

REVENUES

          Water consumption sales $2,243,911.67 $2,355,000.00 ($111,088.33) $16,582,000.00 

          Water service charge 9,294,760.83 9,282,999.99 11,760.84 37,132,000.00 

          Wheeling water charge 174,562.49 93,750.00 80,812.49 375,000.00 

          Other charges for services 214,614.93 210,000.00 4,614.93 993,000.00 

          Capacity fees 1,000,000.00 

          Interest and investment income 167,214.43 132,000.00 35,214.43 530,000.00 

          Rental & other income 120,721.66 50,100.00 70,621.66 200,000.00 

          Grant income 14,710,000.00 

 TOTAL REVENUES 12,215,786.01 12,123,849.99 91,936.02 71,522,000.00 

EXPENSES

          Board of Directors 20,686.95 45,208.17 24,521.22 150,832.68 

          Administrative 713,894.08 741,793.49 27,899.41 2,803,219.96 

          Finance 312,700.89 339,053.34 26,352.45 1,361,285.19 

          Customer Services 351,288.29 379,456.65 28,168.36 1,712,226.60 

          Field Operations 134,069.43 152,049.51 17,980.08 608,206.16 

          Production 1,398,354.31 1,461,886.82 63,532.51 8,907,861.08 

          Environmental Compliance 156,647.26 210,851.14 54,203.88 1,100,784.96 

          Distribution 539,871.74 600,788.26 60,916.52 2,979,182.48 

          Field Services 298,876.61 367,116.74 68,240.13 1,682,285.01 

          Maintenance 193,313.38 196,829.91 3,516.53 787,319.64 

          Water Conservation 146,363.09 225,892.96 79,529.87 865,822.84 

          Engineering 341,905.66 381,375.51 39,469.85 1,770,855.32 

          GIS/CAD 108,452.87 124,211.20 15,758.33 499,532.80 

          Human Resources 95,594.62 119,889.78 24,295.16 479,574.12 

          Information Technology 311,358.10 378,390.30 67,032.20 1,513,561.16 

          Community Outreach 38,786.15 69,111.00 30,324.85 276,450.00 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 5,162,163.43 5,793,904.78 631,741.35 27,499,000.00 

3/31/2024 - YTD

DRAFT
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Project Name Original Budget Adjusted Budget

Roll-Over

From Prior

Year Budget

Total Budget 

Available

Current Month 

Expenditures

Expenditures Year-

To-Date

Committed Year-

To-Date

Remaining 

Balance

CIP-Well Rehad/Pump St Improv $4,723,000.00 $4,621,000.00 $414,274.29 $5,035,274.29 $240,705.99 $276,879.63 $2,867,004.91 $1,891,389.75

CIP-SCADA/Communication Improv - $100,000.00 $156,976.56 $256,976.56 $712.45 $90,885.76 $138,106.34 $27,984.46

CIP-Well New Construction $15,302,000.00 $15,302,000.00 $2,577,587.09 $17,879,587.09 $164,336.60 $2,043,072.04 $15,631,112.25 $205,402.80

CIP-Trans & Dist Improvements $1,650,000.00 $1,622,000.00 $203,431.02 $1,825,431.02 $73,643.09 $117,534.27 $300,456.81 $1,407,439.94

CIP-Reservoir/Tank Improv $980,000.00 $980,000.00 $101,983.63 $1,081,983.63 $2,698.51 $7,570.51 $412,337.58 $662,075.54

CIP-Corrosion Control $120,000.00 $120,000.00 - $120,000.00 - - - $120,000.00

CIP-Valve/Hydrant/Service Repl $700,000.00 $680,000.00 - $680,000.00 $34,827.88 $83,788.88 $88,731.00 $507,480.12

CIP-Large Meter Replacement $85,000.00 $97,000.00 - $97,000.00 - $5,700.00 $80,126.00 $11,174.00

CIP-Meter Replacement PM $300,000.00 $300,000.00 - $300,000.00 $12,162.56 $26,572.96 $10,000.00 $263,427.04

CIP-Special Projects $95,000.00 $95,000.00 $778.81 $95,778.81 - - $54,403.57 $41,375.24

CIP-Water Related Street Imrpv $1,500,000.00 $1,500,000.00 - $1,500,000.00 $365.75 $365.75 $22,846.50 $1,476,787.75

$25,455,000.00 $25,417,000.00 $3,455,031.40 $28,872,031.40 $529,452.83 $2,652,369.80 $19,605,124.96 $6,614,536.64

OCP - Fleet & Facilities $60,000.00 $75,000.00 $17,000.00 $92,000.00 - - $60,071.06 $31,928.94

OCP - Information Technology $1,487,000.00 $1,387,000.00 $7,910.50 $1,394,910.50 $2,775.00 $2,775.00 $27,089.50 $1,365,046.00

OCP - Maintenance $606,000.00 $591,000.00 $130,000.00 $721,000.00 $69,907.50 $69,907.50 $5,151.50 $645,941.00

OCP - Operations $902,000.00 $1,030,000.00 $217,731.33 $1,247,731.33 $12,210.73 $38,428.82 $569,132.69 $640,169.82

OCP - Property Acquisition - $10,000.00 $339,771.03 $349,771.03 - - $339,232.03 $10,539.00

$3,055,000.00 $3,093,000.00 $712,412.86 $3,805,412.86 $84,893.23 $111,111.32 $1,000,676.78 $2,693,624.76

$28,510,000.00 $28,510,000.00 $4,167,444.26 $32,677,444.26 $614,346.06 $2,763,481.12 $20,605,801.74 $9,308,161.40

Sacramento Suburban Water District
Capital Budget

3/31/2024

DRAFT
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                   Agenda Item: 14 

 
This report describes significant District Activities and milestones over the past month. Included 
in this report are: 
 
1.   Water Operations Monthly Activity and Exceptions Report 

  This shows the various types and number of activities that are in the Operations Department.   
 
2.   District Claims Update Report 

This summarizes claims received by the District. Under the District’s Claims Processing 
Policy, the Board of Directors grants the General Manager, or his or her designee, the authority 
to review and to approve or reject a claim. The processing of all claims will be conducted in 
accordance with the Government Claims Act and Ordinance 02-02, including the time limits 
on claims processing and requirements for presenting claims. All claims will be presented as 
information to the Board of Directors at a regularly scheduled Board Meeting. 

 
3.   Customer Service Monthly Activity Report 
      This shows the total number of Customer Service phone calls received. 

 
4. Community Outreach Report 

  This provides a copy of the monthly bill insert. 
  

 
Date: May 20, 2024 
  
Subject: District Activity Report 
  
Staff Contact: Todd Artrip, Operations Manager 
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1. Water Operations Monthly Activity Report 
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2. District Claims Update Report 

This summarizes claims received by the District.  Under the District’s Claims Processing 
Policy, the Board of Directors grants the General Manager, or his or her designee, the authority 
to review and to approve or reject a claim. The processing of all claims will be conducted in 
accordance with the Government Claims Act and Ordinance 02-02, including the time limits 
on claims processing and requirements for presenting claims. All claims will be presented as 
information to the Board of Directors at a regularly scheduled Board Meeting. 
 
CLAIMS UNDER REVIEW/INVESTIGATION 
 
No new claims filed in April. 

 
3. Customer Service Monthly Activity Report 

 
 

 

4. Community Outreach Report 

Bill Insert 

A sample of the June 2024 Bill Insert is shown below. 
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Agenda Item: 15 

Date: May 20, 2024

Subject: Upcoming Water Industry Meetings/Conferences

Staff Contact: Heather Hernandez-Fort, Executive Assistant to the General Manager

Note that the Sacramento Suburban Water District Board of Directors adopted Policy PL – BOD 
003 governing Director compensation and expense reimbursement. Section 200.20(g) states that 
Directors may receive a meeting stipend for “meetings, water industry events or office visits of a 
substantial duration concerning substantive District business as requested and approved for 
payment by the General Manager or the Board President…” Information provided on upcoming 
water industry events, or regularly scheduled meetings of other water districts, does not imply 
that approval for a compensable meeting or reimbursement of expenses are triggered. 

Below is a list of upcoming water industry meetings/conferences: 

Upcoming Meetings: 

1. SGA Board Meeting 
June 13, 2024 
In-Person for voting Board of Directors, virtual option for all public 
https://www.sgah2o.org/meetings/board-meetings/

2. RWA Board Meeting 
July 11, 2024 
In-Person for voting Board of Directors, virtual option for all public 
https://rwah2o.org/meetings/board-meetings/

3. SGA Board Meeting 
August 8, 2024 
In-Person for voting Board of Directors, virtual option for all public 
https://www.sgah2o.org/meetings/board-meetings/

4. RWA Board Meeting 
September 12, 2024 
In-Person for voting Board of Directors, virtual option for all public 
https://rwah2o.org/meetings/board-meetings/
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5. SGA Board Meeting 
October 10, 2024 
In-Person for voting Board of Directors, virtual option for all public 
https://www.sgah2o.org/meetings/board-meetings/

6. RWA Board Meeting 
November 14, 2024 
In-Person for voting Board of Directors, virtual option for all public 
https://rwah2o.org/meetings/board-meetings/

7. SGA Board Meeting 
December 12, 2024 
In-Person for voting Board of Directors, virtual option for all public 
https://www.sgah2o.org/meetings/board-meetings/

Upcoming Conferences: 

8. ACE24  
June 10-13, 2024 
Anaheim, CA 
https://www.awwa.org/ace/

9. CSDA Annual Conference & Exhibitor Showcase 
September 9-12, 2024 
Indian Wells, CA  
https://www.csda.net/annualconference/home?_ga=2.61373484.1833878149.1701801111
-843909300.1701801111

10. AWWA Fall Conference  
October 21-24, 2024 
Reno, NV 
https://ca-nv-awwa.org/canv/events

11. ACWA 2024 Fall Conference & Exhibition 
December 3-5, 2024 
Palm Desert, CA 
https://www.acwa.com/events/page/3/

Below is a partial list of local Water Purveyors Regular Board Meeting information 
and websites: 

 Carmichael Water District:  http://carmichaelwd.org/ - Every 3rd Tuesday of the month at 
6:00 p.m. 
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 Citrus Heights Water District:  http://chwd.org/ - Every 3rd Wednesday of the month at 
6:30 p.m. 

 Del Paso Manor Water District:  https://www.delpasomanorwd.org/  -  Every 1st and 3rd

Monday of the month at 6:00 p.m. 

 El Dorado County Water Agency - http://www.edlafco.us/ - Every 2nd Wednesday of the 
month at 10:00 a.m. 

 El Dorado Irrigation District - http://www.eid.org/  - Every 2nd and 4th Mondays of the 
month at 9:00 a.m. 

 Fair Oaks Water District: http://www.fowd.com/ - Every 3rd Monday of the month at 6:30 
p.m. 

 Natomas Mutual Water Company - http://natomaswater.com/ - Every 2nd Tuesday of the 
month at 9:00 a.m. 

 Orange Vale Water Company - https://orangevalewater.com/ - Every 1st Tuesday of the 
month at 4:00 p.m. 

 Placer County Water Agency: https://pcwa.net/ - Every 1st and 3rd Thursdays of the 
month at 2:00 p.m. 

 Rio Linda/Elverta Community Water District:  http://www.rlecwd.com/ - Every 3rd

Monday of the month at 6:30 p.m. 

 San Juan Water District: http://www.sjwd.org/ - Every 4th Wednesday of the month at 
6:00 p.m. 



Date: 

Agenda Item:  16. a. 

May 20, 2024

Subject: Upcoming Policy Review – Director Sexual Harassment and Abusive 
Conduct Prevention Training Policy (PL – BOD 005)

Staff Contact: Matt Underwood, Assistant General Manager

The Director Sexual Harassment and Abusive Conduct Prevention Training Policy (PL – BOD 
005) (Policy) is scheduled for review.  The Policy was adopted by the Board on June 16, 2008, 
and was last reviewed by the Board with changes on July 18, 2022.  

This Policy update was reviewed by legal counsel.  

Staff and legal counsel are recommending a title change to the Policy to include “abusive conduct” 
which is required as part of the training under 2 C.C.R subds. (c)(2), as well as clerical and 
clarification changes throughout: 

Section 100.00: Clarification language was added regarding the purpose of the Policy. 

Section 200.00: Clarification language was added regarding training requirements. 

Section 300.00: Clarification language was added regarding reporting. 

Section 400.00: Clarification language was added regarding the required training. 

The Policy is scheduled for Board review and approval at the June 17, 2024, regular Board 
meeting. If a Director desires to comment on the Policy, staff requests that they do so by May 27, 
2024.  If no comment is received, this Policy will be placed as a Consent Item on the June 2024 
regular Board meeting agenda. 

Both a redlined and clean version of the Policy are attached to this report for reference 
(Attachments 1 and 2, respectively).  

Attachments: 
1) Director Sexual Harassment and Abusive Conduct Prevention Training Policy (PL – BOD 

005) – redline 
2) Director Sexual Harassment and Abusive Conduct Prevention Training Policy (PL – BOD 

005) – clean 
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Sacramento Suburban Water District 

Director Sexual Harassment and Abusive Conduct Prevention Training Policy 

Adopted:  June 16, 2008 
Approved with changes on:  July 18, 2022June 17, 2024

______________________________________________________________________________ 

100.00 Purpose of the Policy 

Under California law and regulations established by the Civil Rights Council under 
the California Fair Employment and Housing Council (“FEH Council”) under the 
Department of Fair Employment and Housing (“DFEH”), Civil Rights Department 
(CRD), Directors are required to receive at least two hours of effective interactive 
training and education regarding sexual harassment prevention upon taking office and 
every two years thereafter. The sexual harassment and abusive conduct prevention 
training and education required by this policy is intended to establish a minimum 
threshold. Directors may participate in additional training as they deem appropriate. 
(Government (Gov’t) Code sections 53237.1 and 12950.1(a).) 

200.00 Harassment Prevention Training Requirement 

Within six months after a Director assumes office, he or shethey must attend at least 
two hours of classroom or other effective interactive training and education regarding 
sexual harassment and abusive conduct prevention in the workplace. After meeting 
the initial training requirement, each Director must attend sexual harassment and 
abusive conduct prevention training and education at least once every two years for as 
long as the Director remains in office. (Gov’t Code sections 53237.1(b) & 
12950.1(a); 2 C.C.R, section 11024, subds. (b)(1) & (b)(4).) 

The education and training must include information and guidance regarding the 
definition, prohibition against, prevention, and correction of sexual harassment and 
abusive conduct, and the remedies available to victims in employment. The training 
shall include practical examples aimed at instructing the Director in the response to 
sexual harassment, discrimination, retaliation, and prevention of abusive conduct. The 
training shall also be inclusive of preventing harassment based on sex, gender, gender 
identity, gender expression, and sexual orientation, and other definitions contained in 
Government Code section 12940(a);and shall include, but not be limited to, all 
subjects described in Gov’t Code sections 53237.1(d) and 12950.1, subds. (a), (b), 
and (c), and 2 C.C.R. section 11024, subd. (c)(2).)   

A Director is not required to receive the training in two consecutive hours as long as 
the applicable total hourly requirement is met with the minimum duration of a 
training segment no less than half an hour, but the first required training must be 
completed within the six-month period and all of each subsequent training must be 
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completed within the same calendar year.  (Gov’t Code sections 12950.1(a) and 
53237.1(b); 2 C.C.R, section 11024, subd. (b)(7).) 

Training may be received by any of the following methods: (1) “classroom training
that is conducted,”  in-person instruction, (2) “e-learning that is g,” individualized, 
interactive, and computer-based training,containing content created by a qualified 
trainer who shall be available to answer questions and provide guidance within two 
business days, or (3) “webinar or other “interactive” training consisting of an internet-
based seminar whose content is created and taught by a qualified trainer and 
transmitted digitally in real time and of which the District will maintain a copy of all 
associated materials for two years,” participation in an internet-based interactive 
seminar conducted in real time. (Gov’t Code section 53237.1(e); 2 C.C.R, section 
11024, subdivision (a)(2).) The required training and education must be presented by 
trainers or educators with knowledge and expertise in the prevention of abusive 
conduct, harassment, discrimination, and retaliation.  (Gov’t Code sections 
53237.1(d) and 12950.1(a), and 2 C.C.R, section 11024, subd. (a)(10).) 

A Director who receives supervisor sexual harassment and abusive conduct 
prevention training as a result of his/her  servicetheir service with an employer or 
another agency is not required to receive separate training because of his or hertheir
service with the District.  However, such Director must: (1) receive, read, and 
acknowledge receipt in writing of the District’s anti-harassment policy; and (2) 
submit to the Executive Assistant to the General Manager a duplicate copy of the 
proof of his/hertheir participation in the mandated training that was obtained on 
behalf of the Director’s employer or other agency.  (Gov’t Code sections 53237.1(f) 
and (h) & 53237.2; 2 C.C.R, section 11024, subd. (b)(6).) 

300.00 Reporting 

The Executive Assistant to the General Manager will inform Directors of available 
harassment and abusive conduct prevention training opportunities, including any 
training opportunities offered at District facilities or through District resources for 
supervisors subject to the training requirement. Each Director must obtain proof of 
participation after completion of the mandated periodic training and submit proof of 
completion of such training to the Executive Assistant to the General Manager within 
thirty days of completing any training component.  Each Director’s personnel file 
shall include records of the dates of participation in sexual harassment and abusive 
conduct prevention training and the person or entity providing the training.  (Gov’t 
Code sections 53237.1(f) and (g) & 53237.2; 2 C.C.R, section 11024, subd. (b)(2).) 
All sexual harassment prevention policies and attendance records are public records 
subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act and must be retained by 
the District for a minimum of five years after a Director receives the training. (Gov’t 
Code section 53237.2(b).)   

400.00 Penalties for Policy Violation  
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It is the responsibility of each Director to ensure his/her/theirtheir compliance with 
this policy, including choosing the sexual harassment and abusive conduct prevention 
training courses and securing/ and submitting the training completion documentation 
to the Executive Assistant to the General Manager as required in Article 300.00.  
While failure to comply with this policy does not impose strict liability on the District 
or a non-complying Director in any legal action involving a sexual harassment or 
abusive conduct claim, such non-compliance can be used as evidence against the 
District and any non-complying Director in the prosecution of such claims.  (Gov’t 
Code sections 53237.5 and 12950.1(c).) 

A violation of this policy may be addressed by the use of such remedies as are 
available by law to the District, including but not limited to: (a) adoption of a 
resolution expressing disapproval of the conduct of a Director who has violated this 
policy, or (b) injunctive relief. 

500.00 Policy Review 

This policy shall be periodically reviewed by the Board of Directors in accordance 
with its established policy review schedule. 
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Sacramento Suburban Water District 

Director Sexual Harassment and Abusive Conduct Prevention Training Policy 

Adopted:  June 16, 2008 
Approved with changes on:  June 17, 2024 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

100.00 Purpose of the Policy 

Under California law and regulations established by the Civil Rights Council under 
the Civil Rights Department (CRD), Directors are required to receive at least two 
hours of effective interactive training and education regarding sexual harassment 
prevention upon taking office and every two years thereafter. The sexual harassment 
and abusive conduct prevention training and education required by this policy is 
intended to establish a minimum threshold. Directors may participate in additional 
training as they deem appropriate. (Government (Gov’t) Code sections 53237.1 and 
12950.1(a).) 

200.00 Harassment Prevention Training Requirement 

Within six months after a Director assumes office, they must attend at least two hours 
of classroom or other effective interactive training and education regarding sexual 
harassment and abusive conduct prevention in the workplace. After meeting the initial 
training requirement, each Director must attend sexual harassment and abusive 
conduct prevention training and education at least once every two years for as long as 
the Director remains in office. (Gov’t Code sections 53237.1(b) & 12950.1(a); 2 
C.C.R, section 11024, subds. (b)(1) & (b)(4).) 

The education and training must include information and guidance regarding the 
definition, prohibition against, prevention, and correction of sexual harassment and 
abusive conduct, and the remedies available to victims in employment. The training 
shall include practical examples aimed at instructing the Director in the response to 
sexual harassment, discrimination, retaliation, and prevention of abusive conduct. The 
training shall also be inclusive of preventing harassment based on sex, gender, gender 
identity, gender expression, and sexual orientation, and other definitions contained in 
Government Code section 12940(a);and shall include, but not be limited to, all 
subjects described in Gov’t Code sections 53237.1(d) and 12950.1, subds. (a), (b), 
and (c), and 2 C.C.R. section 11024, subd. (c).)   

A Director is not required to receive the training in two consecutive hours as long as 
the applicable total hourly requirement is met with the minimum duration of a 
training segment no less than half an hour, but the first required training must be 
completed within the six-month period and all of each subsequent training must be 
completed within the same calendar year.  (Gov’t Code sections 12950.1(a) and 
53237.1(b); 2 C.C.R, section 11024, subd. (b)(7).) 
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Training may be received by any of the following methods: (1) classroom training 
that is conducted in-person (2) e-learning that is individualized, interactive, and 
computer-based containing content created by a qualified trainer who shall be 
available to answer questions and provide guidance within two business days, (3) 
webinar or other “interactive” training consisting of an internet-based seminar whose 
content is created and taught by a qualified trainer and transmitted digitally in real 
time and of which the District will maintain a copy of all associated materials for two 
years(Gov’t Code section 53237.1(e); 2 C.C.R, section 11024, subdivision (a)(2).) 
The required training and education must be presented by trainers or educators with 
knowledge and expertise in the prevention of abusive conduct, harassment, 
discrimination, and retaliation.  (Gov’t Code sections 53237.1(d) and 12950.1(a), and 
2 C.C.R, section 11024, subd. (a)(10).) 

A Director who receives supervisor sexual harassment and abusive conduct 
prevention training as a result of  their service with an employer or another agency is 
not required to receive separate training because of their service with the District.  
However, such Director must: (1) receive, read, and acknowledge receipt in writing 
of the District’s anti-harassment policy; and (2) submit to the Executive Assistant to 
the General Manager a duplicate copy of the proof of their participation in the 
mandated training that was obtained on behalf of the Director’s employer or other 
agency.  (Gov’t Code sections 53237.1(f) and (h) & 53237.2; 2 C.C.R, section 11024, 
subd. (b)(6).) 

300.00 Reporting 

The Executive Assistant to the General Manager will inform Directors of available 
harassment and abusive conduct prevention training opportunities, including any 
training opportunities offered at District facilities or through District resources for 
supervisors subject to the training requirement. Each Director must obtain proof of 
participation after completion of the mandated periodic training and submit proof of 
completion of such training to the Executive Assistant to the General Manager within 
thirty days of completing any training component.  Each Director’s personnel file 
shall include records of the dates of participation in sexual harassment and abusive 
conduct prevention training and the person or entity providing the training.  (Gov’t 
Code sections 53237.1(f) and (g) & 53237.2; 2 C.C.R, section 11024, subd. (b)(2).) 
All sexual harassment prevention policies and attendance records are public records 
subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act and must be retained by 
the District for a minimum of five years after a Director receives the training. (Gov’t 
Code section 53237.2(b).)   

400.00 Penalties for Policy Violation  

It is the responsibility of each Director to ensure their compliance with this policy, 
including choosing sexual harassment and abusive conduct prevention training 
courses and securing/submitting the training completion documentation to the 
Executive Assistant to the General Manager as required in Article 300.00.  While 
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failure to comply with this policy does not impose strict liability on the District or a 
non-complying Director in any legal action involving a sexual harassment or abusive 
conduct claim, such non-compliance can be used as evidence against the District and 
any non-complying Director in the prosecution of such claims.  (Gov’t Code sections 
53237.5 and 12950.1(c).) 

A violation of this policy may be addressed by the use of such remedies as are 
available by law to the District, including but not limited to: (a) adoption of a 
resolution expressing disapproval of the conduct of a Director who has violated this 
policy, or (b) injunctive relief. 

500.00 Policy Review 

This policy shall be periodically reviewed by the Board of Directors in accordance 
with its established policy review schedule. 



Date: 

Agenda Item:  16. b.   

May 20, 2024

Subject: Upcoming Policy Review – Disposing of Surplus District Real Property, 
Vehicles, and Large Equipment and Other Personal Property Policy 
(PL – Adm 003) 

Staff Contact: Matt Underwood, Assistant General Manager

This Policy update was reviewed by legal counsel.  

Staff and legal counsel are recommending the changes below. 

Section 200 Disposal of Real Property:  
Language was added to comply with the requirements of the Surplus Land Act and the 
California Department of Housing and Community Development Guidelines. 

Section 300 Relinquishment of District Interest in Easements:  
Language was added to comply with the requirements of the Surplus Land Act and the 
California Department of Housing and Community Development Guidelines. 

Section 400 Disposal of Vehicles and Large Equipment:  
Minor editorial changes were made. 

Section 400.10 Guidelines Concerning the Sale of Surplus Vehicles and Large 
Equipment:  
Minor editorial changes were made. 

The Policy is scheduled for Board review and approval at the June 17, 2024, regular Board 
meeting. If a Director desires to comment on the Policy, staff requests that they do so by May 27, 
2024.  If no comment is received, this Policy will be placed as a Consent Item on the June 2024 
regular Board meeting agenda. 

Both a redlined and clean version of the Policy are attached to this report for reference 
(Attachments 1 and 2, respectively).  

The  Disposing  of  Surplus  District  Real  Property,  Vehicles,  and  Large  Equipment  and  Other 
Personal  Property  Policy  (PL  –  Adm  003)  (Policy)  is  scheduled  for  review.    The  Policy  was 
adopted by the Board on July 21, 2003, and last reviewed by the Board with changes on April 18, 
2022. 



Upcoming Policy Review – Disposing of Surplus District Real Property, Vehicles, and Large 
Equipment and Other Personal Property Policy (PL – Adm 003)  
May 20, 2024 
Page 2 of 2 

Attachments:   
1. Disposing of Surplus District Real Property, Vehicles, and Large Equipment and Other 

Personal Property Policy (PL – Adm 003) redline 
2. Disposing of Surplus District Real Property, Vehicles, and Large Equipment and Other 

Personal Property Policy (PL – Adm 003) clean 
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Sacramento Suburban Water District 

Disposing of Surplus District Real Property, Vehicles, and Large Equipment 
and Other Personal Property Policy 

Adopted:  July 21, 2003 
Approved with Changes on April 18, 2022June 17, 2024

______________________________________________________________________________ 

100.00 Purpose of the Policy 

The primary purpose of this policy is to allow management staff to determine if a 
parcel of real property, easement, vehicles, or large equipment or other personal 
property is no longer needed for daily, emergency, or future operations.  A staff 
report is generated to document why a parcel of real property, easement, vehicles, or 
large equipment or other District property should not be retained.   

100.10 Definitions 

Real Property – Any parcel of land owned by the District. 

Easement – An interest in another’s real property that permits the District to make 
limited use of that real property for a District purpose. 

Vehicles and Large Equipment – Utility trucks, dump trucks, tractors, backhoes, 
forklifts, generators, and other significant equipment used in District operations.   

Personal Property – Small equipment (cut-off saws, drills, etc.), computer 
equipment (monitors, printers, etc.), office furniture. 

200.00       Disposal of Real Property

1. District management staff determines if a parcel of real property no longer meets 
the needs of daily, emergency, or future operations, and staff generates a report is 
generated to document why the parcel should not be disposed ofretained. 

2. District management staff determines if a parcel is either “surplus land” falling 
within the notice and offer procedures provided in the Surplus Land Act (“SLA”), 
Government Code sections 54220 through 54234, as it may be amended from 
time to time, or is “exempt surplus land” which is eligible to be disposed of with 
complying with the SLA’s notice and offer procedures. Staff shall prepare a 
resolution with appropriate findings for presentation at an upcoming regular 
noticed public meeting for the Board to declare the surplus real property either 
“surplus land” or “exempt surplus land” and a staff report describing the process 
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to be followed to dispose of the land depending on the determination of its status. 
The process shall comply with the requirements of the SLA and the California 
Department of Housing and Community Development’s (“HCD”) SLA 
Guidelines (“Guidelines”).  If the District must follow the SLA’s statutory notice 
and offer procedures before selling surplus real property, management staff shall 
obtain a qualified appraisal of the parcel. Management staff shall consult with 
legal counsel and HCD as necessary to determine if the proposed surplus land is 
exempt or non-exempt.District management staff determines if a parcel falls 
within the notice and offer procedures provided in Government Code sections 
54220 through 54232, as they may be amended from time to time.  If the statutory 
notice and offer procedures must be followed, the District must obtain a qualified 
appraisal of the parcel and offer the surplus real property to specified public 
agencies before it can sell the property to other public agencies or a private party.  
The specified public agencies are as follows:
a) Sacramento County for developing low- and moderate-income housing; 

b) Sacramento County Parks and Recreation Department for park and 
recreational purposes; 

c) Any regional park authority that has jurisdiction over the area in which the 
surplus real property is located if it is to be used for park and recreational 
purposes; 

d) The State Resources Agency for park and recreational purposes; and 

3. The school district in whose 
jurisdiction the parcel is locateA parcel of real property is exempt from the 
statutory notice and offer procedures if it: 

a) Is less than 5,000 square feet; or

b) Is less than “the minimum legal residential building lot size for the jurisdiction in 
which the parcel is located”; or

c) Has no recorded access and is less than 10,000 square feet; and

d) Is not: (a) contiguous to land owned by a state or local agency that is used for 
park, recreational, open-space, low- or moderate-income housing; or (b) located 
in an enterprise zone or high-density, economically-distressed areas involved in 
certain redevelopment program; and

e) Is sold to the owner of contiguous land. 

4.3. At the regular noticed public meeting where a resolution and findings for 
declaring a surplus parcel or parcels of real property will be presented, the Board 
of Directors shall review the staff report, resolution, findings, and other relevant 
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information and determine whether to adopt the resolution declaring the subject 
real property exempt surplus or surplus subject to the SLA’s notice and offer 
procedures. If the parcel or parcels must be offered to the designated public 
agencies and other entities under the statutory notice and offer procedures 
prescribed by the SLA, the General Manager or their designee will give the 
qualifying agencies and entities notice of the parcel’s availability for purchase. If 
none of the agencies or entities to which notice must be given notifies the District 
within 60 days after receiving notice that they are interested in buying the surplus 
parcel, then the District may sell the parcel by advertised public sale. If an 
authorized agency or entity notifies the District of an interest in purchasing the 
surplus land, staff shall negotiate with the interested party for sale of the land for 
up to the statutory minimum 90 days.The Board of Directors declares real 
property surplus and determines if a parcel must be offered to the designated 
public agencies under the statutory notice and offer procedures prescribed by the 
Government Code or is exempt from such procedures.  If the District must sell a 
surplus parcel under the statutory notice and offer procedures, the General 
Manager will give qualifying public agencies notice of the parcel’s availability for 
purchase.  If none of the agencies to which notice must be given notifies the 
District within 60 days after receiving notice that they are interested in buying the 
surplus parcel, then the District may sell the parcel by advertised public sale. 

54.  In all cases where the statutory notice and offer procedures have not resulted in 
disposal of a non-exempt surplus parcel, the District will sell the surplus real 
property by public sale.  The General Manager will notice the parcel’s sale at the 
appraised value unless the Board of Directors authorizes a different price.  The 
notice of sale will contain a description of the property; a statement of time and 
place for opening bids.  Bids for the purchase of real property will be accepted or 
rejected by a resolution of the District Board of Directors.  Alternatively, the 
District may list the surplus parcel for public sale with a licensed real estate 
broker in good standing who advertises the parcel through a multiple listing 
service or similar listing system at a fair market value determined by the broker 
using comparable sales data.  Documents for the conveyance of title to surplus 
real property will be executed by the President of the Board upon authorization by 
the Board of Directors.   

6. If the General Manager determines that a surplus parcel is exempt surplus land 
and is not subject to the SLAfrom the Government Code’s notice and offer 
procedures, it will not be necessary to obtain a formal appraisal of the property.  If 
circumstances warrant, the surplus parcel may be sold for less than fair market 
value.  In such cases, the General Manager or his their designee will prepare a 
staff report documenting why the parcel was not appraised, why it may be sold for 
less than fair market value, the fiscal impact of selling the parcel, and why it is 
exempt from the Government CodeSLA’s notice and offer procedures.  After 
review of the staff report, the Board of Directors may approve the sale of the 
exempt surplus parcel by motion.  A staff report and a certified copy of the Board 
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of Directors Meeting minutes reflecting the Board’s approval of the sale is 
sufficient to authorize the General Manager to make the sale. 

7.   After a parcel of real property has been determined by the District to be surplus or 
exempt surplus and before the surplus parcel is disposed of, staff will process the 
determinations through HCD as required by law.

300.00    Relinquishment of District Interest in Easements 

1.   Staff determines if an easement no longer meets the needs of daily, emergency, 
or future operations of the District. Staff then will generate a report that 
documentings the justification for relinquishing the easement and makes awill
determineation whether if the easement has any fair market value.  Staff then 
will forward the report to the General Manager for review.  If staff determines 
that the easement has fair market value, tThe General Manager then will present 
the staff report to the Board at its next regular meeting with a recommendation 
for the Board action to adopt a resolution declaring the easement to be exempt 
surplus land under Government Code section 54221(f)(1)(E) and authorizing its 
relinquishment after HCD approvalon relinquishing the easement in accordance 
with Article 200.00 of this policy. 

2.  If staff determines that the an easement has no or nominal fair market value, the 
General Manager shall have the authority, upon review and approval of the 
recommendation in the staff reportafter the required Board and HCD action, to 
sign and record a quitclaim deed to the underlying fee title property owner to 
relinquish the District’s interest in the easement.  If the easement is a Public 
Utility Easement, the General Manager shall have the authority, upon review 
and approval of the recommendation in the staff report,notify the underlying 
property owner(s) of the District’s decision to remove its existing uses from the 
to sign an easement relinquishment letter.  

3.   If, upon recommendation of staff, the General Manager authorizes disposal of an 
easement under this Article, then the General Manager will report the disposal 
of the easement to the Board at its next regular meeting following the recording 
of the quitclaim deed relinquishing the easement.

400.00      Disposal of Vehicles and Large Equipment 

1. At least once each calendar year, staff will prepare a list of District vehicles and 
items of large equipment that are deemed surplus. 

2. District management staff will establish values and set minimum bid prices for 
each vehicle or item piece of large equipment to be sold by public auction.  If 
staff, during the process of establishing value to a vehicle or piece of large 
equipment, determines that the particular vehicle or equipment has diminutive 
minimal or no value or the costs of preparation for sale and sale are greater than 
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the value of the vehicle or equipment, then the General Manager is authorized to 
dispose of the property in accordance with Sections 500.00 (5) and (6) of this 
policy. 

3. The General Manager may authorize the sale of surplus vehicles and large 
equipment with an estimated value of $15,000 or less.  Vehicles and large 
equipment with an estimated value greater than $15,000 will be sold as surplus 
following authorization by the Board of Directors at a public meeting. 

4. Vehicles or large equipment are to be sold at public auction. The General 
Manager will consign the vehicles or equipment to a public auctioneer after 
posting a notice concerning the sale of the vehicle or large equipment. 

400.10 Guidelines Concerning the Sale of Surplus Vehicles and Large Equipment   

Prior to the sale of surplus vehicles or large equipment, the General Manager will 
direct staff to take the following actions:

1. Remove all District equipment from the vehicle or large equipment (radio, decals, 
etc.). 

2. Clean, and if necessary, repair the vehicle or large equipment if it has an 
immediate safety issue.  

3. Vehicle or large equipment will be sold at public auction. 

4. Establish vehicle or large equipment value using an appropriate, publicly 
available valuation tool such as the Kelley Blue Book, qualified appraisal, trade 
publications, or classified newspaper advertisements.  Staff will prepare a written 
report concerning the valuation of the item and attach appropriate documentation. 

5. Arrange for the delivery and consignment of the item and in consultation with the 
General Manager and auctioneer, determine an appropriate reserve or minimum 
price for the item.  

6. Prepare and post a notice of sale.  The notice and advertisement will include the 
vehicle or large equipment description, minimum bid, conditions of sale, and 
place of public auction. 

7. When the vehicle or large equipment is sold, the General Manager or his/hertheir
designee will sign the “pink slip,” bill of sale, and any other documents required 
to complete the sale. 

8. After the vehicle or large equipment is sold, the General Manager or his/hertheir
designee will complete paperwork as required by DMV to report the sale of the 
vehicle or large equipment and return all completed forms and vehicle license 
plates to DMV. 
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500.00       Disposal of Other Personal Property Other than Vehicles/Large Equipment

1. At least once each calendar year, staff will prepare a list of District personal 
property, other than vehicles and large equipment, which is deemed surplus.  

2. District management staff will establish values and set minimum bid prices for 
each item of personal property to be sold by public auction.  If staff, during the 
process of establishing value to an item of personal property, determines it to be 
of diminutive or no value, the General Manager is authorized to dispose of the 
property in accordance with Sections 500.00 (5) and (6) of this policy. 

3. The General Manager may authorize the sale of personal property with an 
estimated value of $15,000 or less.  Personal property with an estimated value 
greater than $15,000 will be sold as surplus following authorization by the Board 
of Directors at a public meeting. 

4. Surplus personal property is to be sold at public auction. The General Manager 
will consign the personal property to a public auctioneer after posting a notice 
concerning the District’s sale of the property. 

5. For surplus items not sold, the General Manager has the authority to donate such 
items to another government agency or any non-discriminatory, tax-exempt non-
profit organization qualified under Internal Revenue Code section 501(c)(3). 

6. If an item of surplus property is not sold during sale and the General Manager is 
unable to donate the surplus items to a qualified government agency or tax-
exempt organization, the General Manager may properly dispose of such items at 
a legal disposal site. 

600.00       Revenue from Disposal of Surplus Property 

All revenue received from the disposal of surplus real or personal property will be 
deposited in the District’s General Operating Fund unless otherwise specified by the 
Board of Directors.  

700.00      Prohibition Against Upgrades 

Unless necessary to ensure the safety, merchantability, or serviceability of surplus 
property, District staff may not make any repairs or upgrades to any real or personal 
property recommended or already deemed to be surplus.  For example, staff may not 
replace a vehicle’s worn but serviceable tires with new tires, nor may staff add or 
replace optional equipment that enhances a vehicle’s value.  Before sale and upon the 
General Manager’s authorization, District staff may repair or replace parts on a 
surplus item if it is necessary to ensure that it is safe, serviceable, or merchantable. 
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800.00 Prohibited Director, Officer, and Employee Transactions 

In accordance with Government Code section 1090, all members of the District Board 
of Directors and the General Manager are prohibited from purchasing surplus District 
real or personal property.  Staff members generally are eligible to buy surplus District 
real or personal property noticed for sale on the same terms and conditions as those 
offered to members of the public, except that any District employee who actively 
participated in determining an item’s price, surplus status, or conditions of sale is 
prohibited from purchasing such items because the employee is deemed by law to 
have a prohibited interest in the sale.  The General Manager, in consultation with the 
Board and legal counsel, will determine if an employee has a prohibited interest in an 
item of surplus property.        

900.00 Lot or Group Sales 

The District reserves the right to place items of surplus property in a group or lot for 
sale to the highest bidder.  

900.10 Discretion of Board and General Manager 

Except as prohibited by law, the Board of Directors and General Manager will have 
the discretion to waive any minor irregularity in the procedures for the surplusing and 
disposing of surplus property.  Such discretion will be exercised in a non-
discriminatory manner.  

1000.00    Policy Review  

This policy shall be periodically reviewed by the Board of Directors in accordance 
with its established policy review schedule. 
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Sacramento Suburban Water District 

Disposing of Surplus District Real Property, Vehicles, and Large Equipment 
and Other Personal Property Policy 

Adopted:  July 21, 2003 
Approved with Changes on June 17, 2024 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

100.00 Purpose of the Policy 

The primary purpose of this policy is to allow management staff to determine if a 
parcel of real property, easement, vehicles, or large equipment or other personal 
property is no longer needed for daily, emergency, or future operations.  A staff 
report is generated to document why a parcel of real property, easement, vehicles, or 
large equipment or other District property should not be retained.   

100.10 Definitions 

Real Property – Any parcel of land owned by the District. 

Easement – An interest in another’s real property that permits the District to make 
limited use of that real property for a District purpose. 

Vehicles and Large Equipment – Utility trucks, dump trucks, tractors, backhoes, 
forklifts, generators, and other significant equipment used in District operations.   

Personal Property – Small equipment (cut-off saws, drills, etc.), computer 
equipment (monitors, printers, etc.), office furniture. 

200.00       Disposal of Real Property

1. District management staff determines if a parcel of real property no longer meets 
the needs of daily, emergency, or future operations, and staff generates a report to 
document why the parcel should be disposed of. 

2. District management staff determines if a parcel is either “surplus land” falling 
within the notice and offer procedures provided in the Surplus Land Act (“SLA”), 
Government Code sections 54220 through 54234, as it may be amended from 
time to time, or is “exempt surplus land” which is eligible to be disposed of with 
complying with the SLA’s notice and offer procedures. Staff shall prepare a 
resolution with appropriate findings for presentation at an upcoming regular 
noticed public meeting for the Board to declare the surplus real property either 
“surplus land” or “exempt surplus land” and a staff report describing the process 
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to be followed to dispose of the land depending on the determination of its status. 
The process shall comply with the requirements of the SLA and the California 
Department of Housing and Community Development’s (“HCD”) SLA 
Guidelines (“Guidelines”).  If the District must follow the SLA’s statutory notice 
and offer procedures before selling surplus real property, management staff shall 
obtain a qualified appraisal of the parcel. Management staff shall consult with 
legal counsel and HCD as necessary to determine if the proposed surplus land is 
exempt or non-exempt. 

3.  At the regular noticed public meeting where a resolution and findings for 
declaring a surplus parcel or parcels of real property will be presented, the Board 
of Directors shall review the staff report, resolution, findings, and other relevant 
information and determine whether to adopt the resolution declaring the subject 
real property exempt surplus or surplus subject to the SLA’s notice and offer 
procedures. If the parcel or parcels must be offered to the designated public 
agencies and other entities under the statutory notice and offer procedures 
prescribed by the SLA, the General Manager or their designee will give the 
qualifying agencies and entities notice of the parcel’s availability for purchase. If 
none of the agencies or entities to which notice must be given notifies the District 
within 60 days after receiving notice that they are interested in buying the surplus 
parcel, then the District may sell the parcel by advertised public sale. If an 
authorized agency or entity notifies the District of an interest in purchasing the 
surplus land, staff shall negotiate with the interested party for sale of the land for 
up to the statutory minimum 90 days. 

4.  In all cases where the statutory notice and offer procedures have not resulted in 
disposal of a non-exempt surplus parcel, the District will sell the surplus real 
property by public sale.  The General Manager will notice the parcel’s sale at the 
appraised value unless the Board of Directors authorizes a different price.  The 
notice of sale will contain a description of the property; a statement of time and 
place for opening bids.  Bids for the purchase of real property will be accepted or 
rejected by a resolution of the District Board of Directors.  Alternatively, the 
District may list the surplus parcel for public sale with a licensed real estate 
broker in good standing who advertises the parcel through a multiple listing 
service or similar listing system at a fair market value determined by the broker 
using comparable sales data.  Documents for the conveyance of title to surplus 
real property will be executed by the President of the Board upon authorization by 
the Board of Directors.   

6. If the General Manager determines that a parcel is exempt surplus land and is not 
subject to the SLA notice and offer procedures, it will not be necessary to obtain a 
formal appraisal of the property.  If circumstances warrant, the surplus parcel may 
be sold for less than fair market value.  In such cases, the General Manager or 
their designee will prepare a staff report documenting why the parcel was not 
appraised, why it may be sold for less than fair market value, the fiscal impact of 
selling the parcel, and why it is exempt from the SLA’s notice and offer 
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procedures.  After review of the staff report, the Board of Directors may approve 
the sale of the exempt surplus parcel by motion.  A staff report and a certified 
copy of the Board of Directors Meeting minutes reflecting the Board’s approval 
of the sale is sufficient to authorize the General Manager to make the sale.  

7.   After a parcel of real property has been determined by the District to be surplus or 
exempt surplus and before the surplus parcel is disposed of, staff will process the 
determinations through HCD as required by law. 

300.00    Relinquishment of District Interest in Easements 

1.   Staff determines if an easement no longer meets the needs of daily, emergency, 
or future operations of the District. Staff then will generate a report documenting 
the justification for relinquishing the easement and will determine if the 
easement has any fair market value.  Staff will forward the report to the General 
Manager for review.  The General Manager then will present the staff report to 
the Board at its next regular meeting with a recommendation for the Board to 
adopt a resolution declaring the easement to be exempt surplus land under 
Government Code section 54221(f)(1)(E) and authorizing its relinquishment 
after HCD approval. 

2.  If staff determines that an easement has no or nominal fair market value, the 
General Manager shall have the authority, after the required Board and HCD 
action, to sign and record a quitclaim deed to the underlying fee title property 
owner to relinquish the District’s interest in the easement.  If the easement is a 
Public Utility Easement, the General Manager shall notify the underlying 
property owner(s) of the District’s decision to remove its existing uses from the  
easement.   

400.00      Disposal of Vehicles and Large Equipment 

1. At least once each calendar year, staff will prepare a list of District vehicles and 
large equipment that are deemed surplus. 

2. District management staff will establish values and set minimum bid prices for 
each vehicle or piece of large equipment to be sold by public auction.  If staff, 
during the process of establishing value to a vehicle or piece of large equipment, 
determines that the particular vehicle or equipment has minimal or no value or the 
costs of preparation for sale and sale are greater than the value of the vehicle or 
equipment, then the General Manager is authorized to dispose of the property in 
accordance with Sections 500.00 (5) and (6) of this policy. 

3. The General Manager may authorize the sale of surplus vehicles and large 
equipment with an estimated value of $15,000 or less.  Vehicles and large 
equipment with an estimated value greater than $15,000 will be sold as surplus 
following authorization by the Board of Directors at a public meeting. 
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4. Vehicles or large equipment are to be sold at public auction. The General 
Manager will consign the vehicles or equipment to a public auctioneer after 
posting a notice concerning the sale of the vehicle or large equipment. 

400.10 Guidelines Concerning the Sale of Surplus Vehicles and Large Equipment   

Prior to the sale of surplus vehicles or large equipment, the General Manager will 
direct staff to take the following actions:

1. Remove all District equipment from the vehicle or large equipment (radio, decals, 
etc.). 

2. Clean, and if necessary, repair the vehicle or large equipment if it has an 
immediate safety issue.  

3. Vehicle or large equipment will be sold at public auction. 

4. Establish vehicle or large equipment value using an appropriate, publicly 
available valuation tool such as the Kelley Blue Book, qualified appraisal, trade 
publications, or classified newspaper advertisements.  Staff will prepare a written 
report concerning the valuation of the item and attach appropriate documentation. 

5. Arrange for the delivery and consignment of the item and in consultation with the 
General Manager and auctioneer, determine an appropriate reserve or minimum 
price for the item.  

6. Prepare and post a notice of sale.  The notice and advertisement will include the 
vehicle or large equipment description, minimum bid, conditions of sale, and 
place of public auction. 

7. When the vehicle or large equipment is sold, the General Manager or their 
designee will sign the “pink slip,” bill of sale, and any other documents required 
to complete the sale. 

8. After the vehicle or large equipment is sold, the General Manager or their 
designee will complete paperwork as required by DMV to report the sale of the 
vehicle or large equipment and return all completed forms and vehicle license 
plates to DMV. 

500.00       Disposal of Other Personal Property Other than Vehicles/Large Equipment

1. At least once each calendar year, staff will prepare a list of District personal 
property, other than vehicles and large equipment, which is deemed surplus.  

2. District management staff will establish values and set minimum bid prices for 
each item of personal property to be sold by public auction.  If staff, during the 
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process of establishing value to an item of personal property, determines it to be 
of diminutive or no value, the General Manager is authorized to dispose of the 
property in accordance with Sections 500.00 (5) and (6) of this policy. 

3. The General Manager may authorize the sale of personal property with an 
estimated value of $15,000 or less.  Personal property with an estimated value 
greater than $15,000 will be sold as surplus following authorization by the Board 
of Directors at a public meeting. 

4. Surplus personal property is to be sold at public auction. The General Manager 
will consign the personal property to a public auctioneer after posting a notice 
concerning the District’s sale of the property. 

5. For surplus items not sold, the General Manager has the authority to donate such 
items to another government agency or any non-discriminatory, tax-exempt non-
profit organization qualified under Internal Revenue Code section 501(c)(3). 

6. If an item of surplus property is not sold during sale and the General Manager is 
unable to donate the surplus items to a qualified government agency or tax-
exempt organization, the General Manager may properly dispose of such items at 
a legal disposal site. 

600.00       Revenue from Disposal of Surplus Property 

All revenue received from the disposal of surplus real or personal property will be 
deposited in the District’s General Operating Fund unless otherwise specified by the 
Board of Directors.  

700.00      Prohibition Against Upgrades 

Unless necessary to ensure the safety, merchantability, or serviceability of surplus 
property, District staff may not make any repairs or upgrades to any real or personal 
property recommended or already deemed to be surplus.  For example, staff may not 
replace a vehicle’s worn but serviceable tires with new tires, nor may staff add or 
replace optional equipment that enhances a vehicle’s value.  Before sale and upon the 
General Manager’s authorization, District staff may repair or replace parts on a 
surplus item if it is necessary to ensure that it is safe, serviceable, or merchantable. 

800.00 Prohibited Director, Officer, and Employee Transactions 

In accordance with Government Code section 1090, all members of the District Board 
of Directors and the General Manager are prohibited from purchasing surplus District 
real or personal property.  Staff members generally are eligible to buy surplus District 
real or personal property noticed for sale on the same terms and conditions as those 
offered to members of the public, except that any District employee who actively 
participated in determining an item’s price, surplus status, or conditions of sale is 
prohibited from purchasing such items because the employee is deemed by law to 
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have a prohibited interest in the sale.  The General Manager, in consultation with the 
Board and legal counsel, will determine if an employee has a prohibited interest in an 
item of surplus property.        

900.00 Lot or Group Sales 

The District reserves the right to place items of surplus property in a group or lot for 
sale to the highest bidder.  

900.10 Discretion of Board and General Manager 

Except as prohibited by law, the Board of Directors and General Manager will have 
the discretion to waive any minor irregularity in the procedures for the surplusing and 
disposing of surplus property.  Such discretion will be exercised in a non-
discriminatory manner.  

1000.00    Policy Review  

This policy shall be periodically reviewed by the Board of Directors in accordance 
with its established policy review schedule. 



Craig Locke AB1234 Report 
 
April 30th 
EPA Small Drinking Water Systems: PFAS Drinking Water Regulation and Treatment Methods 
This presentation will focus on the three treatment processes designated as best available technologies 
for PFAS removal from drinking water: granular activated carbon (GAC), ion exchange (IX), and 
membranes (NF/RO). There will be a brief discussion on the fundamentals of each process followed by 
basic considerations of process selection, process design, and costing. Presenter: Nicholas Dugan, EPA's 
Office of Research and Development 
  
April 29th 
SSWD Special Meeting 
  
April 25th 
AWWA Webinar Insights to Prepare for and Succeed in Monitoring PFAS 
PFAS monitoring must be timely, accurate, and reliable. How can your utility prepare to meet new 
requirements? This year, EPA is poised to establish a Maximum Contaminant Level (MCL) for selected 
PFAS chemicals. Meanwhile, we’re nearly at the midpoint of EPA’s 5th Unregulated Contaminant Rule 
(UCMR5). Discover a practical approach to meet emerging regulatory requirements for PFAS. 
  
April 24th 
SSWD Audit Committee 
  
April 23rd 
Drinking Water Professional Community Webinar on EPA's Final PFAS NPDWR 
EPA announced the final National Primary Drinking Water Regulation (NPDWR) for six PFAS on April 
10.  To inform the final rule, EPA evaluated over 120,000 comments submitted by the public on the rule 
proposal, as well as considered input received during multiple consultations and stakeholder 
engagement activities held both prior to and following the proposed rule. EPA expects that over many 
years the final rule will prevent PFAS exposure in drinking water for approximately 100 million people, 
prevent thousands of deaths, and reduce tens of thousands of serious PFAS-attributable illnesses. 
EPA is also making unprecedented funding available to help ensure that all people have clean and safe 
water. In addition to today’s final rule, $1 billion in newly available through the Bipartisan Infrastructure 

Law to help states and territories implement PFAS testing and treatment at public water 
systems and to help owners of private wells address PFAS contamination. 
EPA finalized a National Primary Drinking Water Regulation (NPDWR) establishing legally enforceable 
levels, called Maximum Contaminant Levels (MCLs), for six PFAS in drinking water. PFOA, PFOS, PFHxS, 
PFNA, and HFPO-DA as contaminants with individual MCLs, and PFAS mixtures containing at least two or 
more of PFHxS, PFNA, HFPO-DA, and PFBS using a Hazard Index MCL to account for the combined and 
co-occurring levels of these PFAS in drinking water. EPA also finalized health-based, non-enforceable 
Maximum Contaminant Level Goals (MCLGs) for these PFAS.  
  
April 22nd 
SSWD Meeting/Go over agenda with GM 
  
April 17th 
Cap 2 Cap Travel 
  
April 16th 
Cap 2 Cap / DPMWD Meeting 

Agenda Item 17. c. 

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.epa.gov%2Fdwcapacity%2Femerging-contaminants-ec-small-or-disadvantaged-communities-grant-sdc%232024&data=05%7C02%7CHHernandez%40sswd.org%7Cb15175cddf074f09a30008dc692e746e%7Ca3d9759613f54cd7a11d0c625f3ec9e2%7C0%7C0%7C638500895972386511%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=PTNpfc50aMUSYKtPmWCKQWWG7yXE2bD1bbfK3eUrz2g%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.epa.gov%2Fdwcapacity%2Femerging-contaminants-ec-small-or-disadvantaged-communities-grant-sdc%232024&data=05%7C02%7CHHernandez%40sswd.org%7Cb15175cddf074f09a30008dc692e746e%7Ca3d9759613f54cd7a11d0c625f3ec9e2%7C0%7C0%7C638500895972386511%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=PTNpfc50aMUSYKtPmWCKQWWG7yXE2bD1bbfK3eUrz2g%3D&reserved=0
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April 15th 
Cap 2 Cap 
  
April 14th 
Cap 2 Cap 
  
April 13th 
Cap 2 Cap 
  
April 12th 
Cap 2 Cap Travel 
  
April 11th 
ACWA Legislative Session 
  
April 9th 
Asterra Webinar 
Satellite leak detection using GPR technology invented for Mars exploration. Detects Cl2 treated 
water. Can localize leaks in about 1 block area. 
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Minutes 

Sacramento Suburban Water District 
Audit Committee Meeting 

Wednesday, April 24, 2024 

Location: 
3701 Marconi Avenue, Sacramento, CA 95821 

Call to Order – Videoconference/Audioconference Meeting 
Chair Locke called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. 

Pledge of Allegiance 
Chair Locke led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Roll Call 
Directors Present:  Jay Boatwright and Craig Locke. 

Directors Absent: None. 

Staff Present: General Manager Dan York, Assistant General Manager Matt Underwood, 
Heather Hernandez-Fort, Lynn Pham, and Jeff Ott. 

Public Present: David Alvey and Jennifer Harris.  

Public Comment 
Jennifer Harris commented about the COVID relief funding with relation to tenants of apartment 
complexes.   

Consent Items 

1. Draft Minutes of the November 1, 2023, Audit Committee Meeting 
Director Boatwright moved to approve the staff recommendation; Chair Locke seconded. 
The motion passed by unanimous vote.  

AYES: Boatwright and Locke. ABSTAINED:

NOES: RECUSED:

ABSENT:

Items for Discussion and/or Action 

2. 2023 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report and Audit Results 
Lynn Pham presented the staff report and introduced David Alvey (Mr. Alvey) with Maze 
and Associates, an independent auditor.   

Mr. Alvey presented the 2023 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report and Audit Results, 
noting there were no material weaknesses or internal control deficiencies. He congratulated 
the Board on another very clean audit.   

Agenda Item 18. a. 
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General Manager Dan York commended staff on continuing to follow policies and 
procedures and highlighted that with over one million dollars in inventory, in an open 
warehouse, he was proud to be able to report that there were no findings.  

Chair Locke moved to approve the staff recommendation; Director Boatwright seconded. 
The motion passed by unanimous vote.  

AYES: Boatwright and Locke. ABSTAINED:

NOES: RECUSED:

ABSENT:

3. Ethics Policy (PL – BOD 004) Training Compliance Report 
Jeff Ott presented the staff report.  

Adjournment 
Chair Locke adjourned the meeting at 4:20 p.m. 

Dan York 
General Manager/Secretary 
Sacramento Suburban Water District 
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